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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

1. DEPARTMENT GENERAL INFORMATION

PHYSICAL ADDRESS: DR JAMES MOROKA AVE

GARONA BUILDING

FIRST FLOOR
MMABATHO
2735

POSTAL ADDRESS: Private Bag X2044
MMABATHO 2735

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S: 018 388 3429/3432
EMAIL ADDRESS: smvula@nwpg.gov.za
WEBSITE ADDRESS: http://www.nwpg.gov.za/education/
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APP Annual Performance Plan NGO Non-Governmental Organisation
DBE Department of Basic Education LSPID Learners with Severe to Profound Intellectual
Disability
DDM District Development Model NWDoE | North West Department of Education
ECD Early Childhood Development POI Programme Output Indicator

EFAL English First Additional Language | PPI Programme Performance Indicator

EGRA Early Grade Reading Assessment | PFMA Public Finance Management Act

EIG Education Infrastructure Grant PYEI Presidential Youth Employment Initiative

EMIS Education Management QLTC Quality Learning and Teaching Campaign
Information System

EPWP Expanded Public Works SA-SAMS | School Administration and Management system
Programme

FSS Full-Service schools SDIP Service Delivery Improvement Plan

GLIP Girl Learner Improvement plans | SIAS Screening Identification Assessment and Support

IIAL Incremental Introduction of SIP School Improvement Plan
African Language

ICT Information and Communication | SETA Sector Education and Training Authority
Technology

MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure SACE South African Council for Educators
Framework

NQF National Qualifications SAPS South African Police Services
Framework

NSNP National School Nutrition SASA South African Schools’ Act
Programme

NSC National Senior Certificate SGB School Governing Body

LTSM Learning and Teaching Support [SMT School Management Team
Materials

MST Mathematics, Science and SOl Standard Output Indicator
Technology

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘@. . Let’s Grow North West Together




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

3. FOREWORD BY THE MEC:

Ms. Viola Ntsetsao Motsumi

Hon. MEC for Education

Department of Education
This year under review is the fourth year of the 2019-24 cycle of the Medium-Term Strategic Framework
(MTSF). This annual report is an expression of the achievements of the department in delivering the given
mandates as enunciated in its wide-ranging plans and deliverables of quality Basic Education in the North

West Province.

At the core of basic education is the endeavour to improve learning outcomes from Grades R to 12 so that
all learners exit the system prepared for further learning in higher institutions to become better citizens

and future leaders.

The North West grade 12 class of 2022 obtained a pass rate of 79.8%. This is an increase from 78.2% in
2021. The number of candidates who achieved Bachelor passes increased from 13 872 in 2021 to 14 733
in 2022. The number of passes with a Diploma is 12 370 higher than 10 794 attained in 2021. Passes with

Higher Certificates is 7 853 which is an improvement as compared to 7 470 in 2021.
The department did not do well in terms of connectivity in schools, however, 1 479 schools use the South
African School Administration and Management System (SA-SAMS) to provide data, these schools can also

be accessed or contacted electronically. Some of our schools are integrating ICT in teaching and learning.

We managed to reach targets in terms of training of office - based employees and educators including

training of educators on inclusion.
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We participated in developing the skills of the unemployed youth by appointing Learner Support Agents,
EAs and GSAs, interns, Classroom Assistants in Public primary schools offering Grade R, as well as

recruiting the general assistants. therapists/specialists staff were appointed in public special schools.

In an exertion to ensure that school going age children attend school, 740 478 learners benefited from
the No Fee School Policy, the National School Nutrition Programme managed to feed on average, 700 558
learners, 97 305 girl learners were provided with sanitary towels and 49 237 were transported to schools.

We also did well in the provision of additional classrooms to schools.

| wish to express my gratitude to all education stakeholders including oversight bodies who helped us in
making our achievements possible. We commit to improve quality basic education and to take part in the

principle of “Let’s Grow North West Together”.

HON V. MOTSUMI DATE: 17 August 2023
MEC: NORTH WEST DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

8|Page

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ . ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

4. REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER:

Dr. S.H. Mvula

Acting Accounting Officer

Department of Education
Overview of the operations of the department:

This Annual Performance Report reflects the work that was done in the financial year 2022/23. It
should be read with the understanding and the recognition of factors that impacted on the
performance: The advent of Covid-19 and 2020 and its impact on the Matric class of 2022; the change
of the Acting CFO and Accounting Officer Mid- year; Socio-economic conditions that adversely affect

teaching and learning in the classroom.

Overview of the results and challenges for the department, briefly commenting on significant events
and projects for the year.

Review of the 2022/23 financial years

Analyses of 2022 results

Despite challenges the candidates encountered in 2020 and 2021 due to impact of COVID 19
pandemic and the hardships related to load shedding, floods and community protests which they
experienced during the writing of 2022 November/ December NSC examinations, milestones

registered by our province for Matric results in particular is to be appreciated.

A look at our performance record of the NSC Examination results over the past five years shows that
in 2017, we obtained 79.44% and maintained (position 4), 2018, we improved to 81.11% (position 4),
2019, we improved again and obtained 86.80% (position 4), then in 2020 we dropped to 76.19%

(position 3). In 2021, we rose again and obtained 78.2% (position 4).
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The class of 2022 obtained a pass rate of 79.8%, which is an increase by 1.5 % from 78.2% of 2021.

Out of 444 schools that presented Grade 12 in 2022, 338 (that is 76,1 % of the schools) performed at 70%

and above.

In total, the number of candidates who achieved Bachelor passes is 14 733 (33.62%) compared to 13 872
of the Class of 2021. The number of passes with a Diploma is 12 370 (28, 2 %) higher than 10 794 attained
in 2021. Passes with Higher Certificates is 7 853 (17, 9%) which is an improvement from last year of
7 470. And four (4) candidates in Special Needs Schools passed with an endorsed NSC. In total, 34 960
candidates out 43 823 passed their matric in 2022, and 7 903 distinctions were achieved in various

subjects including in Life Orientation.

However, we need to remind ourselves that our Annual Performance Plan target for the 2022 matric pass

rate was 85%.

A sound and solid foundation of the internal grades is the source of our good grade 12 results. Our 2022
learners in the General Education and Training Band, that is, Grades 1-9, obtained 90% and above except
Grade 8 which achieved 80%. At FET level, grade 10 achieved 69% however, the performance of Grade

11 increased substantially to 82%.

Teacher Development

North West Province implemented developmental initiatives that targeted improvement of teacher
capacity and improved practices. The programmes that were rolled out took into cognizance curriculum
changes as informed by diagnostic reports and research recommendation across the board. We pride
ourselves of subject specialists who are gallant and confident drivers of teacher training in their areas of
specialisation as practitioners in education. Our continued collaboration with stakeholders like Teacher

Unions, National Education Collaboration Trust, MOLTENO, and UNICEF) is paying dividend.

In addressing the challenge of reading at early grades, a total number of 1 317 teachers were trained in
language content and methodology, 1402 teachers developed in the teaching of Mathematics in the
same grades. This is done with the view to establish a bedrock for learners in these subjects. In FET many
subjects were rolled out inter alia: Mathematics, Physical Sciences, Accounting Economics, and

Geography etc.

] Teacher Appreciation and support Programme (TASP)
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North West Department of Education returned triumphantly from DBE pertaining to the Teacher
Appreciation and support Programme (TASP)
We emerged with the following at National Teaching Awards:

v' We had six winners nationally, that is positions ranging from 1- 3 in the country, with two of them
being outright wins in the nine provinces.

v" Primary school Leadership and Mathematics FET. Mr Mokwene T. S, emerged as winner in the
Maths category. He is from Ngaka Modiri Molema. During the past four years North West has
been monopolizing winning Mathematics.

v" “Itis a North West category”

v" Primary school Leadership, Ms Sekopmatse D.V. who also obtained the first position is from
Bojanala District.

v She received an Award from the minister to a\ttend a conference in USA from 18-23 February
2023

v" SACE has made a mark in ushering in professionalisation, Code of professional ethics and the
CPTD system where teachers are able to report their activities and earn CPTD points.

v DBE has piloted New Teacher Induction Programme in Dr Kenneth Kaunda. We are now formally
commencing with the implementation in the said District. It is a two year programme that intends
bridging the gap from the Institutions of higher learning. Next year it will be implemented across
the province

In total, the number of candidates who achieved Bachelor passes is 14 733 (33.62%) compared to 13
872 of the Class of 2021. The number of passes with a Diploma is 12 370 (28, 2 %) higher than 10 794
attained in 2021. Passes with Higher Certificates is 7 853 (17, 9%) which is an improvement from last
year of 7 470. And four (4) candidates in Special Needs Schools passed with an endorsed NSC. In total,
34 960 candidates out 43 823 passed their matric in 2022, and 7 903 distinctions were achieved in

various subjects including in Life Orientation.
School enrichment programmes
The Provincial School Democracy Week launch was held on the 12 April 2022 at Iteko Special School.

143 learners, 45 educators and 21 departmental officials attended. 96 learners were registered online

for the first time to apply for identity documents.

The South African School Choral Eisteddfod (choir music competition) was held with 56 school choirs.

21 school choirs to compete at the National ABC Motsepe SASCE Choral Music Competition on the 28th
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June- 01st July 2022 at Rhema Bible Church. North West obtained position one as ‘The Best Province’

and obtained position 4 overall.

The Provincial Girl Learner Sports Festival was held on the 26-27 August 2022 in Rustenburg to celebrate
Women’s Month. The Girls teams for Under 13 for Primary schools and Under 17 for Secondary schools,

codes played were Football, Basketball, Volleyball and Chess.

The National Heritage Education School Outreach Programme( HESOP) was held on the 03-07 October
2022 at Marakele Nature Reserve in Thabazimbi. Thuto Lesedi from Dr. Kenneth Kaunda District

obtained position 2.

The national Oral History Project was held on the 30 September 2022 at the iNkosi Albert Luthuli
Museum in Durban. North West obtained position 1 in the Young Historian Awards category with R

5000.00 prize money.

The North West province hosted the National SASA Il Games in Rustenburg on the 27-31 March 2023.
Our Table Tennis Team for Males obtained position 1.
The National Primary School Athletics championship was held on the 18-12 March 2023 in

Pietermaritzburg and North West obtained position 4 with 26 medals.
Challenges

Our major challenge in our programmes is poor planning of events which impedes on the procurement
process. Another major challenge is lack of Emergency Medical Services at all levels and Department of
health is running short to assist as they also lack personnel and ambulances. The second challenge is

that our programmes are congested without enough breather in between.
The third challenge is inadequate budget for School Enrichment Programmes. Our budget gets depleted
before September of each year. The fourth challenge in skeleton staff in the lower levels: Local

education Offices. Officials are requested to implement School Sports, Arts and Culture and Values in

Education which is overwhelming for one person.

ECD
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On the 1st of April 2022 the Department received the ECD function. 89 ring— fenced posts were
transferred to NWDoE. 10 of these Posts were vacant, 3 at Head Office and 7 in Bojanala district. Not
all posts were advertised.
FUNDING AND SUBSIDY STATUS AS AT 20 MAY 2022
e Number of ECD centres applied for Funding and Subsidy was597
NUMBER OF CHILDREN
e Total Number of Children in all 23524 registered ECD Centres is 1223
Total Number of children benefitting from Subsidised and Funded ECD Centres: 33 419
e 6220 Equitable Share

e 16 132 Conditional Grant

NSNP

The National School Nutrition Programme managed to feed on average, 700 558 of the targeted 750
633 learners during 2022/2023 financial year. Deviation from the target was caused by normal learner
absenteeism during the year. Furthermore, some of the learners did not come to schools during the

days in which examinations were written. The practice is prevalent in secondary schools.

The province appointed 4 335 Volunteer Food Handlers to prepare and serve meals to learners. These
food handlers were paid a stipend of R1 640 .00 per month for the whole year as per Conditional Grant

Framework. The food handlers have been registered with the Department of Labour for UIF purposes.

The province managed to re-train 1 018 (One thousand and eighteen) Food handlers on the following
topics: Meal planning, meal preparation, kitchen hygiene as well as food safety. The food handlers were
also trained on food poisoning, rodent and pest control. The purpose of these trainings was to ensure

that learners receive healthy meals.

The province managed to provide the following utensils to schools:
e Folding steel tables.
e Cutting boards for primary schools.
e Kitchen measuring scales for Mahikeng schools. (others will follow during the year)
e Aprons, boots and head covers for food handlers.

e Bowls and spoons for Greater Taung and Kagisano Molopo Schools.

The province successfully celebrated World School Milk day at Nkululekweni Primary School in Dr
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Kenneth Kaunda District. The purpose of the celebration was as follows:
e Toincrease awareness around the inclusion of milk in the provincial menu.
e To teach school communities about milk safety, milk transportation and nutritional value of
milk.

e To strengthen partnership with Milk Producers Association.

Officials from District Municipalities were also provided with the opportunity to teach communities

about food safety.

The province has prepared to roll out chicken livers to 100 (one hundred schools) with the intention
of increasing the number when the funds are available. The number of breakfast schools has been

increased to 300 (three hundred). The schools would be increased pending availability of funds.

Tiger Brand Foundation (TBF) has continued to provide breakfast and top up VFHs’ stipend for 6
schools, in the Madibeng Area Office schools around Bapong. The sixth school was added in February
2023. It has also built a kitchen and dining hall facility at Tebogo Primary School. The Foundation also

sponsored accredited training for food handlers and educators at the same schools.

Department of Agriculture and Rural Development assisted with sustainable food production in
schools (SFPs) issues and capacity building workshops. The department has donated trees during
Arbor Day in 2022. Department of Labour is assisting with labour compliance issues e.g., UIF and

capacity building workshops.

SUN FARMING
Sun Farming is an NGO which provides breakfast to thirty -six schools in Dr Kenneth Kaunda District.
The purpose of the sponsorship is to provide soft porridge to targeted schools to supplement feeding.

The sponsorship has been going on for three years.

Overview of the financial results of the department

Departmental receipts
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2022/2023 2021/2022
Departmental Actual Actual
receipts Estimate | Amount ey l.!nde Estimate Amount (Over)( Ut
r Collection collection
Collected Collected

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Tax Receipts

Casino taxes

Horse racing
taxes

Liquor
licenses

Motor vehicle
licenses

Sale of goods
and services
other than
capital assets

R17207 | R16109 R 1098 R 16419 R 15 222 R 1197

Transfers
received

Fines,
penalties and
forfeits

Interest,
dividends and
rent on land

Sale of capital
assets

Financial
transactionsin
assets and
liabilities

R 7905 | R 9473 R 1568 R 7543 R 18 400 R 10 857

Total R 25112 | R25582 R 470 R 23962 R 33622 R 9660
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Conditional Grant Roll-overs

Conditional Grant Roll-overs was R50.192 million. The Department was granted a rollover in the sum

of R50,192 million from the previous financial year. These funds were allocated as follows:

Math’s, Science and Technology grant: R2.845 million, roll over will be utilised for payment of invoices
of 633 Tablets for identified Maths, Science and Technology participating schools, Data projectors for
19 Technical Schools, Maths Manipulatives for 41 Maths, Science and Technology Primary schools and
3D printers to 41 Maths, Science and Technology primary schools for coding and robotic. The Service

provider was unable to deliver the consignments before the end of the previous financial year

National School Nutrition Programme grant R31.460 million: The roll over amount represents
outstanding payments and commitments that were not processed before closure of the previous

financial year for: -

Transfer of funds for procurement of meals for learners in schools. The transfer batch that was
disbursed did not interface due to a crash in the payment system resulting in this disbursement not

being affected before end of financial year-end.

Supply and delivery of feeding kitchen equipment and utensils (kitchen folding tables, stainless eating

bowls, industrial tin openers and kitchen cutting board) for schools across the province
Personal protective equipment for Food handlers and officials at schools.
HIV/AIDS grant R0.936 thousand

The roll over will be used for payment of invoices for procurement of printing of health education and
peer manuals. The services providers did not deliver the consignment prior to the cut-off date of

payments for end financial year.
Early Childhood Development Grant: R14.951 million.

The Early Childhood Development stimulus packages is meant to provide income relief to the ECD
work force. The allocation falls within the Presidential Employment Initiative response to mitigate the
effects of COVID-19 within the ECD Sector during 2022/23. The grant is aimed to supplement the

income generated by the ECD services through subsidizing the cost of employment.
Equitable Share Rollovers — R37.059 million

Sanitary Dignity Project: R6 million
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This amount will be utilized to pay outstanding orders which were placed to provide sanitary towels

to girl learners in quintile 1-3 schools and could not paid by the end of financial year.
Presidential Employment Initiative: R31.059 million

All unused funds or savings from Phase Il and Phase Il will be used to supplement the allocation for
Phase IV. The roll over for supplementation is important due to misalignment between an academic
and a financial year, i.e. the first three month of the new academic year, which also serves to represent
the start of Phase IV, will be funded from these rollover funds. The new funding for Phase IV will only
become available on 1st April 2023.

Public Private Partnerships

None
Discontinued key activities / activities to be discontinued

None

Supply chain management
° There were no unsolicited bids concluded within the financial year

° Supply Chain Management has systems and processes established to preventirregular

expenditure, such as:

e Appointment of SCM Committees to recommend the approval of Bid Specifications,

to evaluate and adjudicate bids.

e Segregation of duties for the sourcing, closing, evaluating, and adjudicating

quotations, which is also accompanied by financial delegations.

The department has developed Standard Operating Procedure for each process
within Supply Chain Management and conducted SCM training to all officials of the
department involved in the SCM process, to understand the process and prevent

irregular expenditure.
SCM appointed 14 personnel on Contract to beef up the directorate.

SCM has updated the SCM policy, delegations and compliance checklist, to enhance
compliance and prevent irregular expenditure.

Challenges experienced in SCM and how they were resolved

e Supply Chain Management has experienced challenges of no tender appointments,

due to non-compliance of service providers
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e Supply Chain Management still has capacity challenges, due to the inadequacy of the
structure and capacity within SCM personnel.
Gifts and Donations received in kind from non-related parties

None
Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury

None
Events after the reporting date

No Adjusting events
Other
None
Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation

| wish to acknowledge the hard work and dedication of Team Education that tirelessly served the
department and the learners of this province in the 2022/23 reporting period. It is appreciated and

highly valued.

Approval and sign off

Dr. S. H. Mvula
Superintendent General
Date: 17 August 2023
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5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.
The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as

issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified

cash standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and

for the judgements made in this information.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal
control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial

statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial

statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information,
the human resources information and the financial affairs of the department for the financial

year ended 30 March 2023

Yours faithfully

DrS. Mvula
Superintendent General
Department of Education
Date: 17 August 2023
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1 Vision

A caring and supportive community for excellence in Basic Education.

6.2 Mission

To protect and promote the right of every LEARNER to quality, equitable, culture-based,

and complete basic education where:
6.2.1 Learners learn in a child-friendly, gender-sensitive, safe, and motivating environment.

6.2.2 Teachers facilitate learning and constantly nurture every learner.

6.2.3 Administrative staff ensure an enabling and supportive environment for
effective learning and teaching; and
6.2.4 Family, community, and other stakeholders are actively engaged and share

responsibility to support and inculcate life-long learning

6.3 Values

Key corporate values the North West Department of Education intend to comply with include:

Inclusion We recognize diversity for redress and equity

Excellence We move beyond compliance by going an extra mile

Integrity We respond to our fellow employees and other stakeholders
with honesty, fairness and respect

Transparency We are open in our functions and operations for public
interest and comment

Innovation We will continually strive for better and new ways of doing
things

Empathy We appreciate the context in which people operate and
express themselves

Accountability We take responsibility of the consequences of our actions

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘@‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

A. Legislative Mandates

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

The following list of Acts elaborates the legislative mandate of the Department: -

Act

Brief Description

The Constitution of the
Republic of South
Africa, 1996. (Act 108
of

1996)

Section 29 of the Constitution, Act 108 of 1996 [Bill of Rights], makes
provision for everyone to have the right to a basic education, including
adult basic education, and to further education, which the state,
through reasonable measures, must make progressively available and
accessible.

Schedule 4 of the Constitution states that education at all levels,
excluding tertiary education, is an area of national and provincial
legislative competence.

The legislative competence of the provincial legislature is derived from
Section 126(1) of the Constitution, which empowers provinces to make
laws regarding all matters listed in Schedule 6 ofthe Constitution, and
education is a Schedule 6 functional area.

The National Education
Policy Act (NEPA), 1996
(Act 27 of 1996)

This Act provides for the determination of national education policy
for planning, provision, financing, co-ordination, management,
governance, programmes, monitoring, evaluation, and wellbeing of
the education system by the Minister, subject to the competence of
the provincial legislatures in terms of section 146 of the Constitution,
principles listed in section 4 of the Act, and the relevant provisions of
provincial law relating to education. It further provides for
consultative structures for the determination of national education
policy and legislation in the form of the Council for Education Ministers
(CEM), Heads of Education Departments Committee (HEDCOM), and
other consultative bodies on any matter the Minister may identify, as
stated in section 11 of the Act and, where applicable,

South African Schools Act,
(SASA), 1996. (Act 84 of
1996 as amended)

This Act provides for a uniform system for the organisation,
governance, and funding of schools. It ensures that all learners have
the right of access to quality education without discrimination and
makes schooling compulsory for children aged 7-14 years.

The Employment of
Educators Act, 1998.
(ActNo. 76 of 1998)

This Act provides for the employment of educators by the state and
regulates the conditions of service, discipline, retirement, and
discharge of educators.

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘@. ’ Let’s Grow North West Together




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Act

Brief Description

The South African Council
for Educators Act, 2000
(Act 31 of 2000)

This Act deals with the registration of educators in the teaching
profession with the South African Council for Educators (SACE), and
further provides for promotion, development, and enhancement of
the teaching profession as well as the enforcement of the Code of
Professional Ethics for educators to protect the dignity of the
profession on continuous basis.

Public Finance
Management Act,
1999 (Act 1 of 1999)

This Act applies to departments, public entities listed in Schedule 2 or
3, constitutional institutions, and provincial legislatures subject to
subsection 3(2) of the Act, and regulates accountability, transparency
and sound management of the revenue, expenditure, assets and
liabilities of institutions listed in section 3 of the Act, and also contains
responsibilities of persons entrusted with financial management.

Public Service Act, 1994
asamended [Proclamation
No. 103 of 1994].

This Act provides for the organisation and administration of the public
service and regulates the conditions of employment, terms of office,
discipline, retirement and discharge of members of the public service.

Labour Relations Act
&Basic Conditions of
Employment Act 75 of
1997

These are the leading legislations in matters of labour. They give
effect to section 27 and 23 (1) of the constitution. These legislations
recognise the right to a fair labour practice and to comply with
international standards of employment

The Promotion of
Administrative Justice
Act[PAJA], 2000 (Act 3 of
2000) and the
promotion of Access to
Information Act [PAIA],
2000 (Act 2 of 2000)

These Acts are essential legislative instruments and apply, in the case
of PAJA, to all administrative acts performed by the state administration
that have an effect on members of the public. In particular, it deals with
the requirements for procedural fairness if an administrative decision
affects a person (section 3) or public (section 4), reasons for
administrative action and grounds for judicial review (sections 5 and 6).
PAIA on the other hand deals with section 32 of theConstitution, the
right of access to information ‘records’ held by public and private
bodies such as all documents, recordings and visualmaterial, but does
not apply during civil and criminal litigation.

Promotion of Equality
andPrevention of Unfair
Discrimination Act 4 of
2000

This Act gives effect to section 9 read with item 23 (1) of Schedule 6 of
the Constitution, to prevent and prohibit unfair discrimination and
harassment; to promote equality and eliminate unfair discrimination;
to prevent and prohibit hate speech; and to provide for matters
connected therewith.

State Liability Act 20 of
1957 as amended

This Act consolidates the law relating to the liability of the state in
respect of acts or omissions of its servants or officials.

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘@‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together




B. POLICY MANDATES

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Act

Brief Description

Education
White Paper 2

EWP 2 deals with decisions on a new structure for school organisation,
including a framework of school categories, proposals concerning school
ownership and governance, and observations on schoolfunding. The
policy sought to address the huge disparities among South African
schools by providing for a new structure of school organisation and
system of governance which would be, inter alia, workable and
transformative; uniform and coherent; and yet flexible

enough to take into account the wide range of school contexts, the

Availability or absence of management skills, parents’ experience or
inexperience in school governance, and the physical distance of many
parents from their children’s school.

Education
White Paper 5

EWP 5 proposes the establishment of a national system of Reception
Year provision that will comprise three types: Reception Year
programmes within the public primary school system; Reception Year
programmes within community-based sites; and independent provision
of Reception Year programmes. The White Paper undertakes to provide
grants-in-aid, through provincial departments of education, to school
governing bodies who respond effectively to the early childhood
education (ECD) challenge outlined in the White Paper. With regard to
pre-school or early childhood development, the Department of
Education plays a supportive role to the Department of Social
Development, the lead department in terms of the Children’s Act, 2005.
The National Education Department, regarding the Reception Year,
determines policy and plays a monitoring role, while provincial
departments provide the services with independent providers. The
Reception Year, Grade R (for children aged 4 turning 5), is being
implemented through programmes at public primary schools, at
community-based sites and through independent provision.

Education
White Paper 6

This EWP 6 deals with critical constitutional rights to basic and further
education and equality in the provision of education and educational
opportunities for learners who experience and have experienced
barriers to learning and development, or who have dropped out of
learning because of the inability of the education and training system to
accommodate their needs. It recognises a vision of an inclusive
education and training system and funding requirements which include
the acknowledgment that: all children and youth can learn and need
support; the creation of enabling education structures, systems

and learning methodologies to meet the needs of all learners;
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Act

Brief Description

acknowledging and respecting differences in learners, whether due to
age, gender, ethnicity, language, class, disability, HIV or other infectious
diseases; the overhauling of the process of identifying, assessing and
enrolling learners in special schools, and its replacement by one that
acknowledges the central role played by educators and parents; the
general orientation and introduction of management, governing bodies
and professional staff to the inclusion model, and the targeting of the
early identification of diverse learning needs and intervention in the
Foundation Phase; the establishment of district- based support to
provide co-ordinated professional services that draws on expertise in
further and higher education and local communities, etc.; the launch of
the national advocacy and information programme in support of the
inclusion model, focusing onthe roles, responsibilities and rights of all
learning institutions, parents and local communities; and highlighting
the focal programmes and reporting on their progress.

Education
White Paper 7

EWP 7 is about e-Education and revolves around the use of information
and communication technology (ICT) to accelerate the achievement of
national education goals. It is about connecting learners and teachers
to each other and to professional support services and providing
platforms for learning. It seeks to connect learners and teachers to
better information, ideas and one another viaeffective combinations of
pedagogy and technology in support of educational reform. The White
Paper is premised on the recognition that learning for human
development in the learning society requires collaborative learning and
a focus on building knowledge. ICT create access to learning
opportunities, redress inequalities, improve the quality of learning and
teaching, and deliver lifelong learning. ICT further play an important
role in the transformation of education and training, transform
teaching and learning, and shift the focus to an inclusive and
integrated practice where learners work collaboratively, develop
shared practices, engage in meaningful contexts and developcreative
thinking and problem-solving skills.
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UPDATES TO INSTITUTIONAL POLICIES AND STRATEGIES

The following departmental policies will support our strategies: -

Gazette 7806 of 2018 — provincial SGB election regulations

National Norms & Standards Funding Policy (NNSF): Basic School Financial Records.
Government Notice No. 17 of Government Gazette No. 38397 — Amended National Norms
and Standards for School Funding which were published in Government Notice No. 890,
Government Gazette No. 29179 of 31 August 2006

Education Sector ICT Strategy

National Strategy for Learner Attainment

National Curriculum Statement (NCS)

Circular 31 of 2010: Grade R Policy on Subsidy Payment to Grade Practitioners in
Community Centres

National integrated Early Childhood Development Policy, 2015

National Policy on HIV/AIDS for Learners and Educators in Public Schools.

Regulations pertaining to the conduct, administration, and management of assessment
for the National Senior Certificate (11 December 2006)

Addendum to FET Policy document, National Curriculum Statement on the National
Framework regulating Learners with Special Needs

National Planning on an Equitable Provision of an Enabling School Physical Teaching and
Learning Environment (21 November 2008)

National Policy of Whole School Evaluation (July 2001)

National Policy Framework for Teacher Education and Development in South Africa (26

April 2007)
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8. ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MEC

None
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1. AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information to provide
reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance
against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings
being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and

regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 242 of the Report of the Auditor General, published as Part E: Financial Information.
2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE

2.1 Service Delivery Environment

2.1.1. Population

The North West Province total population was estimated at 4,186,984. The North West province is

the third-smallest province in South Africa

Figure 1: NORTH WEST POPULATION
Source: Stats SA: 2022 Mid-Year Estimates

The province is bordered to the north by the neighbouring country of Botswana, the province of
Limpopo, the province of the Northern Cape, and the Kalahari Desert, to the west by Gauteng,

and to the south by the Free State.
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The North West Province is home to all South Africans; the majority ethnic group is Tswana, who
speak Setswana. Minority groups speak Afrikaans, Sesotho, and isiXhosa. Mahikeng is the name

of the province's capital. The majority of the population in the Province speaks setswana.

In terms of the economic activities in the Province, mining is the backbone of the economy in the
Province. Mining contributes about 30% of the Provincial overall economy, followed by
manufacturing at 5%, agriculture at 2%, and construction at 2%. More than half of the province's
GDP is produced by mining, which also employs a quarter of its workforce.

Unemployment is still a key problem that affects provisioning of education, see figure below

Figure 2: NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL UNEMPLOYMENT ABSORPTION RATE
Source: Stats SA: 2022 Mid-Year Estimates

2.1.2. Demand for Basic Education Service

Anincrease in the budgetary allocation from the National Treasury to the Provincial Government
indicates the effects of population growth. Any country's or province's population growth places
strain on the government's financial resources, particularly the social assistance program and

social security benefits.
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Figure 3: NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL UNEMPLOYMENT BY LEVEL OF EDUCATION
Source: Stats SA: 2022 Mid-Year Estimates

The North West Population's size and age distribution show sustained pressure on the economy.
This is largely attributable to the Province's rising unemployment rate among both households

and individuals.

This subsequently put strain on the already depleted or limited resources of government. It is
against this stance that planners and decision makers or strategists need to take into cognizance

the integration of population information when planning.
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Around 51,1% (30,8 million) of the population is female, according to the 2022 Mid-Year Population Estimates.
This is not the case, though, in the North West Province. In comparison to their female counterparts, there are
2 095 676 more men than women. The age structure and distribution of the province's population are
significantly shaped by migration, a key demographic process. This poses a challenge for educational planning,

particularly in informal settlements.

2.1.3. AGE AND GENDER

The distribution of the North West's population by age and gender according to the mid-population estimates
for 2022 is shown in the following table.

2022 North West Population by age cohorts
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Figure 5: POPULATION DISTRIBUTION OF NORTH WEST BY AGE AND GENDER
SOURCE: Mid-Year Population Estimates 2022

Population data is a crucial building block of the planning process for the delivery of education in communities
and institutions. Government planning must always take into account population dynamics, with a focus on
age and gender in particular, for efficient budget planning procedures and resource allocation.

Children between the ages of 0 and 9 are more prevalent in the North West Province, followed by adolescents
between the ages of 20 and 29 and then the 10 to 19 age group. This merely suggests that the province must
make sure that there is an adequate budget allocation for services like education, health care, and education,
among others, in the Province. Young people make up the majority of the population in the North West
Province. From age 35 to 85+, the population is gradually getting smaller. The term "demographic dividend" or
"window of opportunity" is typically used to describe this. It occurs when a significant portion of the population
is young and of working age and when the working class is not as heavily populated.

Age and gender distribution in the North West's population indicate that significant funds should be allocated
to the field of early childhood development and the general system of basic education.

There are 18 local municipalities in the North West Province, with Rustenburg and Madibeng in the Bojanala
District having the largest populations. In terms of population, Rustenburg is largest in the province. Dr.
Kenneth Kaunda District comes after the Bojanala District, followed by the Matlosana Local Municipality and
Tlokwe. Mahikeng, the provincial capital, has a larger population than the other local municipalities in the
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Ngaka Modiri Molema District. This might be explained by the fact that it serves as the Province's
administrative and governmental center. Therefore, it is crucial that population data be taken into account
when planning in order to ensure equitable resource allocation and maximum impact.

The population distribution of the North West Province by age and gender in 2022. It is of great importance
that government clearly understands population dynamics with special emphasis on age and gender in order
to make informed decision. Therefore, the targets for development are to be informed by these changes
noticed in the population guided by the dynamic needs of the independent functional groups.

2.1.4. Special programmes: overview of infusion of human rights and diversity within the department.

Children: For the past five years, the Department has worked to ensure that both boy and girl students enrol
in universal and free education by taking a variety of steps to ring-fence girls' education. Leadership, gender-
based violence, anti-bullying, and career exposure to STEM [Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics] are some of the interventions. Programs focusing on life skills address social ills like teenage
pregnancy. This is consistent with both Agenda 2030 and SDG No. 5. Education equity by 2030

In the same vein, studies [MieT; 2019] conducted in line with boys' vulnerability have revealed a glaring
omission of poor or lack of service of boys' needs in interventions. This unveiled a wide range of issues,
including: a lack of role models and a lack of a sense of belonging; peer pressure to engage in harmful behaviors
like substance abuse and gang membership; street corner education; toxic masculinity as an expression of
anger from their experiences as children of fatherlessness and neglect, which they then act out in school.

Through Boy's Manhood Camps and Dialogues, Gender Equality Issues, Peer Education, Leadership
Programmes, RCL Programmes, Life Skills, and HIV/AIDS, the Department has programmatically incorporated
girls' and boys' social security issues into almost all interventions since 2018.

The most important difficulties are caused by the fact that schools, as a microcosm of society, continue to be
greatly influenced by their surrounding environment. Numerous social ills are still present and continue to
spread into schools. This dilutes the impact of interventions.

For employment equity to be resolved, hard work and unpopular decisions are required.
2.1.5. Poverty

Families with children still represent a serious issue for the country. Children are more likely to live in
underserved communities where they run the risk of losing parental supervision. In addition to experiencing
emotional distress, this vulnerable group is more likely to suffer abuse and exploitation. In 2016, there were
an estimated 3.7 million orphans living in South Africa, according to the Statistics Community Survey. 150,000
children are estimated to be living in households with children as the head of household, with about half of
them having lost one or both of their parents to AIDS. This has a significant impact on planning for education,
especially when it comes to financial aid for the less fortunate.

The total number of households in the North West Province with children aged 10 to 18 as the head of
household. The province as a whole recorded 12 585 (23.4%) households with children as the head of
household, with the majority of these found in the Bojanala Platinum and Ngaka Modiri Molema Districts,
respectively. These students attend our schools.

Black South Africans, those with less education, the unemployed, large families, and kids consistently have the
highest rates of poverty. Members of households headed by women are up to 10% more likely to fall into
poverty and 2% less likely to escape it than members of households headed by men. In South Africa, race
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continues to be a significant predictor of poverty, with black Africans having the highest risk. People in rural
areas, large families, and children are particularly susceptible to long-term poverty.

The Department Education has various programmes in place that serves as poverty alleviation interventions.
This includes amongst others: NSNP, provision of sanitary towels, No fee schools, and provision of LTSM, etc.

Figure 6: NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATE
Source: Stats SA: 2022 Mid-Year Estimates

10, 2 million young people between the ages of 15 and 24 made up about 3,4 million (33,0 percent) of those
who were not in employment, education, or training (NEET). When compared to Q2 of 2020, the overall NEET

rate dropped by 0.8 percentage points in Q2 of 2022.

2.1.6. CHILDREN

The child population in South Africa is sizable and mobile, necessitating care and protection services. The
estimated total population for 2018 was 57.73 million. The number of children in the country

Figure 7: NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL 2022 SCHOOL GOING AGE
Source: Stats SA: 2022 Mid-Year Estimates
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Children are the most at risk because the economic, educational, and social standing of the
people they depend on directly affects their welfare. A variety of social and economic inequalities

have a detrimental effect on the majority of young children in South Africa.

Most black South African children experience an adverse childhood due to apartheid and the
ensuing socio-economic disparities, which include limited access to social services, education,
health care, and nutritious food. The general, holistic development of children has been harmed

by this.

Figure 8: NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL 2022 EDUCATION DATA

Source: Stats SA: 2022 Mid-Year Estimates

Early Childhood Development (ECD) has been designated as a national priority by the South African
government, and the Department of Basic Education (DBE) has been tasked with directing and coordinating
the sector. Subsequently, eight output indicators which are under the ECD and Partial
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Figure 9: NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL 2022ECD ATTENDANCE
Source: Stats SA: 2022 Mid-Year Estimates

Care sub-programme will be implemented by the receiving Department, as of 01 April 2022.

2.17. Education statistics

It is well known that in the South African context, policy decisions and investments by the government in
establishing access to early childhood development (ECD) provisioning have increased over time, according to
the Stats SA, Community Survey 2016. An improvement in the country's and the North West Province in
particular, access to ECD activities was a key indicator of these developments. According to Statistics South

Learner enrolment by sub district

140000 122035
120000 99835
85016
100000 74129
80000 61229 51007 51701
46294 48329
60000 34415 41202 36878 33136 33176
40000 22653
20000 I I I I
0
5 & © O NNC S
& L F VYL TS
& QS} CS? & F O F PP & &N
O & P E L S & & °
O Q é—; 0(,) N 0?“ \g & O é ) 3
Q vO— < <& ?‘é © Qﬁo
N\ W & P o&"’
& ©
X

Africa's 2016 Community Survey, roughly (48, 1%) of South African children aged 0 to 4 attended day-care or
educational facilities away from their homes.

Figure 10: Learner enrolment by district
Source: NWDoE EMIS (2022)

Particularly in the North West Province, a high proportion of kids (63, 7%) were said to have stayed at
home with their parents or other adults. These findings specifically call for the improvement and
development of policies in this area. The North West Province has the responsibility to prioritize
ensuring that all children in the Province have access to services through the Department of Social

Development.

The number of persons attending educational institutions has increased over time for persons 5 years
and older. There are more females attending educational institutions than males, 21381 and 8454
respectively. Rustenburg, Madibeng and Matlosana have serious leaner pressures and this have

serious implications in distribution of resources.

Generally Bojanala and Ngaka Modiri Molema are presenting a high number of learners as compared

to Kenneth Kaunda and Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati.
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In terms of non-attendance at educational institutions, the North West Province recorded 51.4 %

males compared to their female counter-parts at 48.6%.

2.2 Service Delivery Improvement Plan

The Department completed a Service Delivery Improvement Plan (SDIP) 2022, which was duly
submitted to the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA). The new SDIP is in the
process of being developed. 2022/23 was a gap year according to DPSA circular number 1 of 2020/21

therefore there is no report

2.3 Organisational environmental

The NWDoE comprises of the provincial Head Office (Corporate Centre), District offices, Circuits, public
ordinary and public special schools, ECD centers and independent schools. The Department has three
branches, each headed by a Deputy Director General. The branches are Curriculum Management and
Delivery, Institutional Management Governance and Support and Corporate Services. Each branch

comprises chief directorates supported by directorates.

Corporate Centre and the four district offices are structured to provide quality service and support
to schools and educators. There is continuous training for officials to improve their knowledge to

provide quality support to schools through provisioning of bursaries and in-house training.

Quality Learning and Teaching Campaign continues to yield results in mobilizing the private sector,
Non-Governmental Organizations and Departments to collaborate with the department to deliver its

mandate.

Currently, the Departmental staff complement has 39 500 staff members, this includes males females

both temporary and permanent employees.

The Department has been severely affected by the COVID pandemic, resulting in the closure of the
core schools of our business. Lockdown had a significant impact on support services as basic staff were

allowed to perform important services such as human resources, finance and management.

The human resources division of the division has performed well in providing key services such as
pension payments, contract extensions and severance pay. Psychosocial support from the employee

health and wellness department has performed well.
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Figure 11: Educators and schools by districts in public schools
Source: EMIS

Over 40% of open positions in the administration are unfilled, which puts the department at high risk because
the administration is essential to ensuring that the department can carry out its mandate as a driving force for
educational excellence. Public ordinary schools continue to be important to the department because its
services primarily impact students who attend public schools in general.

Annual turnover is relatively low across levels but very problematic in the highly skilled band. It is also
phlegmatic from level 12 to 16. This speaks to the policy or lack thereof in HR on staff retention especially
retention of scares skills.

In conclusion there is overreliance on internships and contract employee’s whose turnover is very high. This
challenges consistency and progression.

2.3 Key policy developments and legislative changes

° None

3. ACHIEVEMENT OF INSTITUTIONAL IMPACTS AND OUTCOMES

MTSF PRIORITY 2: EDUCATION, SKILLS AND HEALTH
Outcome Outcome indicator Baseline Five Year | Progress
Target
1. Improved | 1. Proportion Literacy 75% 80% 88.38%
learning of Grade 3
and learners
teaching reaching the Numeracy 70% 75% 88.40%
required
competency
levels in
Literacy and
Numeracy
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MTSF PRIORITY 2: EDUCATION, SKILLS AND HEALTH

Outcome Outcome indicator Baseline Five Year | Progress
Target

2. Proportion Mathematics | 65% 75% 69.7%
of Grade 6
learners
reaching the | |anguage 75% 80% 89.0%
required
competency
levels in
Maths and
Language

3. Proportion Mathematics | 30% 55% 20.53%
of Grade 9
learners
reaching the | Language 75% 80% 75.1%
required
competency
levels in
Maths,
Natural
Science,
Technology
and EMS

4. Proportion of school leavers | 86.8% 90% 78.24%
ready to participate in the
economy of South Africa

5. Proportion of educators 5% 40% 24%
meeting the required
content knowledge and
methodology

6. Extentto which pro poor No baseline 100% 100%
programmes are
implemented

7. Extent to which the No baseline 100% 24%
curriculum of schools
responds to a changing
world

8. Proportion of schools No baseline 100% 98.75%
compliance to school safety
norms and standards (NSSF)

9. Extent to which social No baseline 100% 100%+
cohesion has been
implemented in schools

10. Extent to which the school No baseline 100% 70%
environment is conducive
for learning and teaching
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MTSF PRIORITY 2: EDUCATION, SKILLS AND HEALTH

Outcome

Outcome indicator

Baseline

Five
Target

Year | Progress

2. Sound
Governan
ce
practices

1. Improved Audit

Opinion

Unqualified
with matters
of emphasis

with

Unqualified

matters
emphasis

Qualified
no
of

2. Improved Data Quality

Management

96%

100%

100%

3. Sound Stakeholder Relations

No baseline

Labour
peace/

QLTc

Public
Private

Functional

structures/

Partnerships

51%

PROGRAMMIE 1: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED ANNUAL TARGET
AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome

Outputs

Output
Indicators

Planned
AnnualTarget:
2022/23

Actual
Achievement
2022/23

Sound
governance
practices

Schools in use of
electronic solution
to provide data

SOl 101: Numberof
public schoolsthat
use the South
African School
Administration and
Management
System (SA- SAMS)
or any alternative
electronic solution
to provide data.

1483

1479

Schools in use of e-
mail

SOl 102: Numberof
public schoolsthat
can be contacted
electronically (e-
mail)

1483

1479

Non-personnel
expenditure

SOl 103:Percentage
of expenditure going
towards non
personnel items

15%

15%
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Outcome Outputs Output Planned Actual
Indicators AnnualTarget: Achievement
2022/23 2022/23
Functional SGBs |POI 1.1: Percentage 80% 100%
of SGBs in schools
that meet the
minimum criteria in
terms of functionality
Schools have POI 1.2: Percentage [75% 24%
access to of schools having
information access to information
through through Connectivity
connectivity
Skilled employees POl 1.3: Number of 400 410
office-based
employees trained
Unemployed POI 1.4: Number of |50 60
youth participate [unemployed youths
in skills participating in skills
programme development
interventions
Improved learning [Schools integrate |POI 1.5: Number of {130 130
and teaching ICT in teaching [schools monitored on
and learning the integration of ICT
in teaching and
learning
Schools POI 1.6(a): 100% 99.70%
monitored Percentage of
schools monitored
at least twice a year
by district officials
Schools POI 1.6 (b): 100% 96.20
monitored Percentage of schools
monitored once a
qguarter by the circuit
managers
Audit Action PlanPOIl 1.7:Percentage 0fil100% 51%
implemented post audit action plan
implemented
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PROGRAMME 2: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED ANNUAL TARGETAND
ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned Actual
Annual Target: | Achievement
2022/23 2022/23
Improved Schools SOl 201: Number of 25 22
learning and resourced with  |schools provided with
teaching multi-media multi-media resources
Learners SOl 202: Number of 733 705 740 478
benefit from learners in public
no-fee school ordinary schools
policy benefiting from the No
Fee School Policy
Funza LushakalSOI 203: Percentage of [100% 30%
bursary  holdersfFunza Lushaka Bursary
placed Holders placed in schools

within six months upon
completion of studies or
upon confirmation that
the bursar has completed

studies.
Learners are SOl 204: Percentage of  [100% 100%
funded at learners in schools that

minimum level are funded at a
minimum level.

Learners providedPOl 2.1: Number of 60 000 97305
with sanitarylearners provided with
towels sanitary towels
Learners POI 2.2: Number of 64 833 49 237
benefit from learners benefiting from
learner learner transport
transport
Filled POI 2.3: Percentage of 100% 71.65%
teaching schools where allocated
posts teaching posts are all

filled
Grades 6and 9  |POI 2.4: Percentage of 100% 71%
Learners laeEFAL [learners having English
textbooks. First Additional

Language (EFAL) text
books in Grades 6 and 9

Grades6and9  |POI 2.5: Percentage of 100% 80%
Learners hae learners having
Mathematics Numeracy/Mathematics
textbooks. textbooks in Grades 6
and 9
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Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned Actual
Annual Target: | Achievement
2022/23 2022/23
Public schoolsPOI 2.6: Percentage of 100% 91%
receive theirPublic ordinary schools
stationery bythat received their
January stationary by January
Schools POI 2.7: Number of 56 56
are sampled Grade 3 schools
implement where learners are
ingEGRA tracked through EGRA
tool for Home Language
(HL)
Skilled POI 2.8: Number of school|{1800 1317
educators in based educators trained
Language in Literacy/ Language

content and methodology

Skilled POl 2.9: Number of 1400 1402
educators in school based educators
Mathematics trained in Numeracy/

Mathematics content
and methodology

Skilled educators |POI 2.10: Number of 1100 1100
on inclusion educators with training on

inclusion
Skilled educators |POI 2.11: Number of 3300 3300
onother school based educators
interventions trained on other

interventions excluding
Literacy and Numeracy
(excluding POIs 2.8 and
2.9 respectively)

Sound Functional POl 2.12 Percentage of  [100% 51%
governance schools schools producing a
practices minimum set of

management

documents.
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Outcome Outputs Output Indicators Planned Actual
Annual Target: | Achievement
2022/23 2022/23
Improved African POI 2.13: Number of 12 12
learning and languages sampled schools
teaching introduced monitored for the
programme of
“Incremental
introduction of An
African Language” (IIAL)
Improved School POI 2.14: Number of 4 7
learning and enrichment advocacy campaigns
teaching programme coordinated by school
coordinated enrichment programme
Learners offered [POl 2.15: Percentage off15% 8.43%
at least one learners who are offered
subject in the at least one subject in the
technical technical vocational field
vocational
Agricultural focuslPOI 2.16: Number of 16 16
schools meetlAgricultural focus schools
minimum that meet minimum
requirements forrequirements for
conducting PAT |conducting Practical
Assessment Tasks (PAT)
Schools supportedPOIl 2.17: Number of 120 120
with safetylschools provided with
measures extra support for the
achievement of safety
measures
Reported POI 2.18: Number of 400 2867
transgressions of [reported transgressions of
school based school based violence
violence
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PROGRAMMIE 3: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED ANNUAL TARGET
AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome outputs Output Planned Annual | Actual Achievement
Indicator Target: 2022/23
2022/23
Improved Registered POI3.1:
learning and | independent Percentageof 39% 39%
teaching schools registered
subsidised independent
schools receiving
subsidies
Learners POI 3.2: Number of 12 500 10984
subsidised inlearners at
registered subsidised
independent registered
schools independent
schools
Registered POI 3.3 (a): 100%
independent Percentage of 100%
schools registered
monitored independent
(subsidised) schools
monitored
(Subsidised)
Registered POI 3.3 (b): 100% 100%
independent Percentage of
schools monitoredregistered
(non-subsidised) |independent
schools monitored
(non-subsidised)
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PROGRAMMIE 4: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED ANNUAL TARGET AND

ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome outputs Output Planned Annual | Actual
Indicators Target: 2022/23 | Achievement
2022/23
Improved learning |Learners with SOl 401: Number 7890 7850
and teaching disabilities of learners in
accessing special  [public special
<chools schools
Therapists/ SOl 402: Number 35 45
specialist staff are |of therapists/
appointed in specialist staff in
Special schools public special
schools
Public special POl 4.1: Percentage 13% 13%
schools serve as of Special schools
resource centers [serving as resource
centers
Special schools POl 4.2: Number 32 32
have assistive of Special schools
devices provided with
assistive devices
Three stream modellPOI 4.3: Number of 1735 1931
implemented learners enrolled in
technical
occupational
subjects
Learners provided |POI 4.4: Number of 1800 2074
with sanitary learners provided
towels with sanitary
towels
Skilled educators on|POI 4.5: Number of 100 100
inclusion educators with
training on
inclusion
School enrichmentPOIl 4.6: Number of] 3 3
programme advocacy
coordinated campaigns
coordinated by|
school enrichment
programme
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PROGRAMMIE 5: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED ANNUAL TARGET
AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome Outputs Output Planned Annual | Actual
Indicators Target: 2022/23 | Achievement
2022/23
Improved learning [Schools offer SOl 501: Number 1020 1018
and teaching Grade R of public schools
that offer Grade R
Resourced Grade R |POI 5.1: Number of 310 0
schools Grade R schools
provided with
resources
Skilled Grade R POI 5.2: Number 200 193
educators of Grade R
educators trained
Qualified POI 5.3: Number 200 0
Practitioners of practitioners
trained on NQF 4
and or above
Registered POI 5.4: Number 69 94
ECD centres of registered ECD
centres
Children POI 5.5 : Number 32 000 33213
accessing of children
registered accessing
ECD registered ECD
programmes programmes
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PROGRAMMIE 6: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED ANNUAL TARGET AND
ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome

outputs

Output
Indicators

Planned Annual
Target: 2022/23

Actual
Achievement
2022/23

Improved learning
and teaching

Schools have
water

SOl 601: Number
of public schools
provided with
water
infrastructure

71

28

Schools have
electricity

SOl 602: Number
of public schools
provided with
electricity
infrastructure

Schools have
sanitation facilities

SOl 603: Number
of public schools
supplied with
sanitation
facilities

25

31

Schools have
boarding facilities

SOl 604: Number
of schools
provided with new
or additional
boarding facilities.

Schools
maintained

are

SOl 605: Number
of schools where
scheduled
maintenance
projects were
completed.

180

97
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Outcome outputs Output Planned Actual
Indicators AnnualTarget: Achievement
2022/23 2022/23
Additional POI 6.1: Numberof 172 838
classrooms additional classrooms
provided builtin or provided for,

existing public schools
(Includes new and
replaced schools)

Additional POI 6.2: Numberof 34 3
specialised additional specialised

rooms rooms built in public

provided schools (includes special

rooms built in new and
replacement schools)

New schools providedPOIl 6.3: Numberof new 9 3
schools that have
reached completion
(includes replacement

schools)
Grade R classrooms |POI 6.4: Number of new 12 2
provided Grade R classrooms built

or provided (includes
those innew, existing and
replacement schools)

Schools provided with|POI 6.5: Numberof 136 52
fenced schools provided with

high security perimeter

fencing
Full service schoolsPOI 6.6: Numberof full- 15 2
upgraded service schools

upgraded
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PROGRAMMIE 7: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED ANNUAL TARGET
AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Outcome outputs Output Planned Annual | Actual
Indicators Target: 2022/23 | Achievement
2022/23
Improved learning |Learners pass POI 701: 85% 79.8%
and teaching Grade NSC Percentage of
learners who
passed the National
Senior Certificate
examination
Learners passing at |POI 702: 38% 33.6%
Bachelor’s Percentage of
Grade 12 learners
passingat the
Bachelor Pass level
Learners pass POI 703: 30% 11.84%
Mathematics in Percentage of
Grade 12 Grade 12 learners
achieving 60% and
above in
Mathematics
Learners passing  |POI 704: 30% 14.69%
Physical Sciences in [Percentage ofGrade
Grade 12 12 learners
achieving 60% and
above in Physical
sciences
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Outcome

outputs

Output
Indicators

Planned Annual
Target: 2022/23

Actual
Achievement

2022/23

Schools attaining
60% pass rate and
above in NSC

POI 705: Number
of secondary
schools with
National Senior
Certificate (NSC)
pass rate of 60%
and above

390

409

Learners attain
acceptable
outcomes in
Mathematics and
Languages

POI 7.1: Percentage
of learners in Grade
3 attaining 50%
and above in
Language (SBA)

85%

89.52%

POl 7.2: Percentage
of learners in
Grade 3 attaining
50% and above in
Mathematics (SBA)

86%

89.71%

POI 7.3: Percentage
of learners in
Grade 6 attaining
50% and above in
Language

86%

88.71%

POl 7.4: Percentage
of karasin Grade 6
attaining 50% and
above in
Mathematics

70%

69.95%
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Outcome outputs Output Planned Annual | Actual
Indicators Target: 2022/23 | Achievement
2022/23
POI 7.5: Percentage 75% 79.09%
of learners in
Grade 9 attaining
50% and above in
Language
POI 7.6: Percentage 30% 21%

of learners in
Grade 9 attaining
50% and above in
Mathematics
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PROGRAMMIE 1: OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED ANNUAL TARGET
AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT

Departmental contribution to gender (Women, Youth and disabled) parity

The Department has a Special Programmes Sub-Directorate that leads gender mainstreaming.

Gender mainstreaming has been embraced internationally as a strategy towards realising gender
equality. It involves the integration of a gender perspective into the preparation, design,
implementation, monitoring and evaluation of policies, regulatory measures, and spending
programmes, with a view to promoting equality between women and men and thus combating
discrimination. Women’s Charter for Accelerated Development 2021 adopted by Parliament, with its
15 thematic Areas of Concern, gives departments an appropriate response to challenges faced by
women in South Africa in the current epoch of our democracy. There are also 15 strategic objectives
that the Department should respond to and in the year under review, there are few successes

recorded.

The challenge the Department is faced with, is to have the ability allocate the budget in relation to
Gender, Youth and Disabilities (GEYODI) since the provincial allocation has not yet reached the GEYODI

based budgeting stage.

There are only few cases where the Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) guides and gives
specific directions to departments to budget for GEYODI. In most cases the targeted groups become
more visible when procurement is done through the tender method and specifications outline, as part
of the advert, the GEYODI considerations and thresholds that the prospective bidders would need to
comply with. The Departments is guided by Section 217(2) and (3) of the Constitution which allows
organs of state to subject to a National Framework Act, implement a procurement policy providing for
categories of preference in the allocation of contracts; and the protection or advancement of persons,

or categories of persons, disadvantaged by unfair discrimination.

The following are the Department’s achievements:

* The following opportunities were awarded to women owned companies during 2021/22 and
2022/23 financial years:

* Edu 04/21NW: Storage, packaging and distribution of textbooks and related LTSM to school
within the North West province for two years (2021/2022 to 2022/2023)

* 24 companies were awarded the tender, six(6) companies are owned by woman

* The total value of the bid is R20 505 048.22 °
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The Department aims to increase the number of opportunities to women owned companies by
aligning procurement plans with the Presidential 40% Public Procurement Programme. In term of
the employment equity targets, the Department does have a plan, but it is partially implemented

and not closely monitored. The following are the success stories:

e 13 out of 32 SMS members are women, which translates to 40,6%
e Gender Focal Person at Deputy Director level
e Bursary scheme inclusive of women

e Special programmes for girls: “take a girl learner to work”
e Programme targeting gifted girl learners are provided through the Girl Learner Improvement

Plan (GLIP)

e Provisioning of Sanitary Dignity Towels for Girl learners in Special Schools, Mega Farm

Schools

e Inthe year under review, learners in Quintile 1-3 were only provided in 2 quartersbecause

of the delays in procurement processes

4. Amendments to strategic plan

The following have been amended and tabled in the 2023/24 APP
e The revised MTSF has been included as an amendment
e The Outcome indicators have been revised

e The Strategic Plan TIDs have also been revised
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5. INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
5.1 Programme 1: ADMINISTRATION

Purpose: To provide overall management of the education system in accordance with the

National Education Policy Act, the Public Finance Management Act and other relevant

policies
RISub-programme Description Objective
Sub-programme 1.1 Office of the MEC To provide for the functioning of the
officeof the Member of the Executive
Council (MEC) for education in line
with the ministerial handbook
Sub-programme 1.2 Corporate Services To provide management services
which are not education specific for
the education system
Sub-programme 1.3 Education Management To provide education
managementservices for the
education system
Sub-programme 1.4 Human Resource To provide human resource
Development developmentfor office-based staff
Sub-programme 1.5 Education Management | To provide Education Management
Information System | Information System in accordance
(EMIS) with  the National Education
Information Policy
Sub-programme 1.6 Conditional grant To provide for projects under
programme
1 specified by the Department of
Basic Education and funded by
conditional grants

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ . ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

The programme contributes to the two outcomes: Sound governance and improved learning and teaching.
The programme ensures electronic access to schools, budget allocation for personnel and non-
personnel expenditure, functional SGBs, Schools have access to information, skilled employees,

Skills transferred to unemployed youth, Schools integrate ICT in teaching and learning as well as

monitoring of schools.
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

5.2 Programme 2: Public Ordinary Schools

Purpose: To provide public ordinary education to learners in Grades 1 to 12, in accordance with
the South African Schools Act and White Paper 6 on Inclusive Education (e- learning is

also included)

The sub-programmes

Sub-programme Description Objective

Sub-programme 2.1: Public primary level To provide specific public primary ordinary
schools (including inclusive education)
with resources required for the Grade 1 to
7 levels.

Sub-programme  2.2: | Public secondary level To provide specific public secondary
ordinary schools (including inclusive
education) with resources required for the
Grades 8 to 12 levels.

Sub-programme 2.3: Human resource | To provide departmental services for the
development development of educators and non-
educators in public ordinary schools
(including inclusive education).

Sub-programme 2.4: School sport, culture, and | To provide additional and departmentally
media services managed sporting, cultural and reading
activities in  public ordinary schools
(including inclusive education).

Sub-programme 2.5: Conditional grants To provide for projects under (including
inclusive education) under programme 2
specified by the Department of Basic
Education and funded by conditional
grants.

The programme contributes to outcomes: Improved learning and teaching.

__ PPN __
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

o The programme includes placement of educators and provisioning for schools

o School Safety team employed a holistic approach to ensure the safety of school
personnel, school infrastructure and the strengthening of systems to optimise school
operations. Over and above providing safety measures in schools, they developed an
instrument that schools use to report incidents of violence in schools. This ensures that
hot-spot schools are identified and given special attention. Partnerships with other
agencies including government departments such as the Department of Community
Safety, NGOs and CBOs have been strengthened in the year under review. The
Department also signed a protocol with the South African Police Services aimed at

reducing crime and violence in schools.

o North West is a mainly rural in nature and as such have many child-headed families.
Pro- poor programmes continue to be implemented to provide a safety net and ensure

that no learner will miss school because of unaffordability.

Annual Report 2022-2023 . “ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

5.3 PROGRAMME 3: INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SUBSIDIES
Purpose: To support Independent Schools in accordance with the South African Schools Act.

Sub-Programme:

Sub-programme Description Objective
Sub-programme 3.1: Primary Phase To support independent schools in Grades 1to 7
Sub-programme 3.2: Secondary Phase To support independent schools in Grades 8 to 12

The programme contributes to outcomes: Improved learning and teaching.

o Thereare 79 |independent schools in the province and 31 are subsidized

o These schools are monitored for institutional management support curriculum and financial matters.
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

5.4 PROGRAMME 4: SPECIAL SCHOOLS

Purpose: To provide compulsory public education in Special Schools in accordance with the South
African Schools Act and White Paper 6 on Inclusive Education (including e-learning and inclusive

education)

Sub-programme Description Objective
Sub-programme 4.1 Schools To provide specific public special schools
withresources. (Including E-learning and
inclusive education)
Sub-programme 4.2 Human To provide departmental services for the
development of educators and non-
resource

development

educators in public special schools

(including inclusive education).

Sub-programme 4.3

School sport,

cultureand media

services

To provide additional and departmentally
managed sporting, cultural and reading
activities in  public special schools

(including inclusive education).

Sub-programme 4.4

Conditional grants

To provide for projects under programme
4 specified by the Department of Basic
Education and funded by conditional

grants (including inclusive education).
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year

Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

5.5 PROGRAMME 5: EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT

Purpose:

Sub-Programme:

To provide Early Childhood Development (ECD) at the Grade R and

Pre-Grade R in accordance with white paper 5 (E-Learning included)

Sub-programme

Description

Objective

Sub-programme 5.1:

Grade R in public schools

To provide specific public ordinary schools

with resources required for Grade R.

Sub-programme 5.2:

Grade R in early childhood

development centres

To support Grade R at Early Childhood

Development centres.

Sub-programme 5.3:

Pre-Grade R in early
childhood development
centres

To support Pre-Grade R at early childhood

development centers

Sub-programme 5.4:

Human resource
development

To provide departmental services for the
professional and other development of
educators and Non-educators in ECD

centres

Sub-programme 5.5:

Conditional grants

To provide for projects under programme
5 specified by the Department of Basic
Education and funded by conditional

grants.
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5.6 PROGRAMME 6: INFRASTRUCTURE

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education

Province of North West

Purpose: To provide and maintain infrastructure facilities for schools and non-schools

Sub -programmes

Sub-programme

Description

Objective

Sub-programme 6.1:

Administration

To provide and maintain infrastructure

facilities for administration.

Sub-programme 6.2:

Public Ordinary Schools

To provide and maintain infrastructure

facilities for public ordinary schools

Sub-programme 6.3:

Special Schools

To provide and maintain infrastructure

facilities for public special schools

Sub-programme 6.4:

Early Childhood

Development

To provide and maintain infrastructure

facilities for early childhood development

Institutional outcomes for Programme 6

School infrastructure complies with norms and standards.
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6. Transfer payments to public entities

None

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

7. Transfer payments to all organization’s other public entities

The table below reflects the transfer payments which were budgeted for in the period 1 April

2022 to 31March 2023
Name of Type of Purpose forwhich the Did the dept. Amount Amount Reasons for
transferee organization|funds wereused comply with s transferred |spent by the the funds
38 (1) (j) of the |(R’000) entity unspent by the
PFMA entity

NSNP = Nat | Schools To provide Yes 581 724 581515 | None
School Nutrition nutritious meals to
Prog Grant targeted learners
PUBLIC Schools To provide Yes 608 650 582 645 | None
ORDINARY public ordinary
SCHOOLS education from
SECTION 21 Grade Rto 12 in

accordance with

SASA
MATHS & Schools To provide and Yes 2200 2200 | None
SCIENCE GRANT support schools in

mathematics,

science and

technology.
INDEPENDENT Schools To support Yes 38 665 38 576/ None
SCHOOLS independent

schools in

accordance with

SASA
PUBLIC SPECIAL | Schools To supportspecial Yes 183 831 183 None
SCHOOLS schools in 061

accordance with

SASA

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘@‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Name of
transferee

Type of
organization

Purpose forwhich the
funds wereused

Did thedept.
comply with s
38 (1) (j) of the
PFMA

Amount
transferred
(R’000)

Amount
spent by the
entity

Reasons for
the funds
unspent by the
entity

EARLY
CHILDHOOD
DEVELOPMENT

Schools

To provideEarly
Childhood
Education atGrade
R and earlier levels
in accordance with
the white paper 5

Yes

215941

165
444

None

SPECIAL
PROJECTS

Schools

1. To provide
quality education
to Gradel -
Grade 12
learners in
accordance with
SASA and
Paymentof mega
farmhostel
schools and
rental to farm
owners of farm
schools.

2. Phase lll and IV of
the Presidential
Youth
Employment
Intervention
(PYEI)

Yes

511262

469
170

None

INDEPENDENT
SCHOOLS

Schools

To support
independent
schools in
accordance with
SASA

Yes

39 194

39 120

None

PUBLIC SPECIAL
SCHOOLS

Schools

To support special
schools in
accordance with
SASA

Yes

175 649

175091

None

EARLY
CHILDHOOD
DEVELOPMENT

Schools

To provideEarly
Childhood
Education atGrade

Yes

R andearlier levels

52 406

47 560

None
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Name of Type of Purpose forwhich the |Did the dept. Amount Amount Reasons for
transferee organization|funds wereused comply with s transferred |spent by the the funds
38 (1) (j) of the |(R’000) entity unspent by the
PFMA entity

in accordance with
the white paper 5

SPECIAL Schools  [Implementation of Yes 395 459 392 547 None
PROJECTS the Sanitary Dignity
project to be
targeted atthe
intended population
of schoolgirls.

8. CONDITIONAL GRANTS

Monitoring of the grants was undertaken through monthly reporting and site visits.

Controls adimprovements were affected on an ongoing basis.

8.1 Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid

Conditional Grants 1: ECD Grant

Department to whom the EDUCATION
grant has been transferred

Purpose of the grant Number of children subsidized through ECD Conditional Grant
Of which Maintenance Component
Subsidy Component

Expected outputs of the

grant
Output Performance Expected output | Actual output
Indicator of the grant achieved
Number of children 12 373 16 132

subsidized through ECD
Conditional Grant

Number of centres 8 2
benefitting from (6 ongoing — applied
maintenance grant for roll-over)
Number of children 14500 6220

from Equitable Share

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘@‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Conditional Grants 2: HIV/AIDS

Department to whom the
grant has been transferred

EDUCATION

Purpose of the grant

To support South Africa’s HIV prevention strategy by increasing sexual
and reproductive health knowledge, skills and appropriate decision
making among learners and educators

To mitigate the impact of HIV and TB by providing a caring, supportive
and enabling environment for learners and educators

To reduce the vulnerability of children to HIV, TB and sexually
transmitted infections (STIs), with a particular focus on orphaned and
vulnerable children

Expected outputs of the grant

Output Performance Expected output of |Actual output
Indicator the grant achieved
Number of learners 20 000 20313

benefiting from care and
support activities within
life skills HIV and AIDS
programmes.

Number of educators 500 649
trained to provide care
and support for vulnerable
learners.

Number of schools visits 400 322
to monitor the
implementation of the
care and support within
life skills HIV and AIDS
programmes.

Conditional Grant 3: NSNP

Department to whom the
grant has been transferred

EDUCATION

Purpose of the grant

To provide nutritious meals to targeted learners.
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Department to whom the EDUCATION
grant has been transferred

Expected outputs of the Number of learners benefiting from NSNP
grant
Output Expected output | Actual output
of the grant achieved

Performance Indicator

Number of learners 750633 700558
benefiting from
National School
Nutrition Programme
(NSNP)

Conditional Grant 4: INFRASTRUCTURE

Department/ Department of Education
Municipality to whom

To help accelerate construction, maintenance, upgrading and
rehabilitation of new and existing infrastructure in education; to
Purpose of the grant enhance the application of labour intensive methods in order to
maximise job creation and skills development as encapsulated in the
EPWP guidelines; and to enhance capacity to deliver infrastructure.

To create employment opportunities to the youth and other
unemployed people through infrastructure development

Expected outputs of the e ALLPPMs in programme 6
grant e Number of beneficiaries recruited as General assistant in schools
through the labour intensive
INDICATOR Expected outputs of Achieved
the grant
ALL PPMs in programme 6 667 721
71 71
Number of beneficiaries
recruited as General assistant
in schools through the labour
intensive
Number of training opportunity 48 45

filling the educational /skills
gaps in the province.
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Conditional Grants 5: MST Grant

Department to whom the
grant has been transferred

EDUCATION

Purpose of the grant

To provide resources to learners, teachers and schools for the
improvement of Maths, Sciences and Technology teaching and
learning in selected public schools.

To improve achievement of Learner participation and success
rate, teacher demand, supply, utilization, development and
support, resourcing and partnerships. Consistent with targets set
in the Action

Expected outputs of the
grant

Improved learner participation and success in MIST Subjects in
the country

Output Expected output Actual output
of the grant achieved
Performance Indicator

Number of schools 100 159
provided with ICT
resources

Number of Technical 19 2
Schools” workshops
supplied with
equipment for
technology subjects in
accordance with the

Number of Technical 19 -
Schools” workshops
supplied with
machinery for
technology subjects in
accordance with the
minimum specifications

120|Page
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Department to whom the
grant has been transferred

EDUCATION

Number of Technical
Schools” workshops
supplied with tools for
technology subjects in
accordance with the
minimum specifications

19 -

Number of primary
schools supplied with
Mathematics kits

31 31

Number of Agricultural
Science focus schools
supplied with

Number of laboratories
and workshops supplied
with consumables and
apparatus for
Mathematics, Science
and Technology
subjects in accordance
with the minimum
specifications

59 31

Number of learners
registered for
participation in
Mathematics, Science
and Technology
Olympiads/Fairs/Expos
and other competitions

1900 16431

Specific training and
orientation for teachers
and subject advisors in
subject content and
teaching methodologies
on CAPS for Electrical,
Civil and Mechanical
Technology, Technical
Mathematics, Technical
Sciences and ICT

6350 2931
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Conditional Grants 6: Learners with Profound Intellectual Disabilities

Department to whom the
grant has been transferred

EDUCATION

Purpose of the grant

To provide the necessary support, resources and equipment to
identified care centres and schools for the provision of education
to children with severe to profound intellectual disabilities
(SPID).

Expected outputs of the
grant

1.Human resources specific to inclusive education 2.Database of
selected schools and special care centres
3.Transversal itinerant outreach team members, caregivers,
teachers, in-service therapists, and officials trained on the
learning programme for children with severe to profound
intellectual disabilities and other programmes that support
delivery of the learning programme.
Outreach services provided

Response to the COVID-19 pandemic

OutputPerformance | Expected outputof | Actual output

Indicator the grant achieved
Number of learners 500 468
with severe to

profound intellectual
disability  benefiting
from Special Schools
and Care Centres
(database to be

created).

9. Donor Funds
None

10. CAPITAL INVESTMENT

10.1 Capital investment, maintenance, and asset management plan

A. MOVABLE ASSETS

The physical asset verification process for the 2022/23 financial year could not be concluded in some

offices at Corporate due to constant load-shedding. As per the Asset Verification Plan, the verification

of assets started in the 4th quarter of the financial year. The Asset Register was therefore only updated

with assets which were verified from other Departmental Buildings including the District Offices’

Buildings.
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Computer Equipment

During the financial year Computer Equipment worth R35,8 m was procured. These assets related to
Laptops and Desktops for offices, and for schools. Approximately 90% or majority of these assets
benefited our schools.

Pool Vehicles

A budget of R22m was put aside to procure pool vehicles during the 2022/23 financial year. The

Department estimated to procure about 55 to 60 vehicles. Unfortunately, no vehicles were procured.

There were no vehicles in the market until the 3rd quarter of the financial year, and at the end of the
3rd quarter, the Department of Community Safety and Transport (COSATMA) could not proceed with
procurement of vehicles. Lack of funding to maintain the existing pool vehicles in the province was

cited by COSATMA as the reason for not proceeding with procurement of pool vehicles in the province.

The budget initially meant for pool vehicles was consequently re-directed to other programmes and

part of the funding was specifically used to procure office furniture for the District Offices.

School Furniture

A R20m budget was put aside to address shortages of school furniture in 573 schools. Only 371 schools
were prioritized for furniture.

As at end of the financial year Districts have confirmed that 188 (51%) out of 371 schools had received
school furniture.

It is worth mentioning that our Department procured school furniture from the Department of
Employment and Labour’s Entity called “Supported Employment Enterprise” as the only service
provider. A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Department of Employment and Labour
for the supply and delivery of school furniture was signed during the era of Section 100 (1)(b)
Administration. The Department of Employment and Labour could not deliver school furniture on

time.

Our Department had also embarked on a project of refurbishment of school furniture with the
Department of Employment and Labour. 4358 units of furniture from the donated wooden

components received from the Department of Forestry, Fisheries and Environmental Affairs were
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converted into finished furniture and this furniture was delivered to 59 schools.

B. Immovable assets

The department has invested R633 million in capital to build new and replacement assets, and
additions to existing assets, for the North West Education Sector. The largest component of this
budget was for new and replacement assets (R 383 million). The department has underspent by R 25
million, largely due to delays in procurement and site delays because of community forums and/or
site invasions. The budget for additions was R 224 million of which R 140 million was spent. An
underspending of R 84 million can largely be attributed to the Department of Public Works and DBSA
underspending. The underspending can largely be attributed to delays in procurement and poor

project management on the part of implementing agent.

The implementing agents have addressed the procurement issues and the Infrastructure Units are
addressing some of the project management issues through increased and more frequent monitoring.
The department is also addressing the capacity constraints that implementing agents pose by

appointing management contractors to take care of some of the projects.

A major challenge faced by the department is the late adjustment of the grant requirements to spend
60% of the budget on maintenance. This has led to significant delays in the delivery of maintenance
projects. The result was an overall underspending of R 154 million on a total budget of R 398 million.
Some of the issues included here is delays with the IDT and DPWR as implementing agents on the

asbestos and storm damage respectively.

The table below gives a summary of the budget and expenditure.

# Description Budget (R'000) | Exp (R'000) Diff (R'000) %Spent
1| New/Replacements 408 162 382 854 25308 94%
2 | Upgrades/Additions 224 206 139599 84 607 62%
3 | Refurbishment /Rehabilitation | 62 729 78 746 -16 017 126%
4 [ Maintenance 335665 165 548 170117 49%
51 Non-Infrastructure 205 862 136 489 69 373 66%
GRAND TOTAL 1236 624 903 236 333 388 73%

Capital investment, maintenance, and asset management plan

SOl 601 WATER

NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
1 | Boikhutso Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema | Drilling and equipping of borehole
2 Drilling of water and distribution of water
Boitirelo Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda supply
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NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
3 | Dihatshwana Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema | Equipping the borehole and repairs
4 | Ebetsamang Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole
Mompati
5 | Gamonchonyana Dr Ruth Segomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole
Primary Mompati
6 | Gataote Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole
Mompati
7 | Greylingsrus Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Equipping and distribution of water supply
8 | Ikgomotseng Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Provision of water
Mompati
9 | Ithuteng High Bojanala Borehole
10 | Keretetse Middle Dr Ruth Segomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole
Mompati
11 | Kgosikeehe Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole plus tiling
Mompati of the classroom.
12 | Koketso Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Drilling of borehole
13 Dr Ruth Segomotsi
Kopanang Primary Mompati Drilling of borehole
14 | Leruntse Lesedi Drilling of water and distribution of water
(Akofang)Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda supply
15 | MM Sebitloane Special Dr Ruth Segomotsi
School Mompati Drilling of borehole
16 | Maselwanyane Ngaka Modiri Molema | Equipping the borehole and repairs
Secondary
17 | Maud Zibi Primary Bojanala Borehole
18 Modisaemang Primary Dr Ruth S.egomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole
Mompati
19 | Mokala Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema | Borehole
20 | Motuba Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema | Drilling and equipping of borehole
21 . Dr Ruth Segomotsi
Nkhabang Primary Mompati Drilling of borehole
22 | Nonceba Primary Bojanala Provision of water
23 | Puso Primary Bojanala Borehole
24 Dr Ruth Segomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole
Ramadile Primary Mompati
25 | Ramalebya Primary Bojanala Borehole
26 | Seile Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole
Mompati
27 | Thakung Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Drilling and equipping of borehole
Mompati
28 | Thoko Zibi Primary Bojanala Borehole
SOl 602 ELEC
NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
1 | B M Mokitimi Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erection of precast toilets
Primary
2 | Bagamaidi Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Pre-cast concrete toilets
3 | Bakerville Secondary | Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erection of precast toilets
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Secondary

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
4 Sanitation and minor repairs of toilet
Bathabile Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda blocks
5 | Boons Combined Bojanala Pre-cast concrete toilets
6 | Dira Ka Natla Primary | Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply and erection of precast toilets
7 | Dithoteng Primary Bojanala Pre-cast concrete toilets
8 | Gamonchonyane Flushing Pre-cast toilets & conversion
Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati of VIP Toilets
9 | Gaotime Secondary Bojanala Supply and erection of precast toilets
10 | Gataote Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and erection of pre-cast toilets
and borehole
11 | IB Damons Combined | Bojanala Pre-cast concrete toilets
12 | Kopanang Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and erection of precast toilets
13 | Mailakgang Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erection of precast
14 | Makweleng Primary Bojanala Supply and erection of precast toilets
15 | Marumuloa Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erection of pre-cast
concrete flushing toilets
16 | Meriting Primary Bojanala Pre-cast concrete toilets
17 | Mokgobola Setshedi | Bojanala Pre-cast concrete toilets
Primary
18 | New Greylingsrus Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply and erection of pre-cast toilets
Primary
19 | Nkukime Primary Bojanala Erection of precast toilets
20 | Phakela Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Sanitation and minor repairs to
existing toilets
21 | Phera Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and rection of pre-cast toilets
22 | Polokoetsile Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and erection of pre-cast toilets
23 | Polonia Primary Bojanala Erection of precast toilets
24 | Reitshokile Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and erection of pre-cast toilets
Combined
25 | Seile Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and erection of pre-cast toilets
secondary
26 | Thabo Mpempe Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erection of pre-cast toilets
Primary
27 | Thakung Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and erection of precast toilets
28 | Thate Molatlhwa Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and erection of pre-cast toilets
Secondary
29 | Thuto Boswa Primary | Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erection of precast toilets
30 | Tolamo Primary Bojanala Supply and erection of pre-cast toilets
31 | Tshedimosetso Supply and erection of precast

SO1 604 BOARDING FACILITIES

NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
1 | BoonsPS Ngaka Modiri Molema Mobile hostels
2 | Naauwpoort PS Ngaka Modiri Molema Mobile hostels
3 | Moedwil CS Ngaka Modiri Molema Mobile hostels

SO1 605 MAINTENANCE
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NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
Maintenance work of roof and
1 | Are Fadimeng Dr Kenneth Kaunda sanitation
. Conversion of VIP toilets to flush
Bapo Primary . .
2 Bojanala toilets
3 Bapo primary Bojanala Repairs and Minor renovations
Sanitation and minor repairs of toilet
4 | Bathabile Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda blocks
5 | Blydeville Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
Boitshoko . .
6 | Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
Bolopapelo
7 | Intermediate Dr Kenneth Kaunda Maintenance work
8 | Bray Intermediate Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of borehole
Diphetogo Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor maintenance and Repairs to
9 | school dysfunctional toilets
Dirang Ka Natla .
10 Combgined Dr Kenneth Kaunda Tree felling
11 | Ebetsamang Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Conversion of VIP Toilets
12 | Excelsior Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor renovations
13 | Gaegane Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Dysfunctional toilets
Gamonchonyane Flushing Pre-cast toiets & cnversion of
14 | Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati VIP Toilets
Green Central Maintenance of toilets
15 | primary Ngaka Modiri Molema
Greylingsrus Dr Kenneth Kaunda Installation of main supply electricity
16 | Primary and wiring of mobile classrooms
17 | Huhudi Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of toilets
18 | lkatisong Secondary | Bojanala Renovations and repairs
19 | Ikhutseng Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor repairs and maintenance
ltshupeng
20 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Dysfunctional toilets
John Frylink Roof and electricity maintenance
21 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati
Joseph Saku Repairs and renovations
22 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati
23 | Kabelo primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
Kgatsheng Thabiso Bojanala Refurbishment of NSNP kitchen
24 | Secondary
Kgoke Lesabe . .
25 segcondary Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
26 Eggj:}gg?\jlep”e Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance and repairs of toilets
Kgosietsile Lethola Maintenance of electricity
27 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati
Koi Koi Primary construction of septic tank and
28 Ngaka Modiri Molema plumbing
Kudunkgwane
29 | Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Dysfunctional toilets
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NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
Laerskool Schweizer . -
30 | Reneke Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of building
31 | Laerskool Tosca Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of electricity
32 | Leolwane Primary Bojanala Demolishing of pit toilets
33 | Lerona Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of building
Letlhogile
34 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of toilets
35 | Letsapa Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Repairs of borehole
36 | Longaneng Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of ablutions
37 | Maano Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
38 | Madiba Combined Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance and repairs of toilets
39 | Magaabui Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Renovations and repairs
Maheelo Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply,construction of main cable and
40 reconnection in classrooms
41 | Majeakgoro Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of abluitions
Mashilo Matsho Conversion of VIP Toilets to flush
42 | Primary Bojanala toilets
43 | Mmadisebo primary | Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
Modisaemang
44 | Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Conversion of VIP Toilets
45 | Mofufutso Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Construction of septic tank
Mogakolodi Masibi . .
46 Secindary Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
47 | Mogwase Tech Bojanala Electricity repairs and water pipes
Moitsemang
48 | Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Conversion of VIP Toilets
49 | Mokgatlha Primary | Bojanala Demolishing of 2 classroom block
50 | Molale Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Conversion of VIP Toilets
Molelwane Primary Refurbishment of dysfunctional
51 | school Bojanala Primary
52 | Motaung Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Minor maintenance work and repairs
Mothusi Marumoloa Maintenance of mobile
53 | Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema
Motsemme
54 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Dysfunctional toilets
Mgtshabae5| . Maintenance of mobiles
55 | Primary Bojanala
56 | Nkukime Primary Bojanala Conversion of enviro loo to flush
57 | Ntikang Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Conversion of VIP Toilets
58 | Othaile Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Conversion of VIP Toilets
P H Moeketsi Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Relocation and Maintenance of
59 | Secondary Mobile Classrooms
60 | P P Phaladi Primary | Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
S Minor maintenance and Repairs to
61 Phakedi Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda dysfunctional toilets i
Pinagare Secondary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Relocation and Maintenance of
62 Mobile Classrooms
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NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
Potchefstroom Dr Kenneth Kaunda Re-electrification of mobile
63 | Secondary classrooms
64 | R.A. Kobue SS Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance and repairs of toilets
65 | Rabodigelo Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of roof and repairs
. Conversion of the classroom to strong
Ramotse Primary .
66 Bojanala room
67 | Ratheo Primary Bojanala Repairs of electricity
Reahola Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Reconstruction of sewer line and
68 minor plumbing maintenance
Rekgonne . .
69 Secfndary Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of mobile
70 | Relebogile Primary Bojanala Repairs of dysfunctional toilets
71 | Rooikopies Primary | Bojanala Maintenance of blown off roof
72 | Saku Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Day to day maintenance
Sebetwane
73 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of toilets
74 | Seboaneng Primary | Bojanala Minor renovations
75 | Sekwati Primary Bojanala Burnt classroom block
76 | Semetsa Secondary | Bojanala Relocation of mobile classrooms
Setumo
77 | Intermediate Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of mobile classrooms
78 | Tau Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Construction of septic tank
Tau Rapulane . .
79 secondF;ry Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
80 | Tetlano Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema Minor repairs and maintenance
Thaba Morula Repairs of dysfunctional toilets and
81 | Secondary Bojanala minor renovations
Thakadu Primary Bojanala Conversion and maintenance of pit
82 toilets
83 | Thamagane Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Day to day maintenance
84 | Thapama Secondary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of roof
Thate Molatlhwa . . .
85 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of building and repairs
86 | Tholo Primary Bojanala Dysfunctional toilets
. Conversion of VIP Toilets to
87 Thuso Thebe High Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati waterbourne toilets
Re-electrification of mobile
88 | Tiang Priamary Dr Kenneth Kaunda classrooms
89 | Tlhakajeng Primary | Ngaka Modiri Molema Construction of septic tank
Ton . -
90 Comgprehensive Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Maintenance of building
Tsela Thuto
91 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Day-to-day maintenance
Tshoganyetso
92 | Priamary Ngaka Modiri Molema Maintenance of toilets
Tshwaraganang
93 | Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Dysfunctional toilets
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NO | PROJECT NAME

DISTRICT

SCOPE

9 Uitspan Primary

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Maintenance of electricity, paint, and

ceiling

Upper Setlagole
95 | Primary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Repairs and renovations

96 | Vlakpan Primary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Maintenance of mobile

Walter Letsie
97 | Secondary

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Conversion of VIP

POI 6,1 CLASSROOMS

NO PROJECT NAME

DISTRICT

SCOPE

A G Malebye
1 | Secondary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

2 Mobile classroom

Aaron Letsapa
2 | Primary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

3 Mobile classroom

Alfred Maubane
3 | Secondary

Bojanala

3 Mobile classrooms

Arefadimeheng
Secondary

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

3 Mobile classrooms

Atlarelang PS

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

Construction of 1 classroom

4

5

6 | BK Guma Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
7 | BKGuma Primary Bojanala 2 Mobile classroom
8 | Bafedile Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
9 | Baitsitse Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
10 | Barseba Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

11 | Bathabile Primary

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

4 Mobile classrooms

12 | Berts Bricks Primary

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

2 Mobile classrooms

13 | Bodibe Secondary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

2 Mobile classrooms

14 | Boikhutsong Primary

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

1 Mobile classroom

15 | Boitemogelo Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
16 | Boitumelong Primary | Dr Kenneth Kaunda 4 Mobile classrooms
17 | Bonwakgogo Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Botlhabelo
2 Mobile cl
18 | Secondary Bojanala obile classrooms

19 | Danville Primary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

2 Mobile classrooms

Dihatshwane

2 Mobile classrooms

20 | Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema

Dikgorwaneng
21 | Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
22 | Dimapo Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

23 | Dingake Primary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

1 Mobile classroom

Diphetogo
24 | Secondary

Bojanala

2 Mobile classroom

Dirankanatla
25 | Comprehensive

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

6 Mobile classrooms

26 | Ebetsamang Primary

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

2 Mobile classroom

Etebare Primary
27 | School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

2 Additional classrooms

28 | Excelsior Primary

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

6 Mobile classrooms
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29 | Floradene Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classroom

30 | Fumane Secondary Bojanala 5 Mobile classrooms

31 | Gaesegwe Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms

32 | Galeshewe Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms

33 | Ganyesa Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
George Madoda .

34 Primagry Ngaka Modiri Molema 6 Mobile classroom
Goitseone .

35 | Mankuroane Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classroom
Green Central

36 | Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms

37 | Hartsrivier Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile Classrooms

38 | Hikane Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
Janie Schreider .

39 | School Dr Kenneth Kaunda 2 Mobile Classrooms
Jerry Mahura

40 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Additional classroom

41 | JM Mosiane Primary | Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom

42 | Kabelo Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms

43 | Kau Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

44 | Kegakilwe Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
Keikanaman .

45 | Primary ° Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classroom

46 | Keipatile Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 3 Mobile classrooms

47 | Keitumetse Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Kgabalatsane

48 | Primary Bojanala 24 Additional Classrooms
Kgalagatsane

49 | Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Kgoke Lesabe

50 | Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms

51 | Khubamelo Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Khunotsoane .

52 | Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile classrooms
Klerksdor .

53 Hoerskoof Dr Kenneth Kaunda 3 Mobile classrooms

54 | Klipgat Secondary Bojanala 5 Mobile classrooms

55 | Kopanang Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 4 Mobile classrooms
Kosea Moeka

56 | Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

57 | Kwalakiitso School Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 6 Mobile Classrooms

58 | Kwa-Mocha Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile Classroom

59 | La Hoff Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 3 Mobile classrooms

60 | Leema Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

61 | Lekang Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms

62 | Lekoko Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms

63 | Lerutlhware Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

64 | Letlape Secondary Bojanala 2 Mobile classrooms
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65 | Loalane Secondary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
66 | Logagane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
67 | Lokgabeng Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 1 Mobile classroom
68 | Lot Phalatse Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
69 | Mabule Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile classrooms
70 | Machana Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
71 | Madiba Combined Ngaka Modiri Molema 5 Mobile classrooms
Madiba Utlwa
72 | Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
73 | Mafikeng Secondary | Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classroom
74 | Magole Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Maheelo .
75 | Intermediate School | Dr Kenneth Kaunda > Mobile classrooms
Makgatlhanong
76 | Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
77 | Malebogo Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
78 | Manamakgotha High | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
79 | Maquassi High Dr Kenneth Kaunda 6 Mobile classrooms
80 | Maquassi Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 2 Mobile classrooms
Marema
81 | Intermediate Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
82 | Marikana Primary Bojanala 2 Mobile classrooms
Maruatona Dikobe
83 | Secondary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
84 | Mathateng Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
85 | Mathibestad Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Matlaisane .
86 | Secondary Bojanala 2 Mobile classrooms
Matlhajanen .
87 Primar:/ ° Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 4 Mobile classrooms
88 | Maumong Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
89 | Meriting Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
90 | Methusele Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile classroom
91 | Mmamitlwa Primary | Bojanala 2 Mobile classroom
92 | Mmamutla Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 3 Mobile classrooms
Mmasempane
93 | Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
94 | Mmatlhame Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
95 | Mmatsheko Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
96 | Moatlhodi Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
97 | Mochware Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 4 Mobile classrooms
98 | Modikwe Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Modimokwane
99 | Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
100 | Modimola Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classroom
101 | Moedwil Combined Bojanala 7 Mobile classroom
102 | Mogono Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
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Moitshoki Mofenyi

103 | Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

104 | Mokasa Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms

105 | Mokhine Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 1 Mobile Classroom

106 | Molale Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Additional classroom

107 | Monnakato Primary | Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

108 | Monthusi Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 4 Mobile c lassroom

109 | Morokweng Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 11 Mobile Classrooms

110 | Mothana Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile Classroom
Mothusi Marumoloa 3 Mobile classroom

111 | Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema

112 | Mothusi Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 4 Mobile classroom

113 | Mothutlong High Bojanala 3 Mobile classroom

114 | Motlhana Primary Bojanala Mobile classroom

115 | Motsitlane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile Classroom

116 | Motswaisa Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile Classrooms

117 | Mphoitsile Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 4 Mobile classroom
Naauwpoort

118 | Secondary Mobile classroom
New Vision

119 | Secondary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Mobile classroom

120 | Nkagisang Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Mobile classroom

121 | Ntolo Secondary Bojanala 2 Additional Classrooms

122 | Oketsang Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Additional classroom
Ontlametse Phalatse

123 | SS Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

124 | Oukasie Primary Bojanala 3 Mobile classroom

125 | Paardekraal PS Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

126 | Phakela Secondary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Construction of 1 classroom

127 | Pudulego Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
Pitso Letlhogile

128 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classroom

129 | Promosa Secondary | Dr Kenneth Kaunda 17 Mobile classroom

130 | RA Kobue Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 mobile classroom

131 | Ramabesa Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3Mobile c lassroom

132 | Ramaina a Phetlhu Ngaka Modiri Molema

133 | Rantlaka Bojanala

134 | Rabidigelo Primary

135 | Ramoshie Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom

136 | Redibone Ngaka Modiri Molema Mobile c lassroom

137 | Rekgonne Secondary | Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile c lassroom

138 | Rekopane Secondary | Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile c lassroom

139 | Retief Primary Bojanala 1 Additional classroom

140 | Ruskraal Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom

141 | Saku PS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms

142 | Saron Primary Bojanala 1 mobile classroom

143 | Sedibathuto PS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms

144 | Sekhing PS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
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145 | Sekolopo PS Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
Senwametsana

146 | Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 5 Mobile c lassroom

147 | Setlagole Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 4 Mobile ¢ lassroom

148 | Signal Hill Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Erection of one classroom

149 | St Cathrine Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom

150 | St Pauls PS Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms

151 | Strathvaal PS Dr Kenneth Kaunda 5 Mobile classrooms
T K Mokonyane

152 | Primary Bojanala Mobile ¢ lassroom

153 | Tetlano Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classroom
Thabo Mpembe

154 | Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile c lassroom

155 | Thamagane Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
The Connie Minchin

156 | Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms

157 | Thelesho Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom

158 | Thuka PS Dr Kenneth Kaunda Construction of 1 classroom

159 | Thulwe Primary Bojanala 5 Mobile classroom

160 | Thutlwane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 4 Mobile c lassroom

161 | Thuto Boswa Primary | Dr Kenneth Kaunda 3 Mobile classrooms
Thuto Lore

162 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 5 Mobile classrooms

163 | Thuto Neo Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 2 Additional classroom

164 | Thutong Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 5 Mobile c lassroom

165 | Thutopele High Bojanala Mobile c lassroom

166 | Tidimane Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
Tiego Tawane

167 | Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema Erection of one mobile classroom

168 | Tiisetso Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom

169 | Tlhagele Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
Tlhapi Mauwe

170 | Primary Bojanala Mobile classroom
Tshebedisano

171 | Secondary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 4 Mobile classrooms

172 | Tshenolo Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 4 Mobile classrooms
Tshipietsile

173 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 1 Mobile classroom

174 | Tshipitota Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Construction of 1 classroom
Tshwaraganelo

175 | Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 4 Mobile classrooms

176 | Tumagole Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Upper Setlagole

177 | Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Mobile ¢ lassroom

178 | Vukuzenzele Primary | Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
Waterkloof Primary

179 | School Bojanala Newly built classrooms
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Waterkloof
180 | Secondary School Bojanala New built classrooms
Western Reefs
181 | Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 2 Mobile classroom
182 | Yusuf Dadoo Primary | Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
Zacharia
Mankgatlheng
183 | Secondary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
POI 6,2 SPECIALIST ROOMS
NO PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
1 | Kgabalatsane Bojanala Construction of a new school
Primary consisting of 24 classrooms
3x Grade R
Multipurpose Hall
1x computer room, 1x library, 1x
science laboratory
NSNP kitchen
Admin
External works
Sports grounds
Guardhouse
Students’ ablution
2 | Waterkloof Primary Bojanala 28x ordinary classrooms Library, 1
Computer room
2x Multipurpose classroom
2x Science plan, 4 Grade R
NSNP kitchen and dining hall
Tuckshop, Change rooms
Sports facilities (soccer field and 2x
combi courts)
Administration block including
associated external works.
3 | Waterkloof Bojanala 25x ordinary classrooms
Secondary Library, Computer room
2x Multipurpose classrooms
2x Science laboratory, NSNP kitchen
A dining hall, Tuckshop
Change rooms, Sports facilities (soccer
field and 2x combi courts)
Administration block including
associated external works.
POI 6,3 NEW SCHOOLS
NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
1 Kgabalatsane Bojanala New School
Primary
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2 Waterkloof Primary Bojanala New School
3 Waterkloof Bojanala New School
Secondary
POI 6,4 GRADER
NO PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
1 | Kgabalatsane Bojanala 3 Grade R classrooms
Primary
4 | Waterkloof Primary | Dr Kenneth Kaunda 4 Grade R Classrooms

Fencing projects
POI 6,5 SECURITY FENCING

NO | PROJECT NAME

DISTRICT

SCOPE

Agelelang Thuto

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Supply and Erection of clear vu fence

1 | Primary

2 | Bagamaidi Primary | Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and Erection of clear vu fence
Bakerville Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erection of security fence

3 | Secondary

4 | Blydeville Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and erection of security fence

5 | Excelsior Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply and Erection of clear vu fence

6 | Gopane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Supply and Erection of clear vu fence

Kgatsheng Thabiso
7 | Secondary

Bojanala

Supply and erection of concrete
palisade fence

Kgosi Kebalipile
8 | Secondary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Supply and Erection of clear vu fence

9 | Lekgolo Primary

Bojanala

Supply and erection of security fence

10 | Leteane Secondary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Supply and Erection of clear vu fence

11 | Logagane Primary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Supply and erection of security fence

Maatla High School

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

Supply and erection of a clear vu

12 security fence
Bojanala Supply and erection of clear vu
13 | Mmakuba Primary security fence
Mokgobola Bojanala Supply and election of diamond
14 | Setshedi Primary security fence
15 | Mosetlha Primary Bojanala Supply and erection of security fence

Motlhamare

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati

16 | Primary Erection of clear vu security fence
Naauwpoort Bojanala

17 | Secondary Supply and erection of security fence
Okomelang Bojanala Supply and erection of security fence

18 | Primary

19 | Omega Prmary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Supply of diamond mesh fence

20 | Promosa Primary

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

Supply and Erection of clear vu fence

21 | Ragogang Primary

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

Supply and Erection of clear vu fence

22 | Ramotse Primary

Bojanala

Supply and erection of security fence

24 | Reipuseng High

Bojanala

Supply and erection of security fence

S G Kgobokoe
25 | Secondary

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Supply and Erection of clear vu fence
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Schoonspruit Dr Kenneth Kaunda Supply and erection of concrete
26 | Secondary palisade fence
Supply and erection of diamond
27 | Senteng Primary Bojanala security fence
28 | Shakung Primaty Bojanala Supply and erection of security fence
Thagamoso Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and Erection of clear vu fence
29 | Primary
Thuto Lesedi Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and Erection of clear vu fence
30 | Primary
Supply and erection of diamond mesh
31 | Tsamma Secondary | Dr Kenneth Kaunda security fence
32 | Uitspan Primary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and Erection of clear vu fence
Vaaloewer Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Supply and Erection of clear vu fence
33 | Combnied
Full Service
POI 6,6 FULL SERVICES
NO | PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
Letlhogile
1 | Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Full Service
2 | Obang Secondary Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Full Service
Mobiles
NO PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
1 | A G Malebye Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classroom
2 | Aaron Letsapa Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile classroom
3 | Alfred Maubane Secondary Bojanala 3 Mobile classrooms
4 | Arefadimeheng Secondary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 3 Mobile classrooms
5 | Atlarelang PS Dr Kenneth Kaunda Construction of 1 classroom
6 | BK Guma Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
7 | BK Guma Primary Bojanala 2 Mobile classroom
8 | Bafedile Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
- . Or Ruth S_egomot5| 2 Mobile classrooms
9 | Baitsitse Primary Mompati
10 | Barseba Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
11 | Bathabile Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 4 Mobile classrooms
12 | Berts Bricks Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 2 Mobile classrooms
13 | Bodibe Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
14 | Boikhutsong Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 1 Mobile classroom
15 | Boitemogelo Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
16 | Boitumelong Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 4 Mobile classrooms
17 | Bonwakgogo Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
18 | Botlhabelo Secondary Bojanala 2 Mobile classrooms
19 | Danville Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
20 | Dihatshwane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
21 | Dikgorwaneng Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
22 | Dimapo Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

Annual Report 2022-2023

. ‘ @ ‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year

Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

NO PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
23 | Dingake Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
24 | Diphetogo Secondary Bojanala 2 Mobile classroom
25 | Dirankanatla Comprehensive | Dr Kenneth Kaunda 6 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
26 | Ebetsamang Primary Mompati 2 Mobile classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
27 | Etebare Primary School Mompati 2 Additional classrooms
28 | Excelsior Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 6 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
29 | Floradene Primary Mompati 2 Mobile classroom
30 | Fumane Secondary Bojanala 5 Mobile classrooms
31 | Gaesegwe Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
2
32 | Galeshewe Primary Mompati Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
33 | Ganyesa Primary Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
34 | George Madoda Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 6 Mobile classroom
Goitseone Mankuroane Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
] . 2 Mobile classroom
35 | Primary Mompati
36 | Green Central Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
37 | Hartsrivier Primary Mompati 2 Mobile Classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
38 | Hikane Primary Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
39 | Janie Schreider School Dr Kenneth Kaunda 2 Mobile Classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
40 | Jerry Mahura Secondary Mompati 2 Additional classroom
41 | JM Mosiane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
42 | Kabelo Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
43 | Kau Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
2 Mobile cl
44 | Kegakilwe Primary Mompati oblie classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
45 | Keikanamang Primary Mompati 2 Mobile classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
3 Mobile cl
46 | Keipatile Primary Mompati obtie classrooms
47 | Keitumetse Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
48 | Kgabalatsane Primary Bojanala 24 Additional Classrooms
49 | Kgalagatsane Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
50 | Kgoke Lesabe Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
51 | Khubamelo Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
52 | Khunotsoane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile classrooms
53 | Klerksdorp Hoerskool Dr Kenneth Kaunda 3 Mobile classrooms
54 | Klipgat Secondary Bojanala 5 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
. . 4 Mobile cl
55 | Kopanang Primary Mompati obile classrooms
56 | Kosea Moeka Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
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Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
57 | Kwalakiitso School Mompati ° 6 Mobile Classrooms
58 | Kwa-Mocha Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile Classroom
59 | La Hoff Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 3 Mobile classrooms
60 | Leema Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
61 | Lekang Primary Mompati ° 2 Mobile classrooms
62 | Lekoko Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
63 | Lerutlhware Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
64 | Letlape Secondary Bojanala 2 Mobile classrooms
65 | Loalane Secondary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
66 | Logagane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
67 | Lokgabeng Primary Mompati ° 1 Mobile classroom
68 | Lot Phalatse Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
69 | Mabule Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile classrooms
70 | Machana Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
71 | Madiba Combined Ngaka Modiri Molema 5 Mobile classrooms
72 | Madiba Utlwa Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
73 | Mafikeng Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classroom
74 | Magole Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Maheelo Intermediate 5 Mobile classrooms
75 | School Dr Kenneth Kaunda
76 | Makgatlhanong Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
77 | Malebogo Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
78 | Manamakgotha High Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
79 | Maquassi High Dr Kenneth Kaunda 6 Mobile classrooms
80 | Maquassi Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 2 Mobile classrooms
81 | Marema Intermediate Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
82 | Marikana Primary Bojanala 2 Mobile classrooms
Maruatona Dikobe
83 | Secondary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
84 | Mathateng Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
85 | Mathibestad Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
86 | Matlaisane Secondary Bojanala 2 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
87 | Matlhajaneng Primary Mompati ° 4 Mobile classrooms
88 | Maumong Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
89 | Meriting Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
90 | Methusele Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile classroom
91 | Mmamitlwa Primary Bojanala 2 Mobile classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
92 | Mmamutla Primary Mompati ° 3 Mobile classrooms
93 | Mmasempane Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
94 | Mmatlhame Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
95 | Mmatsheko Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
96 | Moatlhodi Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
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Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
97 | Mochware Primary Mompati ° 4 Mobile classrooms
98 | Modikwe Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
99 | Modimokwane Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
100 | Modimola Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classroom
101 | Moedwil Combined Bojanala 7 Mobile classroom
102 | Mogono Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
103 | Moitshoki Mofenyi Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
104 | Mokasa Primary Mompati ° 2 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
105 | Mokhine Primary Mompati 1 Mobile Classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
106 | Molale Primary Mompati 2 Additional classroom
107 | Monnakato Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
108 | Monthusi Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 4 Mobile ¢ lassroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
109 | Morokweng Primary Mompati ° 11 Mobile Classrooms
110 | Mothana Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile Classroom
Mothusi Marumoloa 3 Mobile classroom
111 | Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema
Dr Ruth Segomotsi .
112 | Mothusi Primary Mompati ° 4 Mobile classroom
113 | Mothutlong High Bojanala 3 Mobile classroom
114 | Motlhana Primary Bojanala Mobile classroom
115 | Motsitlane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile Classroom
116 | Motswaisa Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile Classrooms
117 | Mphoitsile Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 4 Mobile classroom
118 | Naauwpoort Secondary Mobile classroom
119 | New Vision Secondary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Mobile classroom
120 | Nkagisang Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Mobile classroom
121 | Ntolo Secondary Bojanala 2 Additional Classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
122 | Oketsang Primary Mompati 2 Additional classroom
123 | Ontlametse Phalatse SS Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
124 | Oukasie Primary Bojanala 3 Mobile classroom
125 | Paardekraal PS Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom
126 | Phakela Secondary Dr Kenneth Kaunda Construction of 1 classroom
127 | Pudulego Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
128 | Pitso Letlhogile Secondary Mompati 2 Mobile classroom
129 | Promosa Secondary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 17 Mobile classroom
130 | RA Kobue Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 mobile classroom
131 | Ramabesa Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3Mobile c lassroom
132 | Ramaina a Phetlhu Ngaka Modiri Molema
133 | Rantlaka Bojanala
134 | Rabidigelo Primary
135 | Ramoshie Primary Bojanala Mobile ¢ lassroom

Annual Report 2022-2023

‘ ‘ . ’ Let’s Grow North West Together




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year

Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

NO PROJECT NAME DISTRICT SCOPE
136 | Redibone Ngaka Modiri Molema Mobile ¢ lassroom
137 | Rekgonne Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile c lassroom
138 | Rekopane Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile c lassroom
139 | Retief Primary Bojanala 1 Additional classroom
140 | Ruskraal Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
141 | Saku PS Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
142 | Saron Primary Bojanala 1 mobile classroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
143 | Sedibathuto PS Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
144 | Sekhing PS Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
145 | Sekolopo PS Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
146 | Senwametsana Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 5 Mobile c lassroom
147 | Setlagole Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 4 Mobile c lassroom
148 | Signal Hill Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Erection of one classroom
149 | St Cathrine Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
150 | St Pauls PS Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
151 | Strathvaal PS Dr Kenneth Kaunda 5 Mobile classrooms
152 | T K Mokonyane Primary Bojanala Mobile ¢ lassroom
153 | Tetlano Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classroom
154 | Thabo Mpembe Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 3 Mobile c lassroom
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
155 | Thamagane Primary Mompati 2 Mobile classrooms
156 | The Connie Minchin Primary | Ngaka Modiri Molema 2 Mobile classrooms
157 | Thelesho Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
158 | Thuka PS Dr Kenneth Kaunda Construction of 1 classroom
159 | Thulwe Primary Bojanala 5 Mobile classroom
160 | Thutlwane Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 4 Mobile c lassroom
161 | Thuto Boswa Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 3 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
162 | Thuto Lore Secondary Mompati 5 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
163 | Thuto Neo Primary Mompati 2 Additional classroom
164 | Thutong Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 5 Mobile c lassroom
165 | Thutopele High Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
166 | Tidimane Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
167 | Tiego Tawane Secondary Ngaka Modiri Molema Erection of one mobile classroom
168 | Tiisetso Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
169 | Tlhagele Primary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
170 | Tlhapi Mauwe Primary Bojanala Mobile classroom
171 | Tshebedisano Secondary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 4 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
172 | Tshenolo Primary Mompati 4 Mobile classrooms
Dr Ruth Segomotsi
173 | Tshipietsile Secondary Mompati 1 Mobile classroom
174 | Tshipitota Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Construction of 1 classroom
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Dr Ruth Segomotsi

175 | Tshwaraganelo Primary Mompati 4 Mobile classrooms

176 | Tumagole Primary Bojanala 1 Mobile classroom

177 | Upper Setlagole Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema Mobile c lassroom

178 | Vukuzenzele Primary Bojanala Mobile ¢ lassroom

179 | Waterkloof Primary School Bojanala Newly built classrooms
Waterkloof Secondary

180 | School Bojanala New built classrooms

181 | Western Reefs Primary Dr Kenneth Kaunda 2 Mobile classroom

182 | Yusuf Dadoo Primary Ngaka Modiri Molema 1 Mobile classroom
Zacharia Mankgatlheng

183 | Secondary Bojanala Mobile c lassroom
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1. INTRODUCTION

The department pledges to maintain the highest standards of governance is fundamental to
the management of public finances and resources. Users want assurance that the department
has good governance structures in place to utilize the state resources effectively, efficiently,

and economically,which is funded by the taxpayer.

2. RISK MANAGEMENT
° North West Department of Education has an approved Risk Management Policy and

Risk Management Strategy which outlines how the Accounting Officer will ensure
effective implementation of risk management in the Department. The Risk Management
Strategy illustrates the period and officials responsible to drive risk management
processes. The Accounting Officer is also responsible to create enabling environment
where risk management processes will operate. The Risk Management policy outlines
the approachthat the Department will take to ensure effective risk management. Risk
management policy and Strategy are developed in consultation with Public Sector Risk
Management Framework.The policies are adopted by Risk Management Committee and

approved by the Accounting Officer.

e Riskassessments are conducted annually at a Strategic level, Operational level and AOPO
(Performance Information). The Strategic Risks are performed in line with the Annual
Performance Plan during Strategic Lekgotla. The assessments are done based on the risk
management plan as outlined on the Departmental calendar. Risk methodologies (Risk
management policy, Risk managementStrategy, Risk management Implementation plan,

and Department’s risk appetite) are complied with when doing Risk assessment.

e Risk Management unit is responsible for facilitation of risk assessments and
Departmental managers are the risk owners. Risk owners are responsible to implement
action plans/treatment plans on risk registers within the agreed dates. Continuous
monitoring is done to ensure implementation of action plans and elimination/reduction
of the risk. The Departmental risk register includes emerging risks and their treatment

plans.

e The Accounting Officer has formally appointed a Risk Management Committee which

comprises of:

v"Independent Chairperson
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v"Independent Deputy Chairperson
v' External Member

v" 3 Deputy Director Generals
The following are standing invitees of the Risk Management Committee meetings:
v Internal Audit (Invitee)
v Anti-Fraud and Corruption (Invitee)
v Provincial Treasury (Invitee)

An approved Schedule of Risk management committee meetings for the financial year 2023/24
is in place. Risk Committee meetings sits quarterly to discuss progress on Risk Management
Implementation plan and progress in implementation of agreed action/treatment plans on

Strategic risk register.

e Risk management unit reports to the Audit Committee on implementation of Risk
Management in theDepartment. Audit Committee. Audit committee as an independent
oversight provides an independent and objective view of the Department’s risk

management effectiveness.

e The committee also ensures that relevant risks identified, and treatment plans are adequate.

e Risk management unit reports to different stakeholders (Risk management Committee,
Audit Committee, and Audit Steering Committee). When monitoring risk registers, the
unit ensures that management implement the agreed action plans to minimise the risk
and enhance Department’s performance. Monitoring of Strategic risk register for the
financial year 2023/24 is done quarterly.

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

A brief description of:

The department’s fraud and prevention plan and the progress made in implementing the

fraudprevention plan
The prevention controls include the existing financial and other controls and checking
mechanisms as prescribed in the systems, policies, procedures, rules, and regulations

of the department. In terms of the Public Service Regulations of 2016 (PSR 16), it is the
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responsibility of all officials to report allegations or incidents of fraud and corruption
to the Superiors, Managers, SMS, or the Accounting Officer. Furthermore, in terms of
the AmendedProtected Disclosure Act, 05, of 2017, it provides protection of both
former and current employees and workers who blow the whistle from occupational
detriment by employers whenmaking certain protected disclosures.
4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Brief description on the processes implemented to minimise conflict of interest.

o Usage of full CSD (Central Supplier Database) Report.

o Completion of SBD 4 form is an administrative requirement for all service
providers. In this form service providers indicate whether they are government

employees or have any relations with government employees.
o Declaration of Interest forms are completed by officials
o Financial Disclosures are performed by all SMS members annually.
Discuss the process followed where conflict of interest has been identified.

o Service providers are disqualified from the procurement process immediately

when conflict of interest is identified.

o Names and all the relevant information of identified employees with conflict of
interest are submitted to Labour Relations Directorate to make necessary
investigations and thereafter make recommendations that are implemented as
and when they are received.

5. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Department is utilising the Code of Conduct as outlined in Chapter 2 of the Public
Service Regulations, 2001 in order to promote a high standard of professional ethics in
the workplace. When Public Service Act Employees breach any of the provisions of the
Code of Conduct, the Disciplinary Code and Procedures in accordance with PSCBC
Resolution 1 of 2003 and Chapter 7 of the SMS handbook is utilised. When CS Educators
breach any of the provisions of section 17 and 18 of the Employment of Educators Act
76 of 1998, the Disciplinary Code and Procedures in accordance with Schedule 2 of Act
76 of 1998 is utilised.
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6. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
Issues:

The section OHS, currently known as SHERQ Management Section, encompasses Safety,
Health, Environment, Risk and Quality Management. It is one of the Four Pillars within
the Employee Health and Wellness Directorate, and is informed by the Occupational
Health and Safety Act, 85 of 1993 as well as the Compensation for Occupational Injuries
and Diseases Act, 130 of 1993 The other three pillars being HIV, TB and STI Management,
Wellness Management and Health and Productivity Management Pillars. All these Pillars
derive their mandate from the Employee Health and Wellness Strategic Framework,
2019.

There are issues within the Pillar, however, one would like to highlight some positive developments:
e Recent appointment of Assistant Director responsible for the SHERQ Management Pillar.
e Process is in place to re-establish structures like nomination and Statutory appointments of:
- SHE Representatives, to form OHS Committees
- Senior and Middle Managers as Section 16.2 Appointees
- Employee Health and Wellness Steering Committee
e Consultations have already been made with the Labour Unions, with regard to their participation
in the Health and Safety Committees
There are however still some few challenges relating to:
e Injury on duty (I0ODs) — delay of reporting of incidents in most instances by employees, and on
payment of the health professionals. Through intensified COIDA Information Sessions and
development of the Standard Operating procedures in this regard employees will be able to know

the procedure and report incidents and accidents on time.

Non-Compliant Buildings, leading to possible hazards. With reports to be compiled and. presented from the
inspections in progress, hazards would be minimized with the intervention of our Infrastructure Chief
Directorate
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

9. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

Supply chain management

° There were no unsolicited bids concluded within the financial year

° Supply Chain Management has systems and processes established to prevent

irregularexpenditure, such as:

e  Appointment of SCM Committees to recommend the approval of Bid

Specifications,to evaluate and adjudicate bids.

e Segregation of duties for the sourcing, closing, evaluating, and adjudicating

quotations, which is also accompanied by financial delegations.

The department has developed Standard Operating Procedure for each process
within Supply Chain Management and conducted SCM training to all officials of the
department involved in the SCM process, to understand the process and prevent

irregular expenditure.
SCM appointed 14 personnel on Contract to beef up the directorate.

SCM has updated the SCM policy, delegations and compliance checklist, to
enhance compliance and prevent irregular expenditure.

Challenges experienced in SCM and how they were resolved

e Supply Chain Management has experienced challenges of no tender

appointments, due to non-compliance of service providers

e Supply Chain Management still has capacity challenges, due to the

inadequacy of the structure and capacity within SCM personnel.

10. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

The Internal Audit Unit operates under the control and guidance of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee played an important role in ensuring that the Unit functions according to good governance,
Internal Audit standards as set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Audit Committee also approved and
monitored conformance and implementation of the Internal Audit Charter and Risk based Internal Audit
Plan.

Key activities and objectives of the internal audit

Internal Audit provides management with independent, objective assurance and consulting services designed

to add value and to continuously improve the operations of the Department. It should assist the Department

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘@‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together
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to accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control processes.
The controls subject to evaluation encompassed the following:

e The Information systems environment;

e The reliability and integrity of financial and operational information;
e Effectiveness of operations;

e Safeguarding of assets; and

e Compliance with laws, regulations and controls.

The Internal audit function is further charged with the responsibility of assisting the Accounting Officer in
achieving the objectives of the Department by evaluating and developing recommendations for the
enhancement or improvement of the processes through which:

= Objectives and values are established and communicated;
=  The accomplishment of objectives is monitored;
= Accountability is ensured; and

= Corporate values are preserved.

For the financial year under review internal audit issued over 21 reports comprising of both assurance and
consulting engagements. The reports issued included Pre-audit of tenders above R10 million to assist the
Department to proactively prevent and detect instances of non-compliance or irregularities. The issued
reports further covered Ordering and Delivery of Learner Teacher Support Material, Supply Chain
Management processes, Infrastructure delivery, Status of Corporate Governance in the Department, Risk
Management Consulting, Review of draft Financial statements and Annual Report; Performance Information;
Transfer payments; Follow up on significant findings including monthly follow up on the Post Audit Action Plan

implementation.
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
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11. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Internal Audit Unit operates under the control and guidance of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee played an important role in ensuring that the Unit functions according to good governance,
Internal Audit standards as set by the Institute of Internal Auditors and recognised by Treasury Regulations.
Audit Committee also approved and monitored conformance and implementation of the Internal Audit

Charter and Risk based Internal Audit Plan.

Key activities and objectives of the internal audit

Internal Audit provides Management with independent, objective assurance and consulting services designed
to add value and to continuously improve the operations of the Department. It assist the Department to
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control processes. The following key activities are

performed in this regard:

Assess and make appropriate recommendations for improving governance processes in achieving the

Department’s objectives;

Evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and contribute to the improvement of the risk

management process;

Assist the Accounting Officer in maintaining efficient and effective controls by evaluating those controls to
determine their effectiveness and efficiency, and by developing recommendations for enhancement or

improvement; and

Internal Audit work completed during the year under review for the Department included assurance and

consulting engagements.

For the financial year under review 15 audit projects comprising of both assurance and consulting
engagements were conducted. Work performed was based on a risk based internal audit plan and included
Risk Management Audit; Supply Chain Management; Financial statements review; report on pre-determined
objectives; transfer payments; conditional grants; IT governance and follow up audits for both internal and
external assurance providers. Follow up on significant findings including monthly follow up on the Post Audit

Action Plan implementation was performed.
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.
Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38 (1) (a) (ii)
of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports
that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference, has regulated its affairs in compliance with these

Terms and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to provide assurance that assets are safeguarded and that
liabilities and working capital are effectively managed. In line with the PFMA requirements, Internal Audit
and the Auditor General South Africa (AGSA) provide the Audit Committee and Management with

assurance that the internal controls are adequate and effective.

This is achievement by means of evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls implemented
by Management to mitigate the identified risks to acceptable levels, as well as the notification of corrective

actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and reporting such to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has evaluated the Internal Audit function and is satisfied that Internal Audit has
properly discharged its functions and responsibilities during the year under review. They continue to
maintain an effective internal quality assurance programme that covers all aspects of internal audit activity

as required by the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

The following remains areas of concern: for the Audit Committee:

= Although the Department has made efforts in investigating irregular expenditure, implementation of
these reports and condonation requires attention;

= Slow implementation of control strategies to proactively prevent expenditure in excess of contract
amount mainly for infrastructure projects (Contract Management);

= None functional Departmental Ethics Committee to promote ethical values and culture;

= Recurring findings pertaining to immovable assets registers despite assurance from the sourced

Experts/ Consultants that they are error free;

Annual Report 2022-2023 . “ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together
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= Recurring findings pertaining to prepayments and advances;
= Listings informing the reported achievements in the APR require attention;
= Effective monitoring of funds transferred to schools to minimise inefficiencies and irregularities;
=  Transfer of immovable assets in terms of Section 42 to Public Works;
=  Maintenance of proper record keeping;
= Slow implementation of corrective measures to address both internal and external audit findings; and
= |nternal Audit not sufficiently capacitated relative to the size of the Department.

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report

The Department has submitted monthly and quarterly reports to Provincial Treasury as required by the

PFMA. The monitoring of performance information was periodically reviewed.

Evaluation and Review of Financial Statements and the Annual Report
The Audit committee has:

* Reviewed the unaudited financial statements with due consideration of the independent assurance

provided by Internal Audit (1A) as well as the assurance provided by Management;

* Reviewed changes to accounting policies and practices as reported in the Annual Financial

Statements;
* Reviewed the Department’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

* Reviewed the basis for the going concern assumption, including any financial sustainability risks

and issues;

* Reviewed the unaudited information on predetermined objectives with due consideration of the

independent assurance provided by IA as well as the assurance provided by Management;

* Reviewed the Auditor General South Africa (AGSA) audit and Management reports, with due

consideration of the responses provided by Management; and

* Reviewed the audited financial statements as well as the information on predetermined objectives

to be included in the annual report for any significant adjustments resulting from the audit.
Auditor General’s Report

The Committee concurs with and accepts the conclusion of the AGSA on the Annual Financial Statements
and is of the view that the Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of

the AGSA.

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘. ’ Let’s Grow North West Together
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Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

The Committee would like to thank the Executive Authority, the Accounting Officer and Management for

their support throughout the year. We urge the Department to accept the audit outcome of the Auditor

General. The Committee is confident that through the guidance it provides as well as the Leadership of the

Department and implementation of assurance providers’ recommendations by Management, the internal

control system and good governance practices will improve and translate to a positive audit outcome.

Ms Mmathebe Annah Faith Moja
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Department of Education North West

12.B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The following table has been completed in accordance with the compliance to the BBBEE

requirements of the BBBEE Act of 2013 and as determined by the Department of Trade and Industry.

Levels 1 —8) with regards to the following:

Has the Department / Public Entity applied any relevant Code of Good Practice (B-BBEE Certificate

for the issuing of licences,
concessions, or other
authorisations in respect of
economic activity in terms of any

law?

Criteria e Discussion
Yes / No
Determining qualification criteria | N/A N/A
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Developing and implementinga | Yes The department applies awarding of BBBEE
preferential procurement policy? points as per Preferential Procurement
Regulations. Serviceproviders doing business
with the department are requested to submit
compliant BBBEE certificates or affidavit, which
are then evaluated to determine points service

providers are eligible to score.

Determining qualification criteria | N/A N/A
forthe sale of state-owned

enterprises?

Developing criteria for entering | N/A N/A
intopartnerships with the private

sector?

Determining criteria for the N/A N/A
awardingof incentives, grants and
investment schemes in support of
Broad Based Black Economic

Empowerment?

13, REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PRESIDENTIAL YOUTH EMPLOYMENTINITIATIVE

PYEl is a multi-sector action plan/ programme directed at addressing South Africa's chronic youth
unemployment challenge. Of the 1.2 million young people entering the labour market each year, more

than 65% remain outside of employment, education, and training.

It forms part of the Presidential Employment Stimulus (PES), seeking to mitigate the devastating
economic challenges brought about by the COVID 19 pandemic. In North West Province, the initiative
saw 19 196 young men and women securing job opportunities in 1471public schools. The province
appointed 12329 Educator Assistants (EAs) and 6867 General School Assistants. 09 Former model C
schools opted not to participate in the project. Recruitment and selection commenced in October
2021 and employed youth assumed duty on the 2nd of November 2021. The projectcommenced in
November 2021 and the appointed youth were contracted for 05 months only(November 2021 to
March 2022). The tables below give further information on gender disaggregation and the geographic

spread of the appointments:
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The table below indicates those who left before the end of the term.

TABLE: 2 ATTRITION

Province of North West

DISTRICT Number Exited EAs | Number Exited Total Reasons provided
GSAs Exited

Male Female Male Female
BOJANALA | 71 18 27 18 134 Death, Resignation,
DRKK 80 16 50 8 154 Abscondments, dismissal and
DRRSM 25 7 17 7 56 other
NMM 34 10 8 6 58
TOTAL 210 51 102 39 402
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

1. REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Report of the auditor-general to North West Provincial Legislature on vote no. 8: Department of
Education

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified opinion

1.

| have audited the financial statements of the North West Department of Education set out on pages
235 to 288, which comprise the appropriation statement, statement of financial position as at 31 March
2023, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow statement
for the year then ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section
of this auditor’s report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the North West Department of Education as at 31 March 2023, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Modified

Cash Standard (MCS) prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act 9 of 2021) (Dora).

Basis for qualified opinion

Immovable tangible capital assets

3.

Opening balance to non-residential buildings were recorded in contravention with Chapter 11 of the
MCS, Capital Assets. The fixed asset register did not agree with underlying records resulting in non-
residential buildings disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements being overstated by R190 499 937.
Furthermore, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had
appropriately accounted for completed projects due to the status of the accounting records and the
non-submission of information in support of these assets. | was unable to confirm the completed
projects by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments to
immovable tangible capital assets of R4 527 877 000 (2022: R4 345 706 000) as disclosed in notes 39 to
the financial statements were necessary.
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Immovable tangible capital assets: Capital work-in-progress

4. |was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had appropriately
accounted for capital work in progress due to non-submission of information in support of these assets.
| was unable to confirm the capital work in progress by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable
to determine whether any adjustments to capital work-in-progress of R1 312 607 000 (2022: R956 651
000) as disclosed in notes 26.2 to the financial statements were necessary.

Prior period errors

5. Details pertaining to the nature of the prior period errors as well as the reasons why the prior period
corrections were required have not been disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, as required
by Chapter 4 of the MCS Accounting Policies, Estimates and Errors. In addition, | was unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence for those prior period errors disclosed in note 28 to the financial
statements, as the supporting information was not provided. | was unable to confirm these disclosures
by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments were
necessary to the prior period errors disclosed in the financial statements.

Goods and services

6. During 2022, goods and services were not accounted for as required by MCS Chapter 8, Expenditure.
Payments were made for goods not yet received at year end. Consequently, the corresponding figure of
goods and services as disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements was overstated by R599 583 749,
while prepayments were understated by the same amount. My opinion on the current year financial
statements is modified because of the effect of this matter on the comparability of goods and services
for the current year.

7. lwas unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for expenditure on goods and services due
to non-submission of information. | was unable to confirm these goods and services by alternative
means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustment to goods and services of R1
612 805 000 as disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements was necessary.

Expenditure for capital assets

8. During 2022, expenditure for capital assets was not accounted for as required by MCS Chapter 8,
Expenditure. Payments were made for goods not yet received at year end. Consequently, the
corresponding figure of expenditure for capital assets as disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements
was overstated by R240 724 078, while prepayments were understated by the same amount. My
opinion on the current year financial statements is modified because of the effect of this matter on the
comparability of expenditure for capital assets for the current year.

Prepayments and advances

9. Adequate systems were not in place to record prepayments and advances as required by MCS Chapter
9, General Departmental Assets and Liabilities. Prepayments and advances were not recorded in the
current and previous year. This resulted in prepayments and advances being understated by R840 307
827 (2022: R840 307 827).
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Commitments

10.

Buildings and other fixed structures were recorded in contravention with Chapter 14 of the MCS,
Provisions and Contingents. Buildings and other fixed structures register did not agree with underlying
records resulting in note 17 to the financial statements being overstated by R190 684 874.
Furthermore, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had
appropriately accounted for capital commitments due to the status of the accounting records and non-
submission of information. In addition, | was unable to confirm these capital commitments by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments to commitments
of R1 637 799 000 as disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements were necessary.

Irregular expenditure

11.

Not all irregular expenditure was included in note 21 to the financial statements, as required by section
40(3)(b)(i) of the PFMA. Payments made in contravention of supply chain management requirements,
which resulted in irregular expenditure of R179 305 602 were not included in note 21 to the financial

statements.

Context for opinion

12.

13.

14.

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the responsibilities of the auditor-
general for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

| am independent of the department in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that are relevant to my
audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my

qualified opinion.

Emphasis of matter

15.

| draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

16. As disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2022 were

restated as a result of errors in the financial statements of the department for the year ended 31 March
2023.

Other matters

17. 1 draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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Unaudited irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure

18. On 23 December 2022, the National Treasury issued Instruction Note 4 of 2022-23, which came into

effect on 3 January 2023, in terms of section 76(1)(b), (e) and (f), 2(e) and (4)(a) and (c) of the PFMA.
The instruction note deals with the PFMA compliance and reporting framework and addresses,
amongst others, the disclosure of unauthorised expenditure, irregular expenditure and fruitless and
wasteful expenditure. Irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred in prior
financial years and not yet addressed no longer need to be disclosed in either the annual report or the
disclosure notes to the annual financial statements. Only the current year and prior year figures are
disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements of the North West Department of Education.
Movements in respect of irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure also no longer
need to be disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements. The disclosure of these
movements (e.g. condoned, recoverable, removed, written off, under assessment, under determination
and under investigation) is now included as part of the other information in the annual report of the
department. | do not express an opinion on the disclosure of irregular expenditure and fruitless and
wasteful expenditure in the annual report.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

19. The supplementary information set out on pages 281 to 288 does not form part of the financial

statements and is presented as additional information. | have not audited these schedules and,
accordingly, | do not express an opinion on them.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

20. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

21.

statements in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard (MCS) prescribed by National Treasury and

the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue
Act 9 of 2021) (Dora); and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
department’s ability to continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going
concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure
either intends to liquidate the department or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements

22. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

23. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the
annexure to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

24 . In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms
thereof, | must audit and report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance against
predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. The
accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual performance report.

25. | selected the following programmes presented in the annual performance report for the year ended 31
March 2023 for auditing. | selected programmes that measures the department’s performance on its
primary mandated functions and that are of significant national, community or public interest.

Programme Page Purpose
numbers
Programme 2: Public ordinary 66-81 To provide public ordinary education from
schools Grades 1to 12, in accordance
with the South African Schools Act and
white paper 6 on inclusive education (e-
learning is also included)
To provide Early childhood development (ECD)
at the Grade R and
. Pre-Grade R in accordance with white paper 5
Programme 5: Early childhood 91-%6 S
(e-learning included)
development
Programme 6: Infrastructure 97-107 To .p.r(.)vide and maintain infrastructure
development facilities for schools and non-schools

26. | evaluated the reported performance information for the selected programmes against the criteria
developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general
notice. When an annual performance report is prepared using these criteria, it provides useful and
reliable information and insights to users on the department’s planning and delivery on its mandate
and objectives.

27. | performed procedures to test whether:

* the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the
department’s mandate and the achievement of its planned objectives

* theindicators are well defined and verifiable to ensure that they are easy to understand and apply
consistently and that | can confirm the methods and processes to be used for measuring
achievements
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* the targets can be linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific, time bound
and measurable to ensure that it is easy to understand what should be delivered and by when, the
required level of performance as well as how performance will be evaluated

* theindicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as what was
committed to in the approved initial or revised planning documents

* the reported performance information is presented in the annual performance report in the
prescribed manner

* there are adequate supporting evidence for the achievements reported and for the reasons
provided for any over- or underachievement of targets.

28. | performed the procedures for the purpose of reporting material findings only; and not to express an
assurance opinion.

29. The material findings on the performance information of the selected programmes are as follows:
Programme 2: Public ordinary schools

SOl 202: Number of learners in public ordinary schools benefiting from the no fee school Policy

30. An achievement of 740478 was reported against a target of 733705. | could not determine if the
reported achievement was correct, as adequate supporting evidence was not provided for auditing.
Consequently, the achievement might be more or less than reported and was not reliable for
determining if the target had been achieved.

SOI 203: Percentage of Funza Lushaka bursary holders placed in schools within six months upon
completion of studies or upon confirmation that the bursar has completed studies

31. I could not determine if the reasons for the differences between the reported achievement of 30%
against the planned target of 100% were correct, as adequate supporting evidence was not provided
for auditing. Consequently, | could not confirm the reliability of the reasons for the reported
underachievement. In addition, some supporting evidence was not provided for auditing of the
reported achievement of 30%, where it was, | identified material differences between the actual and
reported achievements. Consequently, the achievement might be more or less than reported and was
not reliable for determining if the target had been achieved.

Programme 5: Early childhood development

SOI1 501: Number of public schools that offer Grade R

32. | could not determine if the reasons for the differences between the reported achievement of 1019
against the planned target of 1020 were correct, as adequate supporting evidence was not provided for
auditing. Consequently, | could not confirm the reliability of the reasons for the reported
underachievement.
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Programme 6: Infrastructure development

SOI1 602: Number of public schools provided with electricity infrastructure

33. An achievement of three (3) was reported against a target of eight (8) but the audit evidence showed
the actual achievement to be four (4). The achievement against the target was better than reported. In
addition, | could not determine if the reasons for the differences between the reported achievement
against the planned target were correct, as adequate supporting evidence was not provided for
auditing. Consequently, | could not confirm the reliability of the reasons for the reported
underachievement.

Various indicators

34. 1 could not determine if the reasons for the differences between the reported achievements against the
planned targets were correct, as adequate supporting evidence was not provided for auditing for the
following indicators:

Indicator Target Reported
achievement

SOI 601: Number of public schools provided with 71 28

water infrastructure

SOI 603: Number of public schools supplied with 25 31

sanitation facilities

SOI 604: Number of schools provided with new or 5 3

additional boarding facilities

SOI 605: Number of schools where scheduled 180 97

maintenance projects were completed

Other matters
35. | draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

36. The annual performance report includes information on reported achievements against planned targets
and provides explanations for over- and under achievements. This information should be considered in
the context of the material findings on the reported performance information.

37. The department plays a key role in delivering services to South Africans. The annual performance
report includes the following service delivery achievements against planned targets:
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Key service delivery indicators not Planned target Reported achievement

achieved

Programme 2: Public ordinary schools
Targets achieved: 50%

Budget spent: 98%

Number of schools provided with

. . 25 22
multimedia resources

Number of learners in public ordinary
schools benefiting from the no fee school 733705 740478

policy

Percentage of Funza Lushaka bursary
holders placed in schools within six months
upon completion of studies or upon 100% 30%
confirmation that the bursar has completed
studies

Programme 5: Early childhood development
Targets achieved: 33%

Budget spent: 80%

Number of public schools that offer Grade R | 1020 1019

Programme 6: Infrastructure development
Targets achieved: 18%

Budget spent: 73%

Number of public schools provided with

. 71 28
water infrastructure

Number of public schools provided with
electricity infrastructure

Number of public schools supplied with

. e 25 31
sanitation facilities

Number of schools provided with new or
additional boarding facilities

Number of schools where scheduled

. . 180 97
maintenance projects were completed

38. Reasons for the underachievement of targets are included in the annual performance report on pages
56 to 114.

Material misstatements

39. lidentified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These
material misstatements were in the reported performance information of Programme 2: Public
ordinary schools, Programme 5: Early childhood development and Programme 6: Infrastructure
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development. Management did not correct the misstatements and | reported material findings in this
regard.

Report on compliance with legislation

40. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | must audit and report on
compliance with applicable legislation relating to financial matters, financial management and other
related matters. The accounting officer is responsible for the department’s compliance with legislation.

41. | performed procedures to test compliance with selected requirements in key legislation in accordance
with the findings engagement methodology of the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA). This
engagement is not an assurance engagement. Accordingly, | do not express an assurance opinion or
conclusion.

42. Through an established AGSA process, | selected requirements in key legislation for compliance testing
that are relevant to the financial and performance management of the department, clear to allow
consistent measurement and evaluation, while also sufficiently detailed and readily available to report
in an understandable manner. The selected legislative requirements are included in the annexure to
this auditor’s report.

43. The material findings on compliance with the selected legislative requirements, presented per
compliance theme, are as follows:

Annual financial statements, performance and annual report

44 The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required by section 40(1) (a)
and (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements identified by the auditors in the submitted financial
statements were not adequately corrected and the supporting records could not be provided
subsequently, which resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified opinion.

Expenditure management

45. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section
38(1) (c) (ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. As reported in the basis for qualified opinion the
R4 380 000 as disclosed in note 30 of the financial statements does not reflect the full extent of the
irregular expenditure incurred. The majority of the irregular expenditure disclosed in the financial
statements was caused by the procurement of goods and services without obtaining the required
number of quotations. Irregular expenditure amounting to R45 258 401 was incurred on repairs and
renovations and additions at Thulare Secondary School.

46. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the resources of the department were
utilised economically, as required by section 38(1) (b) of the PFMA.
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Asset management

47 . Proper control systems were not in place at the department to ensure the maintenance of assets, as
required by treasury regulation 10.1.1(a).

48. Preventative mechanisms were not in place to eliminate loss, wastage of assets, as required by treasury
regulation 10.1.1(a).

Strategic planning and performance management

49. Specific information systems were not implemented to enable the monitoring of progress made
towards achieving targets, core objectives and service delivery as required by public service regulation
25(1)(e)(i) and (iii).

Procurement and contract management

50. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that all contracts were awarded in
accordance with the legislative requirements as the required documentation was not submitted for
audit. Similar limitations were also reported in the prior year.

51. Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders based on pre-qualification criteria that were not
stipulated in the original invitation for bidding and quotations, in contravention of the 2017 Preferential
procurement regulation 4(1) and 4(2).

Consequence management

52. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that investigations were conducted into all
allegations of financial misconduct committed by officials, as required by treasury regulation 4.1.1.

53. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that disciplinary steps were taken against
officials who incurred irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure as required by section
38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA. This was due to proper and complete records that were not maintained as
evidence to support the investigations into irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

Transfers and subsidies

54. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that appropriate measures were
maintained to ensure that transfers and subsidies to entities were applied for their intended purposes,
as required by treasury regulation 8.4.1

Other information in the annual report

55. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information referred to does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those
selected programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported
on in this auditor’s report.
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56. My opinion on the financial statements, the report on the audit of the annual performance report and
the report on compliance with legislation, do not cover the other information included in the annual
report and | do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

57. My responsibility is to read this other information and, in doing so, consider whether it is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected programmes presented in the annual
performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

58. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. After | receive and read
this information, and if | conclude that there is a material misstatement, | am required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If
the other information is not corrected, | may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an
amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

59. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance
report and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form
of assurance on it.

60. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in
the basis for the qualified opinion and, the material findings on the annual performance report and the
material findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

61. There is a lack of effective leadership (instability in key positions) there is no consequence or
performance management for poor work performance.

62. Inadequate controls over records management as support not obtained/inadequate for immovable
assets cost, commitments, goods and services, performance reporting and procurement and contract
management due to the department not having a proper registry/premises for storing information, and
documents are sometimes kept at offices with no proper referencing — due to this, documents become
irretrievable.

63. There is also a lack of cooperation between the department and districts and no clear definition of the
duties of district coordinators and infrastructure unit, as a result, information which should be
submitted is not coming through from the districts.

64. The immovable asset register and commitment register were not timeously updated to provide
sufficient details on the individual assets to determine the value of the assets.

Material irregularities

65. In accordance with the PAA and the Material Irregularity Regulations, | have a responsibility to report
on material irregularities identified during the audit the status of material irregularities as previously
reported in the auditor’s report.
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Material irregularities identified during the audit

66. | identified a material irregularity during the audit and notified the accounting officer, as required by
material irregularity regulation 3(2). By the date of this auditor’s report, the response of the accounting
officer was not yet due. This material irregularity will be included in next year’s auditor’s report.

Status of previously reported material irregularities
Overpayment of professional fees at Lykso Primary School (2020-21)

67. The department entered into an agreement for the construction of hostels, residential administration
building and dining hall, electrical and mechanical installations at Lykso Primary School (Phase 2). The
project started in March 2014 with a revised completion date of August 2019, however as at June 2021
the project was still in progress. The department did not ensure that the carrying over of subtotals was
correctly done on fee accounts for payment of professional services rendered for some payment
certificates. This resulted in an overpayment made to a service provider of R1 096 017, which is in
contravention with treasury regulation 8.1.1, which states that the accounting officer of an institution
must ensure that internal procedures and internal control measures are in place for payment approval
and processing. These internal controls should provide reasonable assurance that all expenditure is
necessary, appropriate, paid promptly and is adequately recorded and reported.

68. The accounting officer was notified of this material irregularity on 22 February 2022 and invited to
make a written submission on the actions taken or to be taken to address the matter. In March 2022,
the accounting officer committed to investigate the matter and then take appropriate actions. The
accounting officer finalised his investigation in August 2022, however, disciplinary processes could not
be carried out as those found to be responsible for the overpayment are no longer in the employment
of the department or any other entity of the state. The total financial loss was recovered from the
service provider on 27 January 2023. The accounting officer has strengthened controls by introducing
new improved standard operating procedures and provided necessary training to all users to address
the root cause that led to the material irregularity. Therefore, the material irregularity is resolved.

Rustenburg
31 July 2023

A UDITOR-GENERAL
SOUTH A FRICA

Auditing to build public confidence
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Annexure to the auditor’s report

The annexure includes the following:
e the auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

* the selected legislative requirements for compliance testing.

Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
Professional judgement and professional scepticism

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures performed on reported
performance information for selected programmes and on the department’s compliance with selected
requirements in key legislation.

Financial statements

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s
report, | also:
* identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control

* obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the department’s internal control

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made

* conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
department to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the
financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a department to cease operating as a
going concern

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Communication with those charged with governance

| communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

| also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Compliance with legislation — selected legislative requirements

The selected legislative requirements are as follows:

Legislation

Sections or regulations

Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 1999
(PFMA)

Section 1

Section 38(1)(a)(iv); 38(1)(b);38(1)(c);38(1)(c)(i);
38(1)(c)(ii); 38(1)(d); 38(1)(h)(iii);

Section 39(1)(a); 39(2)(a);
Section 40(1)(a); 40(1)(b); 40(1)(c)(i)
Section 43(4); 44; 44 (1) and (2) ; 45(b);

Section 50(3); 50(3)(a)

Treasury Regulations for departments, trading
entities, constitutional institutions and public
entities (TR)

Treasury Regulation 4.1.1; 4.1.3

Treasury Regulation 5.1.1; 5.2.1; 5.2.3(a); 5.2.3(d);
53.1

Treasury Regulation 6.3.1(a); 6.3.1(b); 6.3.1(c");
6.3.1(d); 6.4.1(b)

Treasury Regulation 7.2.1

Treasury Regulation 8.1.1; 8.2.1; 8.2.2; 8.2.3; 8.4.1
Treasury Regulation 9.1.1;9.1.4

Treasury Regulation 10.1.1(a); 10.1.2

Treasury Regulation 11.4.1; 11.4.2; 11.5.1
Treasury Regulation 12.5.1

Treasury Regulation 15.10.1.2(c)

Treasury Regulation 16A 6.1; 16A6.2(a) ,(b) & (e) ;
16A 6.3(a);16A 6.3(b); 16A 6.3(c);16A6.3(d) ; 16A
6.3(e); 16A 6.4; 16A 6.5; 16A 6.6; 16A7.1; 16A.7.3;
16A.7.6; 16A.7.7; TR 16A8.2 (1) and (2); 16A 8.3
16A8.3 (d); 16A 8.4; 16A9; 16A9.1;
16A9.1(b)(ii);16A9.1 (c); 16A 9.1(d); 16A 9.1(e);
116A9.2; 16A9.2(a)(ii) &(iii); 16A9.1(f).

Treasury Regulation 17.1.1
Treasury Regulation 18.2

Treasury Regulation 19.8.4
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Legislation

Sections or regulations

Division of Revenue Act No. 5 of 2022

DoRA 11(6)(a)
DoRA 12(5)
DoRA 16(1)
DoRA 16(3)

DoRA 16(3)(a)(i)
DoRA 16(3)(a)(ii)(bb)

Public service regulation

Public service regulation 18; 18 (1) and (2);
25(1)(e)(i); 25(1)(e)(iii)

Prevention and Combating of Corrupt
Activities Act No.12 of 2004 (PRECCA)

Section 34(1)

Construction Industry Development Board Act
No.38 of 2000 (CIDB)

Section 18(1)

Construction Industry Development Board
Regulations

CIDB regulation 17; 25(7A)

PPPFA

2.1(a); 2.1(b); 2.1(f)

PPR 2017

Paragraph 4.1; 4.2

Paragraph 5.1;5.3; 5.6; 5.7

Paragraph 6.1; 6.2; 6.3; 6.5; 6.6 Paragraph
7.1,7.2;7.3,75;7.6

Paragraph 8.2; 8.5

Paragraph 9.1; 9.2

Paragraph 11.2

Paragraph 12.1 and 12.2

PPR 2022

Paragraph 4.1;4.2;4.3; 4.4

Paragraph 5.1;5.2;5.3; 5.4

SITA ACT

Section 7(3)

National Treasury Instruction No.1 of 2015/16

Paragraph 3.1;4.1; 4.2

NT SCM Instruction Note 03 2021/22

Paragraph 4.3;4.4; 4.4 (a);4.4 (c): 4.4 (d)

NT SCM Instruction Note 11 2020/21

Paragraph 3.1; 3.4 (b); 3.9

NT SCM Instruction note 2 of 2021/22

Paragraph 3.2.1; 3.2.4(a) ;3.3.1

NT instruction note 4 of 2015/16

Paragraph 3.4

Second amendment of NTI 05 of 2020/21

Paragraph 4.8; 4.9;5.1; 5.3

Erratum NTI 5 of 202/21

Paragraph 1 and Paragraph 2
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Legislation Sections or regulations
Practice note 7 of 2009/10 Paragraph 4.1.2

NT instruction note 1 of 2021/22 Paragraph 4.1
Employment of Educators Act Section 33 (1)
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PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied
consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial
statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management has used
assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements. These are based on the best
information available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the
financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act
(PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the
PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act.

1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.

2 Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 Presentation currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional
currency of the department.

4 Rounding
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

5 Foreign currency translation

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using the
spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information

6.1 Prior period comparative information

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements.
Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to
ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current
year’s financial statements.

6.2 Current year comparison with budget

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and
economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.

Revenue

71 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue
fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the
appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are
recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date
is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.

7.2 Departmental revenue

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is
subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the
statement of financial position.
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7.3 Accrued departmental revenue
Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the
financial statements when:
e itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow
to the department; and
e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from
collecting agents.
Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy
8 Expenditure
8.1 Compensation of employees
8.1.1 | Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
8.1.2 | Social contributions
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to
households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
8.2 Other expenditure
Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets)
is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The expense is classified
as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.
8.3 Accruals and payables not recognised
Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost at
the reporting date.
8.4 Leases
8.4.1 | Operating leases
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in
the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.
8.4.2 | Finance leases
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not
apportioned between the capital and interest portions.
Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:
e cost, being the fair value of the asset; or
e the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership
at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.
Aid Assistance
9.1 Aid assistance received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received.
In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of receipt and is
measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are
required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘. ’ Let’s Grow North West Together




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

9.2

Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. Aid
assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the statement
of financial position.

10

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current
liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11

Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department
receives or disburses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.
<Indicate when prepayments are expensed and under what circumstances.>

12

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest,
where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off. Write-offs are made according to
the department’s write-off policy.

13

Investments
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

14

Financial assets

14.1

Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts already
settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus
accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

14.2

Impairment of financial assets

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the
recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits
expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

15

Payables
Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost.

16

Capital Assets

16.1

Immovable capital assets

Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the notes to the
financial statements at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable assets
acquired in a non-exchange transaction are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition. Immovable
assets are subsequently carried in the asset register at cost and are not currently subject to depreciation
or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for
use.

Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in the notes
to financial statements.

16.2

Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Movable
capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of
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acquisition.
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets are

measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at
R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at
R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or
impairment.

Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready
for use.

16.3

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Intangible assets
acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the
department commences the development phase of the project.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are
measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured
at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at
R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for
use.

16.4

Project Costs: Work-in-progress

Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of financial performance at cost
when paid.

Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and accumulated in
work-in-progress until the underlying asset is ready for use. Once ready for use, the total accumulated
payments are recorded in an asset register. Subsequent payments to complete the project are added
to the capital asset in the asset register.

Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is transferred to the
custodian subsequent to completion.

17

Provisions and Contingents

171

Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best
estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible
obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department or when
there is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

17.3

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises
from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not within the control of the department.

17.4

Commitments
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Commitments (other than for transfers and subsidies) are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial
statements when there is a contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that
raises a valid expectation that the department will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future
expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash.

18 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the
expenditure is either:
e approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received,;

or
e approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the
appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or

e transferred to receivables for recovery.
Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.
The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is
resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

20 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount
recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless itis impracticable to determine,
in which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.
Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority,
transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.
Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and
are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

21 Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors
Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-
specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy. In such instances the department shall
restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which
retrospective restatement is practicable.
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance
with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific
effects or the cumulative effect of the error. In such cases the department shall restate the opening
balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is
practicable.

22 Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the
financial statements. The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after
the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

23 Principal-Agent arrangements

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [IDT, Public Works and SITA]. In terms of
the arrangement the department is the agent and is responsible for the construction and maintenance
of the schools. All related revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised or
recorded in terms of the relevant policies listed herein. Additional disclosures have been provided in the
notes to the financial statements where appropriate.
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24

Departures from the MCS requirements

The Department of Education and Sports Development’s management has concluded that the financial
statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information; that the department
complied with the Standard except that it has departed from a particular requirement to achieve fair
presentation; and the requirement from which the department has departed, the nature of the departure
and the reason for departure.

25

Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting
period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current
reporting period. Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current
period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is
disposed and the related funds are received.

26

Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year
becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the
National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the statement of financial
performance when written-off.

27

Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity
and a related party. Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in the
notes to the financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the department. The number of individuals and their full
compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

28

Inventories
At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised at cost in the statement of financial performance.

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories are measured at
fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where intended
for distribution (or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a nominal charge, the
lower of cost and current replacement value.

The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis.

29

Public-Private Partnerships

Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance of the
partnership. The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policies.

A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement, and the date of
commencement thereof together with the description and nature of the concession fees received, the
unitary fees paid, rights and obligations of the department are recorded in the notes to the financial
statements.

30

Employee benefits

The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised and
provisions) is disclosed in the Employee benefits note.

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘. ’ Let’s Grow North West Together




2: ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annual Report 2022-2023 . “ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

LL06LL 61 901 €19 61 ainypuadx3y
aouewWLIONAd [elouRUl{ JO Juswale)g 1ad sjunowe [enjoy
0¥0 S0E 61 9296.L02 |ejo ) @ouewIONad [eloueul JO Juswalels Jad syunowe [enjoy
0996 69% sydieoal [ejuswpedag
‘ppY
99UBWLIONA [BIDURUIL JO JUBWJR)S YJIM UOIEI[IDU0IY
L106LL 6L | 08€S6Z26l |%V'V6 1S0991L L 901 €19 61 1G16LL0C |- - 1G1 61102 Ivi0Ll
LL06LL 61 08£ G626l |%V'V6 160991 L 901 €1961 1GS1 6LL0C - - 1S 6102 lejo} qns swwelbo.d
veEL YL L €9098! | %8'G8 6G0 781 /96 0LL L 920662 | - - 920 66¢ | S3IJIAYIS A3LV13d NOILYONA3 ANV NOILVNINVX3 "L
/81 ¢6l | L08¢6lL | %6°'C. eve Lec G616 ¥06 Llceve ) - - Llceve ) ININdOTIAIA FANLONYLSVHANI 9
G18 199 060 129 %08 LEE €61 086 06. 1€ ¥86 - - L€ ¥86 LNINdOTIAIA AOOHATIHI ATV 'S
6.1 €81 11€68.L %9'€6 980 99 168 L08 €86 ¢98 - - €86 ¢98 NOILVONA3 TO0OHIS 1vIO3dS JI7dnd v
0Zl 6¢ 61 6€ %866 68 9.6 8¢ G99 8¢ - - G99 8¢ S31AISENS TOOHOS LNIAN3Id3IANI ‘€
16G €6¢ vl 86828V ¥l |%8°.6 €89 6€¢ €3G0 066 71 9¢€/. 6¢2€ Sl - - 9¢€/.62€ Gl NOILYONA3 TOOHIOS AYVNIQYO J179Nnd ¢
G86 116 10 ¥€6 %S'v6 GGS 99 8G9 696 €12920 | - - €12920 | NOILVYLSININGY 'L
awuweiboid
000.4 000.4 % 000, 000.4 000.4 000.3 000.4 000.4 sabieyo 0211 pue spuny pajop
196pnq
ainjipuadx3y leuy jo 9, se ainypuadx3y spuny jobpng
|enjoy j9bpng |eul4 | aanyipuadxy | esuenep |enjoy jobpng jeuiq | juswemp J0 Buiiys paisnipy
(44154114 €e¢/eeoe

swuwelboaid jad uonendoiddy

€202 Y2Je LE papua Jeak ayj oy

juawdjels uonerdoiddy

NOILYONA3 :1S3M HL¥UON

1S9/\\ YHON JO 2dulnoad
uonednpy jo yuswpeda(q :g 910\

Je3d) |enueuld £¢/220¢ 404 Moday [enuuy

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ .‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-202

Z106LL 6L 08€E G6Z 6L [ %V'v6 LGS0 991 L 901 €19 61 1Sl 61102 - - LGl 61202
862 61 G8Z G9 %0 L L Lzl ze Lv2 ¥S v.€ 9L - - v.€ 9. wawdinbs pue Ausuyoew J1ayio
96061 0zZ6 SlL %9°89 80 L €9€ C VAZ 2 - - VAZ A wswdinbs podsues
Y6€ V€ soz L8 %6°0L LLz ez 0L9 95 128 62 - - 12862 wawdinba pue Ausuyoep
G€0 €06 28l 606 - - - - - - - sainjonis paxy 18yi0
- €. 9 %9'G6 €9 0€ 90 G99 869 G569 - 000 001 869 G695 sBuipiing
GEO0 €06 GG9 616 %9°'G6 €9 0€ 90 G99 869 569 - 000 001l 869 G695 sainjonuys paxy Jayjo pue sbuipiing
62V LE6 098 966 %L‘€6 Sv8 €S V29 L2L 61S SLL - 000 00L 615 S29 sjosse |ejded 1o} sjuswied
oLl oLl - (o8L) 08l - - - - spjoyasnoy o} sisysuel} Jayi0
129 €0l 06l L8 %S L6 oeoz SLe 6L Sve L8 - - Sve L8 sjyauaq |eloos
LEL €0L 0o€ L8 %L'16 0S8 L G617 62 Sve L8 - - Sve L8 sployasnoH
19% ¥6/1 L 9//,258 L %t 76 v, 6Ll Legzzoe glzevL e - - glzzvl e suonniisul jyoid-uoN
vSe 8l vSZ 8l %0001 - oclL 61 oclL 61 - - o€l 61 saousbe |ejuswpedag
vSZ 8L vSZ 8l %0001 - oclL 61 oclL 61 - - o€l 61 sunoooe pue salusbe |ejuswpedaq
ZSv 916 L 0€E 2S6 L %9‘v6 z6S L2l 9sL LzL e svlizve e - - 1Az A4 SaIpIsqns pue sidjsuel]
ovlL - - (12€) L€ - - - - ((ddd) sluswAed Asejun uo }saiayul “|ou]) 1sa1a)u)|
ovlL - - (12€) L€ - - - - pue| uo Jual pue jseiau|
90¢€ S00 L %80, 98¢ GE6 Lze L - - Lze L Buuiy pue |ejusy
920 L€ €20 €V %1951 QL1 ¥2) 606 99 €62V - - €62V oe) pue seNUa
206 0€L oLZLEL %€ L6 €.€e¢€ 160 02L oLt €21 - - oLt €21 sjuswAed Bunerado
9108 R4 24 %2 9t GE6 0L L0V 6 zZve oz - - zZve 02 juswdojansp pue Buurer|
G/S €9 S60 9 %6°20L (sez 2) 266 82 15292 - - 1G29/2 ©0UL)SISgNS pue |[oAeBI L
o€ 2L 196 61 %L'GL 120 ¥ [ 4 KA #9G 91 - - #9G 91 Annoe jejuswpedeaq :papinold podsuel |
oLl Lzz 62l €92 %€'9S 90S 961 666 252 S0S 671 - (000 001) S0S 675 suawAed Apadoid
1698 Zro Ll %0°LL 98l ¥ vSZ 0L ovy vL - - ovv vL seses| Bunesado
G8€ LY 88€ vv %8°9L 6L9 L1 29 8¢ 180 0S - - 180 0S so||ddns @00 pue Buguud ‘Ausuonels :s|gewnsuod
LE8 €91 LG¥ 08 %79 LGS € LvE 9 z68 6 - - z68 6 salddns s|jqewnsuo)
v19 L6 621 601 %E'SE 16/ 8S 800 2€ 66, 06 - - 66, 06 sa|ddns JayiO Asojuenul
LG6 916 L %1'E8L (oze 1) z06 2 z8S L - - 285 L solddns pue sjeusiepy :Aiojuanul
210 8€S 9/ 695 %0°'G8 698 96 [A4WAZ:] 166 €79 - - 166 €v9 |eusjew poddns usyoes) pue Jsuiea] AojuaAy|
- - %€'€809 (65€) [e1e] 9 - - 9 seb pue |10 ‘|an4 :Alojuanu)
61 66 %0 L L 806 L 9.9 ¥ +8S 9 - - 785 9 Sol0ss900E pue |eusiew Buiyyo|D Aiojueaul
116 ¥Z €80 G2 %6°G8 86 9 08S Z¥ 95 61 - - 95 6% (Hodsue Jojow Juswuianob Buipn|oul) s@oInLes J89| 4
00z L92 G/8 922 %0°€L 661 9¢€ L9 86 ovlL el - - 9rlL GEL S82IAI8S Pa2INOoSINO / poddns pue Aouaby
218 9€6 %681 986 2 S69 189 € - - 189 € siojoenuod
208 oLL 8 %S00 (2€) 858 L 128 2 - - 128 2L soomues |eboT
LE0 €V S9/ €V %9'8L €ve LE 8€9 9¢€L 188 €Ll - - 188 €41 sooInes AIOSIAPE pue ssauisng SjuUB)NsSUo0D
60 02 zLe e %6 0t L (PLe2L) GBS 2V Lzez oe - - Lzz oe se@oInes Jandwod
0LS Gl 8/9 81 %616 v6e L 25861 ovz LL - - ove L1 (S%9) uonesNWWOD
888 62 799 v€ %28 188 9 8zz Z¢ 601 6€ - - 601l 6€ sannpoe [ejuswpedaq :Buusied
v¥9 G 18§ %269 68L2 8129 190 6 - - 290 6 soahkoldw3 iseuesing
6L vL 060 2L %Vv'€6 625 L 605G L2 8€0 €2 - - 8€0 €2 |eussx g 1S3S00 PNy
zzoze 888 OF %92 ov. ¥S z09 61 Zve VL - - Zre v sj}esse Jouln
196 L 69 € %628 zly 9er € 806 € - - 806 € Buisiuenpy
[er4% €6¢€ %2 9S 289 9.8 8GG L - - 8GS L S99} aANEeASIUILPY
2202221 sLzzie L %29, €06 €05 208219 L 60L9LL 2 - (000 001) 60L9lLz¢ S9DINIBS puEB SPO0D
866 L¥0 2 ¥6. 296 L %2601 (9Lo L81) zzgzesl e 908 L6 L - - 908 L16 L suonNQqLIUOD |BI00S
126 S 2L L8l L2G 2L |%l'S6 860 899 122 ¥00 €L G/e2/9¢€L - - glez2l.9¢€l sebem pue seuees
616 L8V L G/6€ES VL | %6'96 280 /8% 660 LSL Gl 181 ¥¥9 G - - 181 ¥¥9 Gl s@akojdws jo uonesuadwod
9€l G9Z 91 06l 9VE 9L | %¥'V6 719 066 92Z 01291 068 092 ZL - (000 001) 068 098 L1 sjuswAed jusund

000.d 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4

12bpnq

ainjpuadxgy Jeuly Jo 9, se ainjipuadxy spung 39bpng

|lenjoy 3@bpng jeulq | aunjipuadxgy aouelepn |jenjoy 3abpng jeulq JUSWBIA jo Bumyiys paisnipy

zz/Lzoz €2/2202
uonesISSe|d J1ouo23 4ad uonedoiddy

IS9M\ YUION jJO aJuinoid

uonzeonp3 jo yuawpedaq :g 310N
Jed |epueuldy £2/zz0¢ 404 Moday [enuuy

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘.‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

G86 L16 210 ¥€6 %S V6 GGG 96 859 696 €12920 L - - €12920 L
8€Z € €¥S S %198 1.6 €10 9 020 - - 020 £ jswdinba pue Aisuiyoew JsUO
8€C € €YS S %198 116 €10 9 020 2 - - 020 £ juswdinba pue Aisuiyoep
8€Z € €VS S %198 1.6 €0 9 020 2 - - 0z0 L sjosse |ejded 10} sjuswhed
- - - - - - - - - spjoyasnoy 0] siajsuel) 1oyl
66€ 0L L6% 0L %L ‘0EL (s¥L 2) 28z 6 LEL L - - LEL L sjyeuaq |eloos
66€ 0L L6% 0L %L ‘0EL (sv1L 2) 28z 6 LEL L - - LEL L sployasnoH
66€ 0L L6 0L %L0EL (svL 2) z82 6 LE€L L - - LEL L salpisqns pue siajsues]
ovL - - (L2€) L2€ - - - - ((ddd) suswAed Asejiun uo }saia)ul ‘|ou)) 1sa1ay]
orlL - - (12€) L€ - - - - puE| UOo JuBJ pue }sBIa|
- YA 4" %€‘'Z6 Ssc 862 €ce - - €ce Buuy pue |ejusy
666 S 0S8 2 %9001 (19) LEE LL 292 L1 - - 292 LL saNn|Io.) pue senua
LY L 8€/ L %9°€Z 6L0S ¥SS L €269 - - €259 sjuswAed Bupesado
808 ¢ 16 € %896 6zl Lv6 € 00 ¥ - - 040 ¥ juswdojanap pue Buuiely
205 /2 89 /2 %621 (1+0 2) 186 0€ ov6 €2 - - ov6 €2 ©0Ud)SISqNS pue [DABI L
- 08S - GSS - GGG - - GGG Annoe [eyjuswpedsq :pepinold podsued |
+0Z 81 Sl 02 %1t'€9 evL LL €ze 6L 99t 0€ - - 99% 0€ suswAed Apadoid
sy L ceL e %L'GE €8€ 2 oec L €49¢€ - - €9 ¢ sasesa| BuneiadO
€v8 9 2999 %209 9zz € 6.8 ¥ SoL 8 - - soL 8 sal|ddns @ouyjo pue Bunuud ‘Aisuonels :8|gewnsuod
9€s5 L f4Z°K4 %L ¥9 €€8 /8% L ozez - - ozez sa|ddns s|qewnsuo)
881 [XeT4 %V LLY (9G1) 861 44 - - zv sayddns JayiQ :Aiojusny
- zzv %S'81L 6€€ VA 1A 4 - - oLy salddns pue sjeuajep :Aiojusau]
zz z %6 801 88 961 - - 961 SOLI0SS900. puE [Eudjew BuiyolD Aiojuaay
Lv6 vZ €80 G2 %16 199 L 6€€ 92 000 82 - - 000 82 (Hodsuedn; sojow Juswuienob Buipn|oul) s@oINIBS J09|4
110 €€ 90S 92 %0°'20L (Le) 169 009 + - - 009 t S@0IMSs paoinosino / poddns pue Aousby
982 90¥ %00l 8€6 L gLz vSL e - - Sl 2 si0}BHUOD
.08 oLL 8 %G00 (2€) 858 L 128 2 - - 1z8 L seomues |ebe
€€L 6 6€€ 0L %9'02 6L 0L zoLze LzL el - - LzL el s@omuas Alosinpe pue ssaulsng :Sjue)nsuod
G8S € 6LL9 %9621 (eo0z 2) 1€96 YEY L - - veEY L seomies Jaindwod
880 0L 858 L1 %9'G6 9G¥ 088 6 9€ee 0L - - 9ee 0L (S99) uopeouNWwod
Ly L gzlrz %L'SL 2621 891 C 09z € - - 09z € sennnoe [ejuswpedeq :Buusied
vrS 129 %168 9 1SS 129 - - 129 seakojdw 3 iseuesing
6L vl 060 2L %1'€6 625 L 605G L2 8€0 €2 - - 8€0 €2 |eusslx g 1S1S00 JIpNyY
(o574 zZL6 %Lt 88% 2 zzL oL9z - - oL9z sjosse JoulN
1G2 gLz L %29 069 9zv L oLLe - - aLLe Buisiienpy
GclL 4514 %9'19 €8¢ 9LS 662 - - 661 S99} OAnBASIUIWPY
reE6 TLL rEY 981 %9'28 881 ¥€ 89¢€ €91 958 /61 - - 958 /61 S9DINISS puB SPOOD
06l LOL 0z zolL %Z'€0L (zov €) €52 801 LG8 ¥OL - - LG8 0L suoNQLIUOD |B10S
80 ¥29 6.2 629 %296 800 /2 L¥€ 289 61€ 602 - - 61€ 602 sebem pue seuees
L oX AT 617G LEL %L'L6 909 €2 ¥6S 062 00z 18 - - 00z 18 s@akojdws jo uonesuadwod
8v€ 868 €86 LL6 %EV6 €2L 1S €EE ¥S6 950210 L - - 950210 L sjuswAed juaiiny
uoIedlISSE|D dIWouUo2g
G86 L1L6 210 ¥€6 %S V6 GSS 9GS 859 696 €1L2920 L - - €12920 L
1188 v6L 61 %0°LE S6Z 9l 2SS 6 Lv8 52 - - L8 G2 BINS)WNILSAS NOILVINJOLNI LNIWIDVNVIN NOILVONA3 'S
ocr ¥ €LL 8 %L LS 049§ €209 VL LL - - evLLL INIWNDOTIATA HOAVIASTAH NVINNH 'V
06€ 8€€ ¥ZZ 65€ %198 09z LS €€€ €G€ €6S 0LY - - €65 0LY INIWIOVNVIN NOILVONA3 ‘€
Zve 8vS LZ€ G€S %L 'POL (gee €2) 252 68S 216 995 - - 216 G99 S3DIAYTS TLVIOdHOD C
zLLzL [elTArAN %SG 6 S99 svi LL eLLeL - - eLLeL 53N IHL 40 301440 'L
awweiboud qng
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.M 000. 000. 000.4 000.4
1@6pnq
ainyupuadxgy |eul} Jo ¢, se ainjipuadxgy spung j39bpng
lenjoy jabpng jeuld | ainjipuadx3y aoueuen lenjoy 12bpng jeuiy JUDWBIIA Jo Bumiys paisnipy
zz/Lzoz €z/zzoe
6 8 7 9 S v € z L NOILVILSININGYV : | oawweiboid

1S9\ YION jO dulnoid

uoneanp3 jo Juswpedaq :8 310N
Jea |enueuld £2/220¢ 404 Moday jenuuy

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ .‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

16G €6€ V1L 86828V VL | %816 €89 6€€ €S0 066 V1L 9€L 62E€ G - - 9€. 62E G
S¥9 S ¥0€ €€ %1789 S/SLL S/9ve 0Sz 9¢€ - - 0SZ 9¢ juswdinba pue Aisuiyoew Jayio
€56 L1 9sz zL % L6 Lze €9e 2 85 2 - - ¥8G 2 yswdinbs podsuel |
866G L1 096G St %969 962 L1 8€0 L2 €8 8¢ - - €8 8¢ weswdinbs pue Ausuiyoen
- €L 9 - - - - - - - sBuip|ing
- €l 9 - - - - - - - sainjonJ}s paxi Jayio pue sbulpjing
865 L1 €€0 2S %9°69 961 LL 8€0 LZ €8 8¢ - - €8 8¢ sjosse |epded 1o} sjuswhed
oLL oLL - (o81) o8l - - - - spjoyesnoy o} siajsuel Jeyi0
08t ¥8 281 59 %126 0sz S 508 €9 G50 69 - - S50 69 sjysueq |eloos
066 +8 z68 59 %126 0L0S G86 €9 G50 69 - - S50 69 spjoyasnoH
786 €80 L €zo o0zl L %8°L6 9Lz 92 8G€ 991 L v.G26L L - - v.5 261 L suonnisul 3yosd-uoN
v.S89L L S1L668L L %S‘L6 98z L€ €ve o€z L 629 192 L - - 629 192 L seIpisqns pue siajsuel]
161 8€9 %Z'99 9ze fA44 899 - - 899 Buuy pue |ejusy
810 02 8/8 12 %S0LZ (Lee 81) 650 9€ 8zl LL - - 8zl LL saN|1oe) pue senua
Ly L 6L9 L %ELE GS9 L GG/ oLv ez - - oLvz suswAed Bunerado
€98 | 606 L %L'€T 8L¥ 0L l€2¢€ gso €l - - gso €l juswdojansp pue Bulurel)
09 6 G€6 8 %S‘CLL (Sv¥ 2) 8€0 22 €66 61 - - €6G 61 20UB)SISaNSs pue |dABl |
vZL € 208G %Z'€L €0 2 €9G S 16G L - - 16G L Annoe |ejuswpedeq :pepinosd podsuel |
Q0L €8€ %9'61L601 (550 89) 789 89 629 - - 629 sjuswAed Apadoid
68 (134 %0'SY 929 S ozL - - ozl seses| bugesadO
00 € 6EY € %0°€S szv L 09 L 620 € - - 620 € sol|ddns soyjo pue Bunuud ‘Aisuone)s :9|gewnsuoD
806 L GL.8 %669 lzv L €Le e ovL v - - ovL v selddns s|gewnsuo)
L. SY 096G Lt %0° L zor e 9z 88¥ 2 - - 881 C seo|iddns JayiO Auouany|
LG6 oY L %9192 (sv2 1) sz8 e 080 L - - 080 L solddns pue sjeusiepy :Aiojuaau
Z2¥0 S0S Ov¥ 0€S %188 602 69 600 22S 81Z 965 - - 81Z 965 |eusjew poddns Jeyoes) pue Joules] :AIojuUsAY|
- - %E'TL LYl L 295 v 60€ 9 - - 60€ 9 Seuossa00e pue |[eusiew Buiyo|d :Aiojusayl
- - %€ L8L (z8z 1) Ly 9L 656 8 - - 656 8 (podsuel Jojow JuswUIBA0B Buipn|oul) SODINISS 193] 4
160 822 91 002 %1001 (oz1) 956 €6 9€8 €6 - - 9€8 €6 S©0IAI8S Pa2INosINo / poddns pue Aouaby
205 9L %Ly €5¢€ S8z 8€9 - - 8€9 siojoenuod
966 L €61 €1 %8622 (605 1) L00 LE zer €L - - zev €l seoines seindwod
SlL9 909 %0°0S8 L (s21) S8l oL - - oL (S%9) uonedIuNWWOoD
188 6 9lv LL %168 [ 1L 6 8zz 0L - - 8zz Ol sannpoe [ejuswpedaq :Buusied
zzL s €61 S %069 0z9z 928 S oty 8 - - ovt 8 seakojdw3 :sauesing
€8 61 699 9¢ %S°0€ Zv6 5€ 9€LG1L 8/9 LS - - 8/9 1S sjesse Joulin
1€6 £V6 L %8°L9 i{0)4 0S8 vse L - - vse L Buisenpy
- oclL %061 Sl€ 09¢ GgelL - - sel S99} aAleNSIuIWPY
80/ 8.8 92 206 %286 zLz st 82/ 6¥8 0v6 98 - - 0v6 798 S©DIAISS puE SPo0D
ZrS 0L L Z2L9L¥9 L %8801 (09 L¥L) 166 €28 L L16G29 L - - 116629 L suonNqUUoD [B100S
G/1 865 0L 710569 0L |[%€'96 620 621 18€ 650 L1 9L¥ 881 LL - - 9L¥ 88Y LI sobem pue seueles
L8221 989zve ZlL |%6'L6 68¢€ 182 ¥v6 288 21 €e€ P9l €L - - €ee ol €1 soa/ojdwa jo uonesuadwod
SZv L0Z €L 0S6 YPZ €L | %6°L6 L09 962 zL92ZeL €L €lz620¥L |- - €12 620 vL sjuawAed juaund
uoneoslIsse|d Jluouoos g
166G €6€ ¥ 86828V VL | %816 €89 6€€ €S0 066 V1L 9€. 62E€ G - - 9€L 62E G
L¥/. 8€ 265 LY %S 78 G689 Gz9 /€ 0zZsS v - - 0zs v STOOHOS) LNVAD ADO TONHO3L ANV JONIIDS SHIVIN 9
60/ 90S 289 L¥S %566 950 € 200 v6S €90 L6S - - €90 26S FNNVIDOUd NOILIILNN TO0O0OHOS - Ld9 IVNOILIANOD 'S
LGS Gl 9€z 6€ %0°9L 080 6 09/ 82 ov8 L€ - - ov8 L€ S3IDIAYIS VIAIW ANV JaNL1ND 1J0dS T100OHDS '+
820 0€ &4 %S'€6 602 € oLE 9t 61G 6% - - 61G 61 INIWJO13IATA I0dNOSTA NVINNH '€
LzezLL S 0¥0 2L S %L 76 118 S€€ 196 22€ S 78 859 - - ¥¥8 859 G TIATT AIVANODIS oldnd ‘2
L6S 689 8 668 ¥69 8 %2001 (vev 81) +8€ 096 8 056 L¥6 8 - - 056 L6 8 TIAT T AAVINIEC OIrland L
awuweiboid qng
000.3 000.3 % 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
196pnq
ainjipuadxg |euy jo 9, se ainypuadxg spung 3abpng
|enjoy j3abpng jeulq | ainjpuadxgy aouelen |enjoy 196png |eulq4 JUSWBIIA jo Bumyiys paisnipy
zz/1zoz €2/2202
6 B Z 9 S 2 € z L NOILVONAdd TOOHOS AJVNIGYO Olldnd ¢ ewwieiboid

1S9/\\ YMON j0 dduinoud
uonesnpy jo Juawpedaq :8 310N
Jed |epueuld €£7/2z0¢ 103 Moday |enuuy

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘.‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ .‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together

0Zl 6€ 61 6€ %866 68 9.5 8¢ G99 8¢ - G99 8€
0cl 6¢€ 61 6€ %8'66 68 9.6 8¢ G99 8¢ - G99 8¢ suonmsul jyoid-uoN
0Zl 6€ V61 6€ %866 68 915G 8¢ G99 8¢ - G99 8¢ salpisqns pue siajsuel ]
uoljedlISSEe[O JJWou02]
0Cl 6€ 61 6€ %866 68 9.5 8¢ G99 8¢ - G99 8¢
09,6 Sl06 %226 (1z8 9) 06€ 8L 695 6 - 695 6 T3A3T AYVANOD3S ¢
09€ 6¢ 6.1 0€ %¥'69 0168 981 0¢ 960 6C - 960 6¢ TIATT AUV 'L
awuweiboud qng
000. 000. % 000. 000.d 000. 000. 000.4 000.
1ebpnq
ainjipuadx3y |euy jo 9, se ainjipuadx3y spun4 jobpng
lenjoy jobpng |euld | ainjipuadx3y | aoueuep lenjoy jobpng jeulq | juswalA jo Bumiys pajsnipy
[44174' 14 €2/2202
6 8 A 9 S 14 € 4 3 S31AISENS TOOHOS LNIANIJIANI '€ swweiboid

1S9/\\ YHON jO dduinoid
uoneanp3 jo Juswpedaq :8 310N
Jea |enueuld £2/220¢ 404 Moday jenuuy



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

6.1 €81 11€ 68L %96 980 G5 168 L08 £86 298 - €86 298
S0V € €LY S %168 80/ 086 G 8899 - 8899 juswdinbs pue Alsuiyoew Jayio
¥.0€ 768G € - €98 - €98 - €98 juswdinbe podsuel)
6.V 9 1906 %Z'6. LIS L 086 G LGS 2 - 1GS 2 juawdinbe pue Asuiyoey
6.V 9 190 6 %2'6L 1.5 1 086 S 1SS L - 1SS L sjosse [ejded Joj syuswhed
2181 1zee %L'8. 115 Gl6 | zeve - zeve sjyouaq [e100S
1181 1zee %L'8L L1G Gl L zeve - zeve Sp|oyasnoH
160G/L 6v9G/1 %966 0L 190 €81 Le8 €8l - L€8 €8l suopnsul yoid-uoN
806 9.1 0.6 LL1 %€‘66 1821 9.6 ¥81 €9Z 981 - €9Z 981 salpisqns pue sidjsuel|
6€zC 0l9z %8611 (601 1) 8ge e 6222 - 6222 SO|10B) PUE SBNUBA
0€ €0l %SG'ST 862 zol 00% - (0]0]4 sjuswAed Bupesado
898 620 | %91 762 1453 809 - 809 juawdojanap pue Bulutel |
65V | vezT L %0'€E 90% | ¥69 00L 2 - 0oLz 80UB)SISANS PUE [SABI|
- 0S¢ - - - - - - sjuswAed Apadoiyg
8Y 8Y - - - - - - sases| bunesadp
9.LY 8Ly %6701 (ev) 926 €88 - €88 se||ddns soyjo pue Bupuud ‘Aisuopels :s|gewnsuo)
€191 6vl ¢ %92 98¢ 8¢l v2s - ¥2S sa||ddns s|jgewnsuo)
69Z L1 LLEB %9'L 1 1206 98l | 10z 0L - 10Z 0l sa||ddns Jay)Q Aojusny|
29.¢C 86€ € %C'vE 88l ¢ 9L L vze e - vze e [eusjew poddns Jayoes) pue JauiesT :Aiojusay|
- 0¢ - - - - - - SJ0joBNUOD
- - %86 l 29 €9 - €9 s9oIMBs Jandwo)
GG - - (2) z - - - (S%%9) uonesIUNWWOD
4 €S %8'C.L 28 6Lz 10g - 10e senpoe [euswpeda( :buusien
16G | L8 L %0°00€ (098) 062Z | (154 - (0[54 sjosse Joully
8¢l 8cl %L'GLe (z12) 106G elord - Gee Buisiuenpy
91922 2Ll 2T %S 9¥ 06€ L1 ¥16 6 Y0€ |12 - vog 1T S9JIAI8S puEe SPooS
766 68 869 88 %E'EEL (622 ¥72) 21696 €892/ - €892/ SUOHNQJUOD [e100S
z8l /8Y 708 06% %.'88 190 G9 GLLOLS 281 61§ - 281 6.8 sobem pue saleles
91 118 205 615 %L'€6 8€8 0OF 120 209 G98 /%9 - 698 /%9 seskojdwsa jo uonesuadwio)
26. 665 ¥.2 209 %2'26 82z 2§ Lv6 919 691 699 - 691 699 sjuswied Juany
uoljeoisse|d olwouodsy
6Ll €8 LLE 681 %9°€6 980 S 168 L08 £86 298 - €86 298
96 02 12561 %988 8€6 | 650Gl 166 91 - 166 91 ILTIavSIA IVNLOITIILNI ANNOJO¥d HLIM ¥3aNdV31 €
sre 190¢€ %1¥'€6 €l 100 € vize - vize LINIWdOT3IAIA I0ANOSTY NVINNH 2
G/ 6G. 11299/ %L'€6 GE6 2§ 1€8 68/ 2LL2y8 - 2LL2v8 STOO0HDS I
swuweibosd gng
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
3ebpnq
ainjpuadx3y |euy jo 9, se ainypuadx3y j1obpng
|enjoy 19b6png jeulq | ainyipuadx3y aouelep lenjoy jobpng jeuld | juswalp pajsnipy
2z/Leoz £2/2202
6 8 J 9 S 2 € I NOILYONA3 T00HIS 1VI03dS JI19Nd :t swweiboid

1S9\ YION j0 3dulnoid

uonesnpy jo Juawpedaq :8 310N
Jed |epueuld €£7/2z0¢ 103 Moday |enuuy

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘.‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

SL8 LS9 060 L.9 %08 LEE €61 086 062 LLE ¥86 - LLE ¥86
- 08v S %91 09 8 6€Z L €78 6 - €8 6 juswdinbs pue Ausuiyoew Jayio
- 0o8v S %9°CL ¥09 8 6€C L €¥8 6 - €¥8 6 juawdinba pue Auisuiyoep
- - - 009 - 009 - 009 sBuiping
- - - 009 - 009 - 009 sainjonys paxy Jayjo pue sbuipjing
- o8y S %6°LL v0Z 6 6€C L €y oL - €Yy oL sjosse |ejded 10} sjuswied
661 2 - - (¥8e 1) ¥8e L - - - sjyeuaq |eIooS
6617 2 - - (¥8e 1) 8¢ L - - - spjoyasnoH
09S v 90% ¢S %992 LLG 0S o€ S9L L¥6 GlLC - L¥6 GlLZ suonniisul 3yold-uoN
6S0 0S 90¥ 2S %eLL 121 6V 718 991 Lv6 G - |34 X174 salpisqns pue siajsued)
- - - oc - oc - oc Buuly pue jejuay
zeLe oizz %8'8L¢C (6zE €) LEL 9 zose - z08¢ SaNI|10.) pUE SBNUBA
- VA4 %0'SZr6L (ovs 1) ¥SS L 8 - 8 yuswdojonap pue Bululel]
LG8 L8L L %8'€C S00 L €LS 8LS L - 8LS L duLB)sisgns pue |SAeIL
- - - zLL - 47" - zLL Aunnoe jeyuswpedaq :papinoid podsues |
- - %0°1L9 9l L glze zeo € - ze9 e sjuswAed Apsdoid
cL ool %69 61l L 09l - 09l soses| bupesado
YANA 8ze %' 79 261 8ve ovs - ovs salddns oo pue Bupuud ‘A1suopels s|gewnsuod
Le <14 %0°0% 8 99 orlL - ovl solddns s|qewnsuo)
- - - 299 - 299 - 299 salddns Jey)O Aiojusnul
80¢ 0¢ 9¢6 S€ %L'Cy clv S¢ 1.6 8L evy v - evy v |eusjew poddns Jayoes} pue Jaulesa] :Aiojuany|
- - - 089 9¢ - 089 9¢ - 089 9¢ S392INI9S paoinosino / poddns pue Aouaby
- - - (62) 62 - - - siojpoenuoD
- - - oL - oL - oL S90IMSS AIOSIAPE pUE Ssaulsng SJUBYNSUO0D
- - - (0]¢] - [0]°] - (0]} s@oIn8s Jandwo )
- - %S‘L2E (5v9) 162 are - [} <4 (S'%9) uonesUNWWOD
oc 61 %9°LL 909 6¢ClL GeL - gel sapnpoe [ejuswpedaq :Buusied
(z2) - - [={o] (soL) - - - soakojdwg ;sauesing
- o %S‘vL GE6 9 821 L €LL 8 - €LL 8 S)}asse JouliN
- 18 - g8 - g8 - g8 Buisiuanpy
- - - oL - oL - oL S99} aAnBASIUIWLPY
6vYv €€ 16 6€ %8°LE ¥l 89 828 L€ 2.6 66 - 2.6 66 S9OIAISS pue Spoo9)
089 ¢8 12218 %L9L L (zse zL) eve 98 L66 €4 - L66 €4 suojngluod jeos
129 S8v €LS L6V %198 L2 6L 9SG/ ¥0S 0.6 €8S - 0.6 €8S sebem pue seuees
120€ 89S 06¢C €49 %868 298 99 660 L6S L96 LS9 - L96 LS9 s@ahojdws jo uonesuadwo)d
9G/. L09 v0Z €19 %228 900 S€1L 126 229 €€6 LS. - €€6 LS. sjuswAed juauind
uoneslyISSEe|D dIWoU0d]
SL8 LS9 060 L29 %b‘08 LEE €61 086 062 LLE V86 - LLE ¥86
- - %8°0L 9.2 €€ €06 L8 /99 GLL - /199 GLL AINVYO LNIINdOTIATA AOOHATIHD ATTdV3 9
6.S Vv L6S ¥ %686 61 €6S v cro v - o v SLINVYO dMd3 'S
cgecoc €00 € %66 29l G86 ¢ VAR - VA4R IN3INJOTIATA IDJINOS3IY NVIANNH '+
- - %0°9¢€ 26E L8 Lv. GY €elL L2l - €elL L2l O LNIJINdOTIAIA AOOHATIHD ATdV3 NI ¥ 3avio-3dd ‘€
Ssve L 6.5 0l %2'29 evs v S8v L 8c0cl - 8c0cl HIN3IO LNIJNdOTIAIA AOOHATIHD ATV NI ¥ 3avyo ¢
69€ /€9 /16 2S9 %868 lcv €1 €22 8¥9 004 L2t - 004 L2t STTOOHODS JIT79Nd NI ¥ 3Aavyo 'L
awuweiboid gng
000. 000.4 % 000.9 000.4 000.9 000.M 000.M 000.9
196pnq
ainjpuadx3y jeul} jo o, se ainjipuadxgy spung jabpng
|Jenjoy 3a6png Jeuly | ainjpuadxgy aouelepn jenjoy 3abpng |eulq JUSWBMIA jo Bumiys paisnipy
cz/Leoc €2/220¢2
6 8 L 9 S 14 c L ALNINJOTIATA AOOHATIHD ATTdV3 G swweabouid

1S9\ YION jO dulnoid

uoneanp3 jo Juswpedaq :8 310N
Jea |enueuld £2/220¢ 404 Moday jenuuy

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ .‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

1S9\ YION jO 3dulnoid

uoijeanp3j jo judwpedaq :g 910N

Jed |epueuld €£2/zz0¢ 403 Moday |enuuy

181261 L 108261 | %6CL Tve L€ 616 706 Lzeve L - - Lzeve L
G£0 €06 Z81 606 - - - - - - - saInjoni)s paxi Jayio
- - %L1'G6 ¥€0 0€ ¥90 G99 860 569 - 000 00} 860 G6G sBuipjing
GE0 £06 Z81 606 %L1'G6 ¥€0 0€ ¥90 G99 860 569 - 000 00} 860 G6G saunjonys paxy Jayio pue sbuiping
G20 £06 Z81 606 %L'G6 #£0 0¢ #90 G99 860 569 - 000 001 860 G565 sjosse |ejden 1oy syuswihed
¥9G /€1 /6L S/L %Z'62 969 /€2 600 86 G99 Ge€ - (000 001) G99 GeY sjuswAed Apadoid
Zly €0l 000 8¢ - - - - - - - se||ddns s|gewnsuo)
650 8 000 02 %06 11£92 £€29¢ 000 62 - - 000 62 sa||ddns JayiO Aiojusny|
¥0€ €€ 9zy €€ %Eg'€8 ¥1892 9e6 €€ 0GZ 091 - - 06/ 091 SeoIes AIosIApe pue sseulsng sjuejnsuo)
- - - 006G 2 - 006 2 - - 006G /2 seoes Jeindwon
v.¢C - - - - - - - - S)}asse JOUlN
£19282 €29 992 %0t 1Y€ 862 896G ¥€T GL6 ZES - (000 001) 61629 S80IAMBS pue SPO0D)
- GvZ e - €6e T - £6eC - - €6e T SuoINQLIUOD [B100S
6.1 9 1GL YL %L'GY 806G 9 ereS LG8 LI - - LG8 LI sebem pue saueles
6.7 9 200 .1 %9'L€ 1988 £ve S ¥02 ¥71 - - ¥02Z 71 soako|dwa jo uopesuadwo)
ZS1 682 G279 £82 %8st 80Z L0E 116 6£2 6LL LYS - (000 001) 6LL LY9 sjuswed Juaung
uoljedyisse|d dlwouod3y
181 261 | 108261 L %6CL Zve L€ 616 706 L1Zzve L - - LzTve L
590¢C 20G ¥ %Z'9 291 0€ 0€0¢ 26.2E - - 26.2E IN3INdO13IAIA AOOHATIHO A 14V €
Lov e 9/96Gl - 000 8¢ - 000 8¢ - - 000 8¢ ST10O0HOS 1VIO3AdS T
122 /8L L 6292LL L %22 08t 892 S¥6 206 GZy LLL L - - GZyLLLL STOOHOS AYVNIAYO oI1and 'L
awuweiboud gng
000.d 000.d % 000.d 000, 000.d 000.d 000.d 000.d
3obpnq
ainjipuadx3y |eul} Jo 9, se ainjipuadx3y spun4 j3obpng
|enjoy 19bpng |eulq | ainypuadxy aoueuep |enjoy jobpng jeuld | juswalp Jo Buyiys paisnipy
zz/Leoz £2/2202
6 8 ] 9 S v € Z L INJNJO1IAIA JUNLONYLSYHANI 9 swwieibolg

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘.‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

vEL LVL L €9098L L %8°S8 6S0 ¥81 196 0LL L 920 s62 | - - 920 S62Z |
0L0 2 S8y Gl %Vv'86 €92 oLe 9l €45 9l - - €45 9l wawdinba pue Aisuiyoew Jayio
69 0L - - - - - - - juswdinba podsuea )
640 L GGS Gl %Vv'86 €92 oLe 9l €45 9l - - €45 9l swdinba pue Ausuyoep
6.0 L GSS S %V‘86 €92 oLE 9L €LS 91 - - €LS 91 sjosse |ejided 1o} sjuswied
o9cr v 96S ¢ %9°2L01L (802) 626 C LeL e - - LeL e sSjHydusq |eroos
o9cr v 96S ¢ %9°2L01L (802) 626 C LeL e - - LeL e SployssnoH
AV 144 0S S9F %8°L6 961 v 901 697 292 LIS - - 292 LLS suonnisul Jyold-uoN
vSc 81 vSec 8L %0001 - o€l 61 ocl 61 - - o€l 61 solousbe |ejuswpedaq
vSc 8L vSC 8L %0°'00L - ocL 61 o€L 61 - - ocL 6l sjunoooe pue sauabe |ejuswpedaq
Z6€ LLY PS€E 98Y %126 8v6 Lv S9lL L6V €Ll €€9 - = €Ll €€9 salpisqns pue sidjsued |
601 sze %629 SLL S6l oLe - - oLe Buuy pue |ejuey
8€9 9 SZs 8 %€ L0L (€89) 0s0 0L 19€ 6 - - 19€ 6 Sen|Io.) pue senua )
066 LZL osz 8zl %Z'€0L (666 €) 989 L1 280 ¥LL - - 180 ¥LL sjuewAed Buneltado
VA [AXAVAR %0'8 1L ov9 L L9€ Looz - - Looz juswdojanep pue Buuies|
vSL ve 190 s2 %L'€8 ov8 v 99/ ¥2 909 62 - - 909 62 2ouLsisqns pue |sAed |
ove vi oLe L %L 'v8 oze L 086 9 00€ 8 - - 00€ 8 Aynnoe jejuswpedsq :pepinold podsues
962 59 S0 L9 %6°L8 ave v 192 ¥9 €Ll 64 - - €Ll 6. sjuswAed Apadold
€0€ L €26 L %6'v8 88G L 668 8 /8v 0L - - /8v 0L soses| bunelrado
S¥8 0¢ L8S €€ %8°L8 6189 S0/ 0€ vZs LE - - vZs LE so||ddns soyjo pue Buguud ‘Aisuonels :8|gewnsuod
Lz 6y 668 8¢ %129 Lz8 LvE L 89l 2 - - 891 2 so||ddns sjqewnsuod
L8€ c¢ ,0€ 2¢e %8°'LS G2y 0C G/6 /2 0ot 8¢ - - 0ot 8¢ saddns JayiO :Asojuanu]
- 8/ - 98 - 98 - - 98 sa|ddns pue sjeusle|) A1ojusaAy|
- - %E€'€809 (65¢€) [e]e1) 9 - - 9 seb pue |10 ‘|en 4 :Alojusay
1S 16 %6°CE €S 9cC 6L - - 6. salossaooke pue |eusjew Bbuiyio|D :Alouaay)
- - - s09<clL - s09 2L - - G099 21 (podsuely Jojow Juswuianob Bulpnjoul) sa2INISS 199]4
9c [e{er4 - o€ - o€ - - o€ S921AI8s padlnosino / Joddns pue Aousby
ve 12 %98l vcL SOl 688 - - 688 sJojpenuod
€Ls L 000 ¢ %l'CTLL (€L2) S68 L 289 L - - 289 L soomues Jendwod
ZSL v vz 9 %LGL 099 L 66 ¥ ¥S9 9 - - 59 9 (S99) uopedUNWWOD
89S 81 L9€ 02 %9°'28 oez v S62 02 S8S vZ - - S8S ¥Z sennpoe |euswpedaq :Buusied
8.6 ocv L %l LL GgeC oL 9/2 L LIS LL - - LIS LL sjosse JouliN
gel 68€ %S'662 (gev) €59 %4 - - 8Lz Buisienpy
- €L - vl - 14" - - 4" S99} DAlBsSIUIWPY
169 98¢ 802 ¥6€ %6°'08 2ze 9L oot €2¢ 2Z/l 66¢€ - - 22/l 66¢€ S8JIAISS pue SpPooH
Z26S L€ celL o %6°'68 vse v YAV AVAS Lo ey - - LLozy suopNQUUOD |BIooS
v.€ vve 18 6vC %8'6.L clzZ L9 see zve 409 €0€ - - 409 €0€ sobem pue saueles
996 L82 9¥6 682 %0°L8 92S 99 260 082 819 SvE - - 819 SveE seahojdwe jo uonesuadwod
€99 899 ¥S1L ¥89 %0°L8 8v8 Ll 261 €09 ove Sv.L - - oveE Sv.L sjuswAed jusund
uoneslIsSse|d JlWouodg
vEL LVL L €90981L L %8°‘S8 6S0 ¥8l 196 0LL L 920 s62Z | - - 920 s62 L
8L vl 606 Gl %S'86 192 229 LL 688 LI - - 688 Ll SAIV/AIH S1O3rodd LNVYO TVNOILIANOD 'S
0€c G2 8.€ ¥8 %S89 LeclL L€ 866 L8 6L.6LL - - 6L.6LL SNOILVNIANVX3 TVNJL3IX3 '+
108 96€ SOV LIy %Vv'88 LE0 ¥S LLgoLy cve vor - - cve vov S103rodd 1vIO3AdS ‘€
6S0 2v9 /S0 0S99 %€98 00 ¢6 900 289 ov0 29 - - ov0 ¥29 S3DIAYIS TVYNOISS3IJd0dd ¢
vSC 8L vSc 8l %0'001L - ocL 61 o€L 61 - - o€l 61 V13S Ol LN3INAVd 'L
sawuweiboud qng
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000. 4 000. 4 000.4 000. 4
3obpnq
ainjipuadxgy |leuy jo 9, se ainjpuadxgy spung j3abpng
|enjoy 3abpng Jeuld | aunypuadxg aoueuep |enjoy j3abpng jeuiq JUDWBDAA jo Bumyiys paisnipy
zz/Lzoz €z/z2zoec
6 8 VA 9 S 14 € 4 L DIAY3S A3 1LV13d NOILYONA3 ANV NOILVNIANVX3 2 swweiboid

1S9/\\ YHON jO dduinoid
uoneanp3 jo Juswpedaq :8 310N
Jea |enueuld £2/220¢ 404 Moday jenuuy

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ .‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



23

0

19

ANNUAL REPORT 20

9% & Se duelep

%VT 650 78T [960TT1T 9¢0S6C1T S3DIAY3AS A3LV13H NOILVYONAT ANV NOILVYNINVX3
%LC e Lge S.6 706 JAYA4 74 1ININJOTIAIA FYNLONYLSVHANI
%0¢ LEE €61 086 06L LTE 186 1N3INJOTIAIA AOOHATIHD ATdV3
%9 980 95 L68 L08 €86 €98 NOILYONAd3 TO0HIS 1VI123dS J11dNd
%0 68 9/S 8¢ G99 8¢ S31AISdNS TOOHIS LNIAN3Id3ANI
%C €89 6€¢E €50 066 VT 9€L6¢CE ST NOILYONA3 TOOHIS AYVYNIAYO 2119Nd
%9 GG8S 99 899 696 €1C9001 NOILVYLSININGY

aweu awuwelsdoud

% 0004 0004 0004
198png |euld jo 2duenep| ainypuadx3 jenypy 193png |eul4 :awwesdoud iad 1v

:(3uBWaJIA 4314) POIOA SIUNOWY WOJ) SSOUBLIEA |BlI9)EW JO Suoljeue|dx]

"SJUSWI1L]S [BIDUBUIS [BNUUY Y3 01 S19SSE [eIDURULS J0J STUBWABRG 01 910U 3y} Ul pamalA 9 ued awweldoud Jad suoiloesuely asayj 4o |1e19Q

S19sse |elpueul} o) syuswAed uo |1e13Q €

‘SJUBWIIL]S |BldDUBUIS |ENUUY 3y} 0} (Uoileldoiddy |enuuy) T 910U Ul PIMBIA 3¢ UBD SUOIIDBSUBI} 953} JO |1e3aQ

J(Juswalip J914e) paloA syunowe pajelidoisdde AjaAIsnpxa pue Ajjearydads Jo |1eyaq ¢

"S]UBWAIL]S [BIDUBUIS |ENUUY Y3 0} (H-V) T 3JNX3uuy pue S3IPISqNS pue Si9jSuel] Uo 910U 3y} Ul PAMBIIA 3 UBD SUOIDBSURI] 9S3Y] JO |13
‘(auswauip J914e) Y uonedoiddy Jad se salpisqns pue siajsuedy Jo |1exaqd T

1S9/\\ YMION JO 3duinoid
uoneinpy jo Juswmpedaq :g 310\
Jed |enueuldy £2/zz0z 103 Moday |enuuy

judwalels uonendosddy oyl 03 saloN
NOILYONA3 :1SIM HLYON

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘@‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



023

-9

ANNUAL REPORT 20

(‘S8uipuadsiapun Jo SulAes e JO 1 nSaJ B Se S| 31 49Y3ayMm 0} Se USAI3 g 1snw uolleue|dxa pa|lelap e ‘sswweldosd uo sasn|dins Jo ased ayi uj)

"€¢0C |1dy ul pied sem pue £z0g [Udy ul papud
11 se pied g 10U pP|N0D €207 Y2JBA JO PUd ay3 18 p|ay 249M eyl sdwed Jauied| pue pa||14 Suiaq 1sod JuedeA ||e 10U 01 anp S| aunyipuadxa Japun

%Vl 650 78T L960TTT 970S6¢CT SADIAY3S d3LV13d NOILYONA3 ANV ZO_F<Z__>_<xm__
aweu awuweasoid

_ .w>_mCOQme uou mc_wn SJappliq a2yl ||e se papieme 24 10U p|Nn0d SUOI1dNIISUOI MaU 10} Siapual m_n_ 9Y3 JO sWIOS 01 anp Si w‘_DU_.__uchxm Lw_uCD_

_&nm e Lee S.6 706 LTC e T 1IN3INdOTIAId m_m:Hu:Em,qmu_z__
aweu sawuweliSoid

“3AI0B 10U SeM
wa3sAs JuawAed ay3 uo sniels J1ay3 se pied 9g 10U P|NOD $243UD DI SWOS J0) Spuny pue paj|i} Sulag isod ||e 30U 03 anp S| ainyipuadxa Japun

%0¢ LEE €61 086 06L LTE V86 1N3INdOTIAIA AOOHATIHD >._x<m__
aweu awuweaso.id

"%00T 01 peaisul %01 INoge
Ag Ajuo ainyipuadxa ay3 paseasoul Yoiym saaAojdwa 1ua4ind 3yl ulym suoizowosd asam Juawiuiodde papusWIWIOIal Y3 4O 1SOW puUE SIDUBIEA
}JO 1500 |B103 9Y1 UO paseq ainiipuadxa pajdalosd Juswpedap ayl ‘uoiiesuadwod Joj Ajulew ainyipuadxa Japun 01 anp S| aJn}puadxa Japun

%C 89 6€€ 50 066 T 9€L6¢CE ST NOILVYONA3 TOOHOS AYVYNIAYO 2I1dnd
aweu awuweaso.id

1S9/\\ YHON jO dduinoid
uoneanp3 jo Jusawnedaq :8 310\
Jea |enueuld £2/220¢ 404 Moday jenuuy

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘@. ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



023

19

ANNUAL REPORT 20

‘paysiuly sdwed ayy uaym €0z |1dy uil pred Suiaq syuswAed sdwed Jouled| pue Ss1030eJ3u0d dueualulew pue sijedal

uo uewlopad mo| ‘€zoe |14dy ul pred pue paiajdwod Ajuo sem Aiaaiap Yyadiym jo saded Adodoojoyd jo 23e140yS 03 anp S| SADIAIDS pue spood uo ainiipuadxa Japun

"%00T 01 peaisul %0T Inoge Aq Ajuo aunyipuadxa ay3 paseasoul Yyaiym saaAojdwa uaiind ayl uiyym suozowoud asam usawiujodde
P3apuaWW0d3J 3y} JO ISOW PUB SIDUBIEA JO 350D |BI0} 3y} UO paseq aJnyipuadxa pajoaloid Jusawpedap ayl 03 anp s| uojzesuadwod uo aunipuadxa Japun

uawdinba pue Asauiydep

$9JNJ0NJ3S paxly Jaylo pue sguip|ing

s1asse |erided Jo) sjuswAed

spjoyasnoH

suollniiasul yjoid-uoN

sjunodde pue sapuade |eluswiledag

SaIpIsSqns pue siajsued]

pue| uo juaJl pue 1salalu|

S9JIAJI3S pue SpooH

saaAo|dwa jo uoljesuadwo)

aJnyipuadxa jualin)

% € se 2duelepn

%6¢ TTcec 07999 T8 6L
%l €9 0¢ 790 999 869 969
%L S8 €9 v/9TCL 6TSS/L
%C 0s8T S6v 6L SPET8
%9 [47291" T€S¢CC0¢C eLCeri e
%0 - ocT 61 ocT 6T
%S ¢6S TCT 99T TCT ¢ 8L v e
%0 TLE- TLE -
%trC €06 €05 908191 60L9TT ¢
%€ 280 L8 660 £ST ST T8T ¥¥9 ST
%9 719 066 9/C0LL9T 06809 LT
% 0004 0004 0004
uwm“vsm jeuld jo duelepn w.:._u.__ucwn_xm |lendy uwm_u:m leuldq

1S9/\\ YHON jO dduinoid
uonesnp3 jo Juawiiedaq :g aOA
Jed |enueuld £2/220¢ 10) Moday |enuuy

1UOIIEDIHISSE|I DIWIOUO0I U3d 2V

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘@‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



22-2023

ANNUAL REPORT 20

*anIsuodsal

uou 8uiaq sIappiq dY1 ||e Se papJeme 3¢ 10U P|NOI SUOIIINIISUOI MU JO} SI9pudl S1g aY3 JO SWOS 01 ANP S| JUBID SIN1NIISEIJU| UOIIedNPT Uo ainlipuadxa Japun

9 € se adueLep

1S9/\\ YHON jO dduinoid
uonesnpy jo Jusawiedaq :8 10N
Jed) |enueuld £2/2z0z 10) Moday [enuuy

%1 (34 €651 wov uol1edNp3 - SAUIN0I 10} JUeID
9AIIUBOU| dwweldoid SHI0MN 21|qnd papuedx] J0309S [B1D0S
%1¢ 99t 8ELT voc ¢ uol11eanp3 - sadulAold
JOJ JueJD pajes3alu| swwel3oid SHIOM 21|gnd papuedx]
%1€ 988 9¢ 69T 8 SS06TT (uoneanp3oiseq) Juesn uawdo|anaq pooyp|iyd Ajes
%1 960 € £96 €69 €90 £6S (uoneonp3
JIseg) JueJdo awwes30id UOIINN |O0YIS [BUOIIEN
%ST L689 €79 L€ 0¢s v (uoneanp3aiseg) Juesn ASojouyda] pue a3ua1PS ‘SYle
%TT 8€6T 650 ST L6691 (uoneonp3joiseg)
JUBJD S3131|1gesIq [BN1DD||91U| PUNO0JOid YA SIdulea]
%L 69¢C 029.T 688 LT (uonzeanp3 aiseg) (U0nEINPT S||INS 9411) SPIV PUE AIH
%LT 089 €€€ Si6 206 G799¢CT (uoneanp3joiseq) JuelH a4njoNJISeIU| UOIIEINP]
T8C €8¢ YTLGS9 T G668€0¢C juswedap ay3 03 9|gedijdde syued [euollipuod ayy moys Ajup

% 000.4 0004 0004
198png |euld jo douenen| ainypuadx3 [enyy 198png |euld juess jeuonipuod 1dd €V

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ “. . Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

REVENUE
Annual appropriation
Departmental revenue

TOTALREVENUE

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure
Compensation of employees
Goods and services

Interest and rent on land
Total current expenditure

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies
Total transfers and subsidies

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets

Total expenditure for capital assets

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year

NORTH WEST: EDUCATION
Statement of Financial Performance

Note

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Voted Funds
Annual appropriation
Conditional grants

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘ @ ‘ ‘

Vote 8: Department of Education

Province of North West

2022/23
R'000

20779157
469

20779 626

15157100
1612 805
371

16 770 276

2121156

2121156

721674
721674

19 613 106
1166 520
1166051

782770
383 281

469
1166 520

2021/22
R'000

19295 380
9 660

19305 040

14 487 925
1777070
140

16 265 135

1916452

1916 452
937430
937430

19119017
186 023
176 363

132 235
44128

9 660
186 023

Let’s Grow North West Together
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

NORTH WEST: EDUCATION
Statement of Financial Position

2022/23
Note R'000

ASSETS

Current Assets 241870
Cash and cash equivalents 8 130053
Receivables 10 111817
TOTAL ASSETS 241 870
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 250 575
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 11 230330
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 12 1889
Payables 13 18 356
TOTAL LIABILITIES 250575
NET ASSETS -8 705

Represented by:
Unauthorised expenditure

TOTAL

Annual Report 2022-2023

-8 705

-8 705

2021/22
R'000

190 868
89572
101 296

190 868

199573
176 363
11202
12008

199573

-8 705

-8 705

-8 705

‘ ‘ ‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

NORTH WEST: EDUCATION
Cash Flow Statement

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts

Annual appropriated funds received
Departmental revenue received

Net (increase)/ decrease in working capital
Surrendered to Revenue Fund

Current payments

Interest paid

Transfers and subsidies paid

Net cash flow available from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets
Net cash flows from investing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Note

14

15

2022/23
R'000

19869 018

19 843 437
25581

2021/22
R'000

19 329 002

-4173

-211 260
-16 769 904
-371
-2121156

762 154

-721673

-721673

40481

89572

130053

19295 380
33622

193798
-231587
-16 264 995
-140

-1916 452

1109 626

-937 430

-937 430

172 196

-82 624
89572

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘@‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

1,1

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

1,2

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education

NORTH WEST: EDUCATION
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Province of North West

Annual Appropriation 2022/23 2021/22
Funds not Funds not
Final Actual Funds  requested/ Final Appropriation  requested/

Budget Received not received Budget Received not received
Programmes R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
ADMINISTRATION 1026213 969 658 56555 934017 934017
PUBLIC ORDINARY SCHOOL EDUCATION 15329736 14990 054 339682 14 482 898 14 482 898
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SUBSIDIES 38665 38576 89 39194 39194
PUBLIC SPECIAL SCHOOL EDUCATION 862983 807897 55086 789311 789311
EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT 984317 846184 138133 671090 671090
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 1242217 1080101 162116 1192 807 1192 807
EXAMINATION AND EDUCATION RELATED 1295026 1110967 184059 1186063 1186063
Total 20779157 19 843 437 935720 19 295 380 19295 380

Provide an explanation for funds not requested/not received
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000

Conditional grants**
Total grants received 45 2038995 1822108

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ .‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Departmental Revenue

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Total revenue collected

Less: Own revenue included in appropriation
Departmental revenue collected

2,1

2,2

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Sales of goods and services produced by the department
Other sales

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods

Total

Transactions in financial assets and liabilities
Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue
Total

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

202223 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
2,1 16108 15223
2,2 9473 18399
25581 33622
12 25112 23962
469 9660
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
2
16 096 15213
12 10
16 108 15223
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
2
9473 18399

9473 18399

Annual Report 2022-2023 . “ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

3 Compensation of Employees

31

3,2

Salaries and wages

Basic salary

Performance award

Service Based
Compensative/circumstantial
Periodic payments

Other non-pensionable allowances
Total

Social Contributions

Employer contributions
Pension

Medical

UIF

Bargaining council

Official unions and associations
Insurance

Total

Total compensation of employees

Average number of employees

2022/23
Note R'000

10705071
12419
29757

287 158
29453
1940420

13004 278

2022/23
Note R'000

1364 581
782479
981
1099
3409
273

2152 822

15157 100

33332

2021/22
R'000

10310897
14 468
14904

211616
32031
1862011

1245927

2021/22
R'000

1315687
720113
2523
1032
2550

93

2041998

14 487 925

33263

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ ‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Goods and services

Administrative fees

Advertising

Minor assets

Bursaries (employees)

Catering

Communication

Computer services

Consultants: Business and advisory services
Legal services

Contractors

Agency and support / outsourced services
Audit cost —external

Fleet services

Inventories

Consumables

Operating leases

Property payments

Rental and hiring

Transport provided as part of the departmental activities
Travel and subsistence

Venues and facilities

Training and development

Other operating expenditure

Total

4,1 Minor assets
Tangible capital assets
Machinery and equipment

2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
876 125
3436 1966
4,1 19603 22622
6277 5644
32228 29 888
15770 15509
4,2 42 595 20092
136638 43036
7857 8073
694 818
98 646 261200
4,3 21509 14194
42 580 24947
4,4 587 358 793 046
4,5 44518 48 854
10254 8698
4,6 253082 221172
935 306
12543 17 364
4,7 78994 63575
66 909 37026
9406 8015
4,8 120097 130900
1612 805 1777070
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
4
19603 22622
19603 22622
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

4,2

4,3

a4

4.4.1

Computer services

SITA computer services

External computer service providers
Total

Audit cost — external
Regularity audits
Total

Inventory

Clothing material and accessories
Fuel, oil and gas

Learning and teaching support material
Materials and supplies

Medical supplies

Other supplies

Total

Other Supplies

Assets for distribution
School furniture
Sports and recreation

Total

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘

2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
4
3693 2982
38902 17110
42 595 20092
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
4
21509 14194
21509 14194
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
4
4676 -
365 -
547122 538 091
12 580 1627
285 156 361
4.4.1 22 330 96 967
587 358 793 046
22330 96 967
19428 96 016
2902 951
4,4 22330 96 967
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

4,5

4,6

4,7

4,8

2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
Consumables 4
Consumable supplies 5988 7217
Uniform and clothing - 493
Household supplies 3532 5994
Building material and supplies 2110 -
IT consumables 346 29
Other consumables - 701
Stationery, printing and office supplies 38530 41637
Total 44518 48 854
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
Property payments 4
Municipal services 77 002 8782
Property maintenance and repairs 98 625 138 084
Other 77 455 74 306
Total 253 082 221172
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
Travel and subsistence 4
Local 78 952 63574
Foreign 42 1
Total 78994 63 575
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
Other operating expenditure 4
Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 42 38
Resettlement costs 1851 1081
Other 118 204 129781
Total 120 097 130 900
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Interest and Rent on Land
Interest paid
Total

Transfers and Subsidies

Departmental agencies and accounts

Non-profit institutions
Households
Total

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible capital assets

Buildings and other fixed structures

Machinery and equipment

Total

7,1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2022/23

Tangible capital assets
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment

Total

2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
371 140
371 140
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
ANNEXURE 1A 19130 18254
ANNEXURE 1B 2022531 1794 467
ANNEXURE 1C 79 495 103731
2121156 1916 452
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
721674 937 430
26 665 064 903 036
25 56 610 34394
721674 937 430
Voted Funds Aid assistance TOTAL
R'000 R'000 R'000
721674 - 721674
665 064 - 665 064
56 610 - 56 610
721674 - 721674
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

7,2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2021/22

Voted Funds Aid assistance TOTAL
R'000 R'000 R'000
Tangible capital assets 937430 - 937 430
Buildings and other fixed structures 903 036 - 903 036
Machinery and equipment 34394 - 34394
Total 937 430 - 937 430
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Consolidated Paymaster General Account 130053 89572
Total 130053 89572
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
Prepayments and Advances
Balance 'a\s Less: Amm{nt Add/Less: Add: Current Balance as at
Note at1April  expensedin
Other Year advances 31 March 2022
2021 current year
Advances paid (Not expensed) 9 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Public entities 155 393 -155 393 - - -
Total 155 393 -155 393 - - -
Balance as Less: Amount Add: Current
Note at1April  expensedin Add/Less: Year Balance as at
Other 31 March 2022
2021 current year prepayments
Prepayments (Not expensed) 9 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Listed by economic classification
Capital assets 49771 -49771 - - -
Total 49771 -49771 - - -
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
Voted Funds to be Surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening balance 176363 207 457
As restated 176 363 207 457
Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated) 1166051 176 363
Voted funds not requested/not received 1,1 -935720 -
Paid during the year -176 364 -207 457
Closing balance 230330 176 363
2022/23 2021/22
11,1  Reconciliation of unspent conditional grants Note R'000 R'000
Total conditional grants received 12 2038995 1822108
Total conditional grants spent -1655714 -1777980
Unspent conditional grants to be surrendered 383281 44128
Less: Paid to the Provincial Revenue Fund by Provincial department -44128
Approved for rollover
Due by the Provincial Revenue Fund 1 383281 -
Include discussion where deemed relevant
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening balance 11204 1710
Prior period error 2
As restated 12,1 11204 1712
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated) 469 9660
Own revenue included in appropriation 25112 23962
Paid during the year -34.896 -24130
Closing balance 1889 11204
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
13 Payables - current
Clearing accounts 13,1 18 356 12 008
Total 18356 12008
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
13,1 Clearing accounts 13
(Identify major categories, but list material amounts)
SAL:ACB RECALLS:CA 8298 7251
PENSION RECOVERABLE ACC 32 -
SAL:BARGAINING COUNCILS:CL 32 25
PAYBLE:ADV:P/DEPT:NW ADV ACC:CL 176 155
SAL:GEHS FUNDS 5747 2242
SAL:INCOME TAX:CL 3780 2203
SAL:OFFICIAL UNIONS:CL 6 4
SAL:PENSION FUND:CL 147 47
SAL:UIF:.CL - 2
SAL: FINANCE OTHER INSTITUTIONS:CL 138 79
Total 18356 12008
2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
14  Net cash flow available from operating activities
Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance 1166520 186023
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities -404 366 923603
(Increase)/decrease in receivables -10521 -11734
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances - 205 164
Increase/(decrease) in payables — current 6348 368
Expenditure on capital assets 721674 937430
Surrenders to Revenue Fund -211260 -231587
Voted funds not requested/not received -935719 -
Own revenue included in appropriation 25112 23962
Net cash flow generated by operating activities 762154 1109 626
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15

16

17

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Note
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes
Consolidated Paymaster General account
Total
Note
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
16,1 Contingent liabilities
Liable to Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 2A
Claims against the department Annex 2B
Total
Note

Capital commitments

Buildings and other fixed structures
Total

Prior year amount was increased by R9 988 million due to correction of calculation.

2022/23
R'000

130053

130053

2022/23
R'000

71

265994

266 065

2022/23
R'000

1637799

1637799

2021/22
R'000

89572

89572

2021/22
R'000

71
241804

241875

2021/22
R'000

841777

841777
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

2022/23 2021/22
R'000 R'000
18 Accruals and payables not recognised
18,1  Accruals
Listed by economic classification 30 days 30+ days Total Total
Goods and services 34551 1114 35 665 5299
Capital assets 19936 - 19936 3285
Total 54 487 1114 55601 8584
2022/23 2021/22
Listed by programme level Note R'000 R'000
Administration 35665 4885
Public Ordinary Schools - 414
Infrastructure 19936 3285
Total 55601 8584
Include reasons for material accruals
18,2  Payables not recognised
Listed by economic classification 30days 30+ days Total Total
Goods and services 259 1417 1676 13156
Capital assets - - - 1536
Total 259 1417 1676 14 692
2022/23 2021/22
Listed by programme level Note R'000 R'000
Administration 1676 10428
Public Ordinary Schools - 2728
Infrastructure - 1536
Total 1676 14 692
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19

20

21

Employee benefits
Leave entitlement
Service bonus
Performance awards
Capped leave

Other

Total

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year

Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

2022/23
Note R'000

187 495
464 760
628 495

24104

1304 854

At this stage the department is not able to reliably measure the long term portion of the long service awards.

Included in capped leave is negative amounts, amounting to R4 970 million

Lease commitments
20,1 Operating leases

Specialised Buildings and Machinery and
2022/23 military Land other fixed )
equipment
assets structures
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Not later than 1year - - 2234
Later than 1 year and not later than & - - 1965
Total lease commitments - - 4199
Specialised Buildings and A
2021/22 military Land otherfixed Vachineryand
equipment
assets structures
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Not later than 1year - - 1634
Later than 1year and not later than £ - - 2588
Total lease commitments - - 4222
2022/23
Note R'000
Unauthorised, Irregular and Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure -
Irregular expenditure 4380
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 371
Total 4751

2021/22
R'000

162772
441 530
7234
674722
24 696

1310954

2021/22
R'000

83289
140
83429
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22

23

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

2022/23
Note R'000
Related party transactions
2022/23
Note R'000

In kind goods and services provided/received

List in kind goods and services between department and related party
The department occupies a building owned by department of public works

roads -
and the building is provided tree ot charge. Furthermore, all North West

and transport and the building is provided free of charge. Furthermore, all
North West -

Provincial departments, trading entities, schedule 3C and 3D public

entities as well as -
the provincial legislature, in the provincial sphere of government are a

related party to the -
department. -

Total -

List related party relationships and the nature thereof

Dept of Education is occupying building proparties owned by Dept of Public Works and Roads free of charge.

2022/23
R'000

Key management personnel

Political office bearers (provide detail below) 1744
Officials: -
DDG'S & SG 7915
CHIEF DIRECTORS 9292
DIRECTORS 27 485
Family members of key management personnel 6988
Total 53424

2021/22
R'000

2021/22
R'000

2021/22
R'000

1978
5821
7642
28975
7075
51491
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25

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Provisions
Retention on Contracts
Total

Reconciliation of movement in provisions - 2021/22

Provision1  Provision 2

Note

Provision 3
R'000

2022/23
R'000

Provision 4
R'000

R'000 R'000
Opening balance 10383 -
Increase in provision 468 -
Closing balance 10851 -

Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2021/22
R'000

10851
10851

Total
provisions
R'000
10383
468
10851

Closing
balance
R'000

163 563

33358
66 933
60 361

2912

Opening Value
balance adjustments Additions Disposals
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 157333 56 609 50379
Transport assets 33358 2363 2363
Computer equipment 63 489 36991 33547
Furniture and office equipment 56 192 5070 901
Other machinery and equipment 4295 12185 13568
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 157 333 56 609 50379

163 563
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25,1

25,2

Movement for 2021/22

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
Transport assets

Computer equipment

Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

25.1.1 Prior period error

Nature of prior period error
Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)
Vehicles were included in asset register which were not

Total

Minor assets

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Opening  Prior period
balance error Additions Disposals
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
145 081 -7304 34394 14 838
25755 -7304 15096 189
59929 - 13029 9469
55302 - 1192 302
4096 - 5077 4878
145 081 -7 304 34394 14 838
Note

MOVEMENT IN MINOR CAPITAL ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

TOTAL MINOR CAPITAL ASSETS

Number of R1 minor assets
Number of minor assets at cost
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR

Specialised Machinery
military  Intangible Heritage and Biological
assets assets assets equipment assets
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
- - - 24941 -
- - - 19 608 -
- - - 18 227 -
- - - 26 322 -
Specialised Machinery
military  Intangible Heritage and Biological
assets assets assets equipment assets
- - - 17792 -
- - - 19476 -
- - - 37268 -

Closing
balance
R'000

157 333
33358
63489
56 192

4295

157333

2021/22
R'000

-7304

-7304

-7304

Total

R'000
24941
19 608
18227
26 322

Total
17792
19476
37 268
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Minor assets
MOVEMENT IN MINOR CAPITAL ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Specialised Machinery
military  Intangible Heritage and Biological
assets assets assets equipment assets Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Opening balance - - - 24324 - 24324
Additions - - - 22 626 - 22 626
Disposals - - - 22 009 - 22 009
TOTAL MINOR CAPITAL ASSETS - - - 24941 - 24941
Specialised Machinery
military  Intangible Heritage and Biological
assets assets assets equipment assets Total
Number of R1 minor assets - - - 17 795 - 17 795
Number of minor assets at cost - - - 18416 - 18416
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR - - - 36211 - 36211

Immovable Tangible Capital Assets
MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Opening Closing
balance Additions Disposals balance
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 4345 706 182171 - 4527 877
Non-residential buildings | 182171 - |
TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 4345 706 182171 - 4527877
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26,1

26,2

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Movement for 2021/22
MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
Opening  Prior period Closing
balance error Additions Disposals balance
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 3909921 159 875 275910 - 4345706
Non-residential buildings 3909 921 159875 275910 -
TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 3909 921 159 875 275910 - 4345 706
26.1.1 Prior period error Note 2021/22
R'000
Nature of prior period error
Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance) 159 875
Assets that were fair valued were restated at cost, duplicate
assets were removed
including assets that were not capital in nature 159 875
Total 159 875
Immovable tangible capital assets: Capital Work-in-progress
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
Ready for use
Opening (Assets to the Closing
Balance Current Year AR) / Contracts Balance
Note 1 April 2022 wip terminated 31 March 2023
Annexure 3 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Buildings and other fixed structures 956 651 538128 182172 1312607
TOTAL 956 651 538 128 182172 1312 607
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Ready for use
(Assets to the Closing
Opening Prior period  Current Year AR)/Contracts Balance
Note Balance error wIP terminated 31 March 2022
Annexure 3 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Buildings and other fixed structures 873531 49202 188315 154 397 956 651
TOTAL 873531 49 202 188 315 154 397 956 651

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ . ’ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

2022/23 2021/22
26,3 Immovable capital assets (additional information) Note
Duration of
a Facilities on unsurveyed land use Number Number
Schools 1116 949
27 Principal-agent arrangements
2022/23 2021/22
27,1 Department acting as the principal
R'000 R'000
Include a list of the entities acting as agents for the department,
the fee paid as compensation to the agent and any other
transactions undertaken - -
IDT - 274
DBSA 13694 15 360
Total 13694 15634
The department procures from the sita tenders but no fees are paid to the.Department of Public works
There will be no ternination cost on termination of the principal agent and the retention will be disclosed in
For the above mentioned agents the assets held by them a bank accounts held by the agent and disclosed in
28 Prior period errors 2021/22
Amount bef
error Prior period Restated
Note correction error amount
28,1 Correction of prior period errors R’000 R’000 R’000
Revenue: (e.g. Annual appropriation,
Vehicles were included in asset register which
were not delivered at year-end 37 164 637 -7 300 157337
Assets that were fair valued were restated at
cost, duplicate assets were removed 39.1 4185 831 159 875 4345 706
Amounts ommitted from were included 39.2 907 449 2847 910 296
Net effect 5257917 155 422 5413 339
29 INVENTORIES (Effective from date determined in a Treasury instruction)
29,1 Inventories for the year ended 31 March 2023
MOBILE ASSISTIVE
TABLETS PPE Total
CLASSROOMS DEVICES
Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Annexure 3
Opening balance 3505 224 568 134374 55215 417 662
(Less): Issues -3505 -224 568 -134374 -55215 -417 662
Closing balance - - - - -
Inventories for the year ended 31 March 2022
MOBILE ASSISTIVE
TABLETS PPE Total
CLASSROOMS DEVICES
Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Annexure 3
Add: Additions/Purchases - Cash 3505 224 568 134374 55215 417 662
Closing balance 3505 224 568 134374 55215 417 662
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

30,1

NORTH WEST: EDUCATION

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS AND MERGERS
Transfer of functions

Provide a brief description of the functions transferred or acquired and the reason for undertaking the transaction or event.

In February 2020 The President of the Republic Mr Cyril Ramaphosa did anounce the transfer of ECD from Department of Social Development to Department
in accordance with section 97 of the Constitution read with section 306 to 308 of the children's Act of 2005.89 Employees were transferred from Department

to Department of Education with a total budget of R363409 for the Financial Year 2022/23 and 2023/24.

Functions Functions
Functions (transferred) /  (transferred) /
received received received Balance
Balance before  Dep of Social Dept name Dept name after transfer
30.1.1 Statement of Financial Position Note transfer date  Development (Specify) (Specify) date
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

ASSETS
Current Assets 190 868 - - - 190 868
Cash and cash equivalents 89572 89572
Receivables 101 296 101 296
TOTAL ASSETS 190 868 - - - 190 868
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 199 573 - - - 199 573
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue
Fund 176 363 176 363
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be
surrendered to the Revenue Fund 11202 11202
Payables 12 008 12 008
TOTAL LIABILITIES 199 573 - - - 199 573
NET ASSETS -8 705 - - - -8 705

Functions (transferred) /  (transferred) /

received received received Balance

Balance before  Dep of Social Dept name Dept name after transfer
30.1.2 Notes transfer date  Development (Specify) (Specify) date
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Contingent liabilities 266 065 266 065
Capital commitments 841777 841777
Accruals 8584 8584
Payables not recognised 14 692
Employee benefits 1310954 1310954
Lease commitments - operating lease 4222 4222
Impairment - 10851
Provisions 10851
Movable tangible capital assets 157333 911 158244
Immovable tangible capital assets 4345 706 4345 706

Computer equipment to the amount of R911 have been received from Department of Social Development.

Proclamation Notice 21 of 2021

The two MECs and HODs for Department of Social Development and Department of Education have concluded the agreement to facilitate the transfer of ECD.
Technical Teams including human capital and Finance directorates were formed to advice on the function shift process.

Disclose the revenue and expenditure attributable to the transfer of functions subsequent to the transfer.

Where the accounting for the transfer of functions is incomplete, include information as required by paragraph .40

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ .‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

086LLLT 80T ¢Z8 1 T8C €8¢ YILSS9T S66 8€0 ¢ S66 8€0 T - - 61 0S €08886 T
(A4 T6S ¥ 6V €65t w9 wov - - - wov uollesnp3 - sadUINOId
J0J JUBJD DAIIUU| dwwelSold
%66 SHI0M 21|qNd papuedx3 4030aS |e0S
990 ¢ ¢00¢ 99 8ELT Y0C ¢ Va4 - - - ot e uonesnp3
- S90UINOU{ 10} JuelD pajedgaiu|
%6 awweudoid SHI0AN 21|qnd papuedx3
- - 988 9€ 69T 28 GS06TT GS061T - - 156 T 0T ¥0T (uoneonp3aiseq)
%69 juel9 Juawdo|anaq pooyp|iyd Ale3
80L 909 789 LVS 960 € £96 €65 €90 £6S €90 L6S - - 09t 1€ €09 995 (uoneonp3aiseg) yueln
%66 swwes30id UoINN |00YdS [eUOlIEN
Ly[ BE 6S Ty L689 €79 L€ 0zs v 0¢s v - - s8¢ S[9TY (uoneonp3oiseg)
%G8 juet9 ASojouyda] pue 2dua s ‘Syien
9.6 0C LTS 6T 8¢€6T 650 ST L6691 £669T - - - £669T (uoneonp3oiseg) uelo sal|igesia
%68 |EN3D3||93U| PUNOJOId YA SIaulea]
8LV 606 ST 69¢ 029 LT 688 LT 688 LT - - 9€6 €596 91 (uoneonp3oiseg)
%86 (uoneanp3 s||1YS 9417) SPIV pue AlH
€CT06T T S0806T T 089 €€€ V6 206 GC99¢C1 GC99¢C 1 - - - SC99¢€C1T (uoneoanp3
%/ J1seq) JUBJD AUNJINJISeIJU| UOIIedNpP]
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4

ydap Aq syuein INVYO 40 VN

juawpedap juads spuny juawpedap | Juswpedap |eI2UIAOId IOV

Aq juads JOY anuanay [ 9jqejieae | (Buipuadsiano) Aq juads Aq paniasal a|qejieAy | sjuswisnipy | sjuswisnipy anuaAay
junowy J0 uoisiAlg 30 % /49pun junowy junowy 1ejol 19410 vioda S19AQ |10y J0 uoisiAlg
[441%A 14 1N3dS NOILVOOTIV INVYD

1S9/\\ YHON JO 2dulnoad
uoineanp3 jo Juswpedaq :g 910\
Je3d) |endueuld £¢/220¢ 404 Moday [enuuy

Q3AIFOTY SINVYO TVNOILIANOD 40 LNIWILVILS

Sjuswaje)s |eldueUl4 [BNUUY 3y} 0} S8JON
NOILYONAd3 :1S3IM HLION

113

Annual Report 2022-2023 . ‘.‘ ‘ Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

32

33

NORTH WEST: EDUCATION
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

BROAD BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT PERFORMANCE

Information on compliance with the B-BBEE Act is included in the annual report under the section titled B-BBEE Compliance Performance Information.

2022/23 2021/22
Note R'000 R'000
COVID 19 RESPONSE EXPENDITURE ANNEXURE 5
Goods and senices 96 897 417 226
Total 96 897 417 226
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year

Vote 8: Department of Education

Province of North West

3. Appendix A: Irregular Expenditure and Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Irregular Expenditure and Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Descriotion 2022/23 2021722

P R'000 R'000
Unauthorised expenditure (depariments only) - -
Irregular Expenditure 4 380 83 289
Fruiless and wasteful expenditure 371 140
Closing balance 4 751,00 83 429,00

(1) Amounts of material losses through criminal conduct
202212023 2021722
R’000 R’000

Incident description

(2) Criminal or disciplinary steps taken as a result of losses, irregular and
fruitless and wasteful expenditure

202212023 2021722

Incident description
R’000 R’000

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ " . Let’s Grow North West Together



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

JUBABJ8. PBLLIBBP BJOUYM 88U UOISSNISID %Eos_

08Y 6€9 | 69L22L 1 oY) L2L ) aouejeq buiso|y

110 UM pue
paIaA00a.Jou aimipuadxe Jenbau| :sse
- - - 9|qeJoA008 darypuadxe Jenbaul| :sse

PaAOWSI pue
paUOPUO Jou ainipuadxe JejnBa.l| :sse
- - - paUOPU0D 8Inipusdxa Jejnball] :sse

Geco 68¢ €8 08¢ ¥ paLILU0d Birypuadxa Jejnba.l] ppy
SvC 0€9 | 0877 6€9 | 69.22L1 pajEjsey sy
GGl v9 - - $10143 poliad Jold
000 669 | 087 6€9 | 69.¢¢L | aoueleq buuado

000.4 000y 000.Y uondussaq

1202/0202 ceoe/ieoe €20¢/¢e0c

ain)ipuadxa Jejnbalil Jo UONeIjIoU0JaY
ainjipuadxa Jejnboaui|

Annual Report 2022-2023 ‘ ‘ .‘ ’ Let’s Grow North West Together

1S9/W\\ YMON }O 3duinoid
uoinesnp3 jo Jusawuedaq :8 310\
Jea [epueuly £2/2z0¢ 10j Hoday [enuuy



ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023
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Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

Reconciling notes to the annual financial statement disclosure

2022/2023 2021/2022

Description R’000 R°000

Irregular expenditure that was under
assessmentin 2021/2022

Irregular expenditure that relates to 2021/22
and idenfified in 2022/23 (##)

- 79 679,00

Irregular expenditure for the currentyear 4 380,00 3610,00

Total 4 380,00 83 289,00

(##) During the year ended March 2023, an amount of R4000 was identfied as irregular expenditure incurred in 2021/22 but was
identified in the 2022/23 financial year by internal auditors during a review of irregular expenditure transactions

b) Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure (under assessment, determination, and investigation)

2022/2023 2021/2022

Description

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure under assessment -

Irregular expenditure under determination - -
Irregular expenditure under investigation 4 380,00 83 289,00

Total 4 380,00 83 289,00

Include discussion here where deemed relevant.
Include a narrative of irreqular expenditure under determination and investigations cases that relates to other previous years
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Annual Report for 2022/23 Financial Year
Vote 8: Department of Education
Province of North West

ular expenditure condoned
2022/2023 2021/2022

c) Details of current and previous year irreg

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure condoned - -
Total - -

|lnclude discussion here where deemed relevant.

d) Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure removed - (not condoned
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure NOT condoned and
removed
Total - .

|lnclude discussion here where deemed relevant.

e) Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure recoverable
2022/2023 2021/2022
R’000 R’000
Irregular expenditure recovered - -
Total - -

|lnc/ude discussion here where deemed relevant.

f) Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure not recoverable and written off (irrecoverable)
2022/2023 2021/2022
R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure writien off - -
Total

Include discussion here where deemed relevant.
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Additional disclosure relating to Inter-Institutional Arrangements

g) Details of non-compliance cases where an institution is involved in an inter-institutional arrangement (where
such institution is not responsible for the non-compliance)

None

Total

|Include discussion here where deemed relevant.

h) Details of non-compliance cases where an institution is involved in an inter-institutional arrangement (where
such institution is responsible for the non-compliance)

2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

The instituion procured services of another
organ of state fo conduct business case
analysis for a division thatis to be
established, and it was found that the - -
supplier awarded the contract did not meet
the minimum requirement and Enfity A was
part of the bid committee meeting

Total - .

Include discussion here where deemed relevant.

"UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE
Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure

Description 2022/2023 2021/2022 2020/2021

R’000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance 8705 8705 8705
Prior Period Errors - -
As Restated 8705 8705 8705
Add Unauthorised current year - - -
Closing balance 8705 8705 8705

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Reconciliation of Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

Description 2022/2023 2021/2022 2020/2021

R’000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance 4157 4017 3773
Prior Period Errors - -
As Restated 4157 4017 3773
Add Unauthorised currentyear 371 140 244
Closing balance 4528 4157 4017
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For more information
Directorate: Strategic Management

Garona Building, MMABATHO 2735
Private Bag X2044, MMABATHO, 2735

Tel: (018) 388 381 / 2114
Fax: (018) 388 3830
Cell: 083 387 9999 / 083 282 9117
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